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Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MRRBRERBREBEER

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B E
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BZE HZE
—B-—F T
t=A=t-8 +-A=+-A
LtEE LEAE A
RMB million RMB million

ARBEER AREBETT

Gross revenue U ZE 1,316.4 1,282.0

Revenue W 2= 494.3 397.0

EBITDA BT & K 8 A A (33.0) (487.0)

EBIT (Loss from operations) SR A (189.1) (603.0)
(L EE)

Loss attributable to equity shareholders 7~ & J& 5 FE {5 /&5 18 (368.0) (635.1)

of the Company

Basic loss per share SIRERNEE (15.8) cents 7 (27.3) cents &

At At

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

R=ZZBZ—F R_TE_TF

+=ZA=+—-8B +ZH=+—H

RMB million RMB million

AREBEER AREBETT

Net assets of the Group KEBEEEFE 1,808.3 2,038.0

NAV per ordinary share @ BREBREEFE? 1.57 yuan J© 1.73 yuan 7T

Notes:

(1 Gross revenue represents the gross amount arising from the
sales of goods, concession sales charged to retail customers,
gross rental income and management and administrative

service fee income charged to tenants.

(2) NAV per ordinary share represents the total equity attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company per ordinary share.
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Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MRERERBREREEER

KEY PERFORMANCE INDEX BEREBEE
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
HZE HZE
—E=-—-F —_T_FF
+=-—A=+—-H +ZA=+—H
LtEE LESE A
RMB RMB
AR¥ T AR
Sales per ticket ™ RHEBO 1,125 1,167
Annualised area efficiency (per m2) @ FEAFR(BFEHK)@ 21,800 20,600
Notes: BisE
) Sales per ticket represents gross revenue per total number of (1 REBBEAERMSHEWNERAERS
transactions of department stores. B
(2) Annualised area efficiency represents annualised gross revenue (2) FEAFBIEB ER S FELBANER
per average operating area of department stores. LA IE L A5 ©
L SEEERERA A
B -FER
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Five Years Summary Financial Information

EFEMBERBE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B{lZ2 =T ——F+=-A=+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Renminbi ("RMB"))  (UAERKE ([ARE])Z5)
RESULTS
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020 v ded 31 March
RMB’000 RMB'000 ear ende arc
Bz Bz BE=ZRA=1+-HLEE
—E--F —EC-FRF 2020 2019 2018
+=ZA=t—-H ftZA=1+-H RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
LEE  LAER  -T-FF  —F-AE —E-)\E
ARBTRT AREBTr ARETHT AR%Tr ARETR
Revenue g
- Continuing operations —RHEREER 494,280 397,021 642,012 1,054,065 1,159,060
- Discontinued operations —RIEREXHK - - - - -
494,280 397,021 642,012 1,054,065 1,159,060
(Loss)/profit attributable /NI S
to equity shareholders (B#]) /&7
of the Company
- Continuing operations —BEELEK (367,967) (635,095)  (1,279,095) (261,575) 27,234
- Discontinued operations —mﬂ:ﬁ% £ - - - - -
(367,967) (635,095) (1,279,095) (261,575) 27,234
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EERAE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020 AS_alt 31 March
RMB'000 RMEB'000 A e
2020 2019 2018
R-B--F RZT_TF RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
+=B=t-B +tZA=+-B ZT-TF C—E-hE ZT-NF
ARETRE AREBTT ARETT AREFTRT ARETR
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE 7,058,735 6,397,191 6,669,619 7,199,981 7,279,287___
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE 150,710 687,307 721,565 1,061,670 1,200,911
DEDUCT: L
CURRENT LIABILITIES REERE 2,789,331 2,733,966 2,645,748 2,040,450 1,932,084
NET CURRENT MEEEFE
LIABILITIES (2,638,621) (2,046,659) (1,924,183) (978,780) (731,173_)__
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,420,114 4,350,532 4,745,436 6,221,201 6,548,114
DEDUCT: L
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EnRBatE 2,611,854 2,312,560 2,036,718 2,132,976 2,162,515
NET ASSETS EEFH 1,808,260 2,037,972 2,708,718 4,088,225 4,385,599

Annual Report 2021

-

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited




CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Century
Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the audited results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2021, despite the recurrence of COVID-19 pandemic,
the overall trend was upward and optimistic. Domestic
consumer market continues to recover in the PRC. Due to the
intermittent impact of the pandemic, the online brick-and-
mortar retail sales increased significantly and faster than the
offline ones. That being said, thanks to a series of initiatives
to promote consumption and more precise and effective
pandemic prevention measures by the government, offline
physical retail operations generally sustained growth. Driven
by the overall environment of stable pandemic prevention
and control in Xi'an, where the Group principally operate
its businesses, and the 14th National Games, the consumer
market across the city maintained a recovery momentum
reflected by the released consumer demand, and the optimised
consumer market structure.

Faced with the impact of the pandemic and fierce industry
competition, the Group kept upholding the philosophy of “To
do the best, and never change”, made steady strides towards
efficient development, and adopted a series of measures to
enhance its core competitiveness. We have been emphasising
the “customer-centered” concept. In this sense, we pay
attention to the smallest details to improve service quality, and
optimise store operation model. In addition, we strengthen risk
awareness, improve management mechanism, and increase
management efficiency.

Based on the characteristics of the commercial districts where
the existing commercial projects are located, the Group
specified the strategic positioning of “one store, one plan”. It
initiated and steadily advanced the comprehensive renovation
and upgrading of its two stores in Xi'an, which are to be built
as an influential urban life art center and a national cultural
and tourism benchmark project, respectively.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ETEHE

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

While consolidating its core business, the Group focuses
on the development and expansion of asset-light business
and community fresh business. During the Year, thanks to
the efforts of the operation team, the Harbour City project
attracted several brands signing up to settle in, including 6
brands that entered Xi'an for the first time. The influence of
the project has been rapidly increased by building original IPs,
enhancing the themed atmosphere of the block, and carrying
out cross-industry activities in combination with current hot
spots. As a result, it has become a PLAY commercial block
integrating entertainment experience, social gatherings and
nighttime culture for petty bourgeoisie life, attracting a large
number of young trend-seeking customers. Xi'an Ginwa Fresh
Supermarket opened a total of 5 stores during the year. It
focuses on the community fresh business, combined with
selected products, to lead to a quality life while providing
shopping convenience for high-level customers.

With the normalisation of pandemic prevention and control,
the Group accelerated its digital upgrade process. The delivery-
to-home business was quickly promoted after its official launch
in the first half of the year, achieving the sales of nearly RMB10
million; WeChat mini-programs, such as “Century Ginwa +"
and “Ginwa Fresh”, provide customers with more immensely
enjoyable shopping experience and convenient and considerate
services.

While striving to improve performance, the Group makes
active efforts to fulfil its social responsibilities. Under the
impact of the pandemic in Xi'an at the end of the year, the
operating stores under Ginwa Fresh Supermarkets in Xi'an
city and Xianyang city allocated more daily necessities and
distribution personnel to provide a strong guarantee for the
pandemic prevention efforts of the community.

FUTURE AND OUTLOOK

In the post-pandemic era, the dual circulation system pattern,
which focuses on domestic macro-circulation, is gaining
momentum. Consumption behavior and consumer market
have undergone profound changes, which contributes to the
inevitability of online and offline integration. The accelerated
development of new business models and smart retail is
becoming an industry consensus.
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FUTURE AND OUTLOOK (continued)

The Company redefines the existing commercial projects
that each project has its own unique characteristics, and
becomes a commercial complex focusing on the purpose-
based consumption of a certain customer group, thereby
transforming into an urban destination center. While doubling
its efforts in the principal business of department stores and
shopping malls, it believes in the development approach
of neighborhood-centered convenience stores, and strives
to expand the community fresh business, and amplify its
coverage. It aims to build a life gathering center within the
radius of the community, based on three dimensions of health,
organic nutrition and life services.

The asset-light project will also be paralleled with the principal
business. Based on the future urban development and the
distribution of consumption power, the Group will actively
secure asset-light projects with a certain scale, and export
outstanding operating capabilities to ensure the overwhelming
market share of Century Ginwa in the future and enhance its
brand influence.

In the future, the Group will speed up its digital business
process, enhance user experience, develop new marketing
and interaction models, and improve the membership system.
We will continue to refine our ability to access information
and integrate resources, acquire keen insights. Leveraging on
strong brand strength, accumulated resources and outstanding
operational efficiency, we will achieve good financial
performance, so as to promote the long-term healthy and
sustainable development of the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would also like to extend my sincere
thanks to our shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers,
bankers and business associates for their continued strong
support.

Huang Shunxu
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWK DM

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the period under review, the performance of the Group
was illustrated as follows.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

/

Gross revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 was RMB1,316.4 million as compared
to RMB1,282.0 million for the nine months ended 31
December 2020.

Annualised area efficiency (annualised gross revenue
per average operating area of department stores) for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was RMB21,800 per
square meter, as compared to RMB20,600 per square
meter for the nine months ended 31 December 2020.

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 was RMB494.3 million as compared to RMB397.0
million for the nine months ended 31 December 2020.

The gross rental income and management and
administrative service fee income of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 were RMB110.0 million,
as compared to RMB77.6 million for the nine months
ended 31 December 2020.

The Group’s loss from operations (EBIT) for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was RMB189.1 million as
compared to loss of RMB603.0 million for the nine
months ended 31 December 2020. The operating
profit margin (loss from operations over gross revenue)
changed from -47.0% to -14.4%.

Net finance costs of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 were RMB169.8 million (nine months
ended 31 December 2020: RMB115.8 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL RESULTS (continued)

(vii)  The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December
2021 and loss attributable to shareholders of the
Company were RMB381.4 million (nine months ended
31 December 2020: RMB665.2 million) and RMB368.0
million (nine months ended 31 December 2020:
RMB635.1 million) respectively. The Group’s loss for the
year ended 31 December 2021 decreased significantly,
which was mainly due to the impairment losses on
goodwill and intangible assets decreased to RMB72.0
million (nine months ended 31 December 2020:
RMB365.9 million) and the non-recurrence of provisions
for obligation from Cash Coupon Card (customers’
prepaid cards within the Group’s department stores,
shopping mall and supermarkets) to be consumed (nine
months ended 31 December 2020: RMB194.5 million).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's consolidated net
asset value was RMB1,808.3 million (31 December 2020:
RMB2,038.0 million). As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
cash at bank and on hand amounting to RMB36.5 million (31
December 2020: RMB393.6 million). The current ratio of the
Group as at 31 December 2021 was 0.05 (31 December 2020:
0.25). The gearing ratio, being bank and other borrowings and
lease liabilities less cash at bank and on hand divided by the
total equity, as at 31 December 2021, was 2.13 (31 December
2020: 1.38).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back at the reporting period, the PRC retail industry
faced and will continue to face challenges and be subject
to internal and external factors including macroeconomic
fluctuation, government policy guidance, rapid growth of
other retail channels such as e-commerce and rising costs in
the short term.

By adhering to the principle of managing its financial
resources in a prudent manner, the Group will optimise its cost
structure, improve its management efficiency and strengthen
its capability. It will strive to make progress in the PRC market
which is full of opportunities and challenges, in order to
create values for its customers and maximise the returns to its
shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWK DM

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

For the year ended 31 December, 2021, the Company did not
make any material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group did not hold any significant investments.

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, property and equipment with an
aggregate net book value of approximately RMB2,844.0
million (31 December 2020: RMB2,743.0 million), investment
property amounting to RMB1,265.3 million (31 December
2020: RMB1,265.3 million) and cash at bank and on hand
amounting to RMB1.0 million (31 December 2020: RMB282.9
million) of the Group had been pledged to secure the Group’s
bank and other borrowings.

MATERIAL PLAN FOR INVESTMENT OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group intends to expand its retail operations via opening
of new branches. The source of funding will be primarily from
the proceeds from bank and other borrowings.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue
generated and costs incurred from the Group’s operation of
department stores, shopping mall and supermarkets were in
Renminbi. The Directors believe that the Group was not subject
to any significant exposure to foreign exchange risk as most
of the transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group were
denominated in Renminbi.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROPERTY HELD FOR INVESTMENT

The Group leased out an non-freehold investment property
under operating leases for commercial use (shopping mall). It is
held under medium term lease and located in Blocks 1 and 3,
Saigo Shopping Centre, South of Feng Cheng Wu Road, West
of Wei Yang Road, Economic and Technological Development
Zone, Xi'an City, Shaanxi Province, The PRC.

FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, due to the impact of numerous uncertainties in
domestic and international economy (especially the COVID-19
epidemic, which has not been completely solved), the current
situation may not be greatly improved in the short term.
However, leveraging the restart and revival of the national
economy coupled with the positive guidance and stimulation
of the government departments on the consumption capacity,
we believe that the consumption capacity will be further
released.

Favoured by the overall circumstances, the Company will also
diversify its business for increasing its profit, further develop
its brand agency business, introduce well-known domestic
and foreign brands to enter the northwest market, so as to
provide consumers with more quality choices and provide
operational management services to the franchise stores. By
reducing channels to directly provide goods to consumers,
the pattern of profit distribution will be changed. With our
strong brand strength, outstanding operating efficiency, good
financial performance and loyal customer base, we believe the
Company will maintain its leading position in the marketplace
among the industry and generate better returns for our
shareholders.

The Company will also adjust its strategy and formulate
corresponding policies in a timely manner in the face of many
unfavorable conditions.

In the aspect of existing business expansion, based on the
successful practice and experience of the trendy department
store and the supermarket business of the Group, we will
continue to strive for the healthy growth of scale for coverage
of second- and third-tier cities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWK DM

FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK (continued)

In the aspect of business diversification which increases profit
sources, we will further develop brand agency business and
introduce well-known domestic and foreign brands to enter
the northwest market, so as to provide consumers with more
quality choices and provide operational management services
to the franchise stores. By reducing channels to directly provide
goods to consumers, the pattern of profit distribution will be
changed. With our strong brand strength, strong management
practice ability, superior geographical position and a large
number of loyal customer bases, we are confident that the
Company will maintain its leading position in the industry and
generate better returns for our shareholders.

Looking back at the reporting period, the challenges in
the PRC retail industry have intensified and the industry
will be subject to internal and external factors including
macroeconomic fluctuation, government policy guidance, rapid
growth of other retail channels such as e-commerce, rising
operational costs, capital liquidity shortages and financing
difficulties.

By adhering to the principle of managing its financial
resources in a prudent manner, the Group will optimise its cost
structure, improve its management efficiency and strengthen
its capability. It will strive to make progress in the PRC market
which is full of opportunities and challenges, in order to
create values for its customers and maximise the returns to its
shareholders.

Cooperation with Investment Fund

After successful introduction of Hony Capital, a leading
private-equity firm in China sponsored by Legend Holdings,
in late 2010 to acquire the Company’s convertible bonds
amounting to HK$1,330.5 million, the cooperation between
Hony Capital and the Group has become closer. In December
2012, Hony Capital had not only made additional capital
contribution to the Group of US$60 million (approximately
HK$470 million) for business expansion and as working capital,
but also used all of its existing convertible bonds to subscribe
for non-redeemable convertible preferred shares which
reduced the debt burden of the Group, substantially increased
shareholders’ capital and strengthened the financial position.
As at the date of this annual report, Hony Capital held 28.07%
of the Company’s ordinary share capital in issue and was the
Company'’s second largest shareholder.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Optimize business structure and focus on the concept
of new retail

In the reporting period, the Company focused on the concept
of new retail, to achieve “technology upgrades, service
upgrades, management upgrades”. In the specific business
operations, brand adjustment, membership recruitment,
service techniques, teams of talents and other aspects, the
Company will abandon the original inertial thinking, and
constantly adopt new technologies and new methods to
achieve new breakthroughs in all aspects; at the same time,
the Company will implement planning and design in precise
marketing, management effectiveness, safety operations,
and other aspects one by one, and achieve the matching
of responsibilities and rights. Specific strategies include the
following five aspects:

Strategy I: Plan implementation. Thoroughly complete the
various business indicators of the year 2021. In the aspect of
brand adjustment, we must complete the brand adjustment
plan of 2021 according to the time node. It also clarifies the
overall operational planning work in the future.

Strategy Il: Active expansion. Continue to promote the work of
Xi'an's global center project in an orderly manner. At the same
time, on the basis of comprehensive investigations, we will
continue to explore expansion projects in second- and third-tier
cities in the Shaanxi province.

Strategy lll: Capital protection. Strengthen revenue, use new
types of financing channel tools, optimise the receivable
turnover period and create a healthy capital liquidity
environment.

Strategy IV: Driven innovation. Integrate consumer finance
and internet financial products; meanwhile analyse the
consumption behavior data of members, and develop the
mobile application of shopping guides.

Strategy V: Management effectiveness. Fully embody the
corporate culture effectiveness, performance management
effectiveness and communication mechanism efficiency, and
integrate the application of new management technologies.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group’s contingent liabilities are disclosed in note 31 to
the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
in respect of the reporting period (nine months ended 31
December 2020: HK$Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWK DM

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the number of the Group’s staffs
was approximately 2,500 (31 December 2020: 6,100),
including approximately 1,050 (31 December 2020: 1,300)
directly employed full time employees, and the remaining
being concession sales staffs managed on behalf of the
suppliers. Most of the employees are employed in Mainland
China. The directly employed employees’ remuneration,
promotion and salary increments are assessed based on
both the Group's performance and the professional and
working experience of the individual as well as by reference
to prevailing market practice and standards. Apart from the
general remuneration package, the Group also grants share
options and discretionary bonus to the eligible staffs based
on their performance and contribution to the Group. The
Group regards high-calibre staffs as one of the key factors to
corporate success. Details of staff costs of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 6 to the
financial statements.

IMPACTS OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC

By the end of 31 December 2021, the ongoing COVID-19
pandemic and the outbreaks in some provinces in the PRC
has brought additional uncertainties in the Group’s operating
environment and has impacted the Group's operations and
financial position.

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact of the
developments on the Group’s business and has put in place
contingency measures. In view of the pandemic-driven
economic downturn, the Group assessed the situation and
adhered to the principles of reducing costs and enhancing
operational efficiency.

As a result of the measures that were implemented to control
the spread of COVID-19, the shopping habits of the general
public have changed, resulting in the business operation of
the Group being significantly impacted and it is expected that
it will take time for the Group’s business operation to fully
recover, which may result in additional impairment losses on
goodwill and intangible assets. The directors of the Company
believe that the consumption and economy in the PRC will
gradually recover as the pandemic calms down. The new
normal in consumption derived from COVID-19, on the other
hand, will change the operating principles and landscape of
the retail industry in the long run. To maintain the freshness of
the businesses, the Group will remain vigilant at all times, stay
close to market trends and timely adjust our operating model.
The Group will continue to closely monitor the situation and
implement contingency measures, where necessary in a view to
reduce the impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Shunxu (“Mr. Huang”)

Mr. Huang, aged 40, was appointed as an executive Director
and the Chairman of the Board on 24 June 2020. He was
also appointed as a member and the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Board on 30 October 2020. Mr.
Huang graduated from Xi‘an Jiaotong University in 2007 and
Northwest University in 2015. He holds a bachelor’s degree in
international trade and economics/information and computing
science, a master's degree in finance, and a doctorate in
political economy. Mr. Huang is experienced in financial affairs.
Mr. Huang has joined Xi’an Qujiang Cultural Financial Holdings
(Group) Co., Ltd.* (LTI XL RITER (EE)ERQ
A]) since September 2018 and is currently chairman of the
board. From 2009 to 2017, Mr. Huang worked at the finance
office of Xi'an Economic & Technological Development Zone.
From 2007 to 2009, Mr. Huang worked at the Shaanxi branch
of China Development Bank.

Mr. Qin Chuan (“Mr. Qin")

Mr. Qin, aged 59, was appointed as an executive Director and
the chief executive officer of the Company on 21 October
2019. He was an executive Director from November 2001
to March 2006. He ceased to be a Director since March
2006 to 20 October 2019. He currently holds directorships
at certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Qin graduated in
Shaanxi Radio & Television University majoring in mechanical
engineering in 1987 and obtained a degree of Master of
Business Administration in China Europe International Business
School graduated in 2005. Mr. Qin has rich experience in
investment, finance and listed companies’ management.
He joined Ginwa Investments Holding Group Ltd. (“Ginwa
Investments”) in 1995 and was the vice-president of Ginwa
Investments from 2011 to March 2021. Mr. Qin has worked
in Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc. (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code: 600080) since 1995
and is currently the assistant to the president. He was the
director of Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc. from May 2011 to
October 2018.
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Biographies of Directors
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Ms. Wan Qing (“Ms. Wan")

Ms. Wan, aged 44, was appointed as an executive Director
on 24 June 2020. She currently holds directorships at
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Wan graduated
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and Xi’an
Jiaotong University. She holds a master’s degree in business
administration. Ms. Wan has obtained certain professional
qualifications in the PRC including certified public accountant
and certified tax agent. Ms. Wan is experienced in financing,
finance and mergers and acquisitions. She joined the Group
since 2008, and holds the positions as financial controller
and deputy general manager of Century Ginwa Co., Ltd.. In
June 2020, Ms. Wan was appointed as a vice president of the
Group. From 2002 to 2008, Ms. Wan worked in a reputable
accounting firm in the PRC and was responsible for audit
work.

Mr. Li Yang (“Mr. Li")

Mr. Li, aged 41, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 24 June 2020. Mr. Li graduated from Tongji University
and Northwest A&F University. He holds a master’s degree in
civil engineering and a doctorate in economic management.
Mr. Li has obtained certain professional qualifications in the
PRC, including funds practitioner, securities practitioner and
insurance practitioner. Mr. Li is experienced in financial affairs
and mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Li has joined Xi'an Qujiang
Cultural Financial Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd.* (Fa%#iT
Xte @iz (SE) BB AF) since January 2019 and is
currently the general manager. From August 2017 to January
2019, Mr. Li worked at Shaanxi Investment and Financing
Guarantee Co., Ltd.* (PRERMEERBREMERLT) as
the deputy general manager and deputy executive manager.
From 2016 to 2017, Mr. Li worked at Shaanxi Financial Asset
Management Co., Ltd.* (PrAAcREEZTIERMDERAR) .
From 2014 to 2016, Mr. Li worked at the Shaanxi branch of
China Development Bank Securities Co., Ltd.* (BHEEHFER
F{E/A7E]) . From 2005 to 2014, Mr. Li worked at the Shaanxi
branch of China Development Bank.
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Mr. Chen Shuai (“Mr. Chen”)

Mr. Chen, aged 48, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company on 3 December 2010. He was also appointed
as a member of each of the audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Company on 7 January 2011 and the
nomination committee of the Company on 7 March 2012.
He currently holds directorships at certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Chen joined Hony Capital in 2003. As at the date of this
annual report, Hony Capital, through Glory Keen Holdings
Limited, was beneficially interested in (i) 322,727,272 ordinary
shares of the Company, representing approximately 28.07% of
the number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue, and (ii)
1,177,068,181 convertible preferred shares of the Company.
Mr. Chen directs city services, hotel management, investments
in financial services, culture and media, consumer goods and
retail and construction material sectors of Hony Capital. Mr.
Chen has extensive experience in investment management,
supplier management and retail business.

Prior to joining Hony Capital in 2003, Mr. Chen had worked
in an investment company, a PRC retail chain and department
store and a PRC domestic comprehensive supermarket
company. Mr. Chen holds an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from The China Europe International
Business School. He received his bachelor degree in Economics
from Beijing Forestry University. Currently, Mr. Chen acts as a
director of Shanghai SMI Holding Co., Ltd. (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code: 600649) and
Shanghai Environment Group Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code: 601200).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai (“Mr. Tsang”)

Mr. Tsang, aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 25 September 2008.
Mr. Tsang is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. Mr. Tsang has over 20 years of experience in accounting
and finance. At present, he practices public accounting.

Mr. Tsang is currently the company secretary of Green
International Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code: 2700).

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng (“Mr. Ruan”)

Mr. Ruan, aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 15 May 2015. Mr. Ruan
is currently the Deputy General Manager of Bozhi Technology
(Beijing) Limited.

Mr. Ruan was the senior investment manager of Hony Capital
from 2003 to 2009. He previously worked in ZTE Capital
and TCL Ventures as vice president and executive director
respectively and served as a law lecturer mainly for corporate
law, tax law and securities law in the arts and law faculty in
Beijing University of Chemical Technology. During that period,
he was a part-time lawyer in a number of law firms. He has
solid legal practice experience and is familiar with corporate
governance, corporate finance and investment, mergers
and acquisition, business restructuring. He holds a master
of business administration degree from the China Europe
International Business School and a bachelor degree and a
master of economic law degree from the Law School of lJilin
University.
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Ms. Song Hong (“Ms. Song")

Ms. Song, aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company and a member of the
nomination committee of the Board on 30 October 2020.
She graduated from Nankai University in 1990 with a double
bachelor’'s degree in tourism economic management and
sociology. She completed the EMBA program from the
Guanghua School of Management, Peking University in
2000. Ms. Song has nearly 30 years of experience in logistics
management and procurement. Ms. Song served as the
vice president and chief operating officer of Zhuhai Apex
Technology Co., Ltd. (HREBMNER=EHKHERRF)
(currently named as Ninestar Corporation, a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code: 002180) and
Zhuhai Seine Technology Co., Ltd. (ZR/EEHNITENEIE K G
EBRAR]) from 2016 to 2017. She worked at Hony Capital
from November 2008 to 2015, during which she served as
the founding partner and managing director of Beijing Hony
Yuanfang Investment Consultants Ltd. (dbFoAZEFIEE
EERBBRAF]), a subsidiary of Hony Capital, as well as the
vice president of Lenovo Mobile Co., Ltd., the president of
Shenzhen Longhao Co., Ltd. (GRIIBEEBRAF]) (currently
named as Shenzhen Longhao Tiandi Co., Ltd. (RIITEESE X
B BRAE]) ) and the president of King Hero Limited (%
HBRAT]) (a company established in the British Virgin Islands
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) for which
the companies were invested by Hony Capital. She worked
for Lenovo Group from 1998 to 2007, responsible for logistics
management and procurement business, and served as the vice
president of the global logistics department.
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Directors’ Report
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and those of the subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Environmental protection

In order to promote corporate governance, drive environmental
protection proactively, facilitate relationships among
stakeholders and contribute to the society, the management
has established Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Committee to set targets, policies, procedures and
guidelines for ESG related matters so as to promote the
sustainable development of the community where the Group’s
business is operated. Five Task Forces are set up under the
ESG Committee. Members in the Task Forces come from
the elites of relevant departments responsible for assisting
the ESG Committee in promotion of the corresponding ESG
related matters, establishment of key performance indicators
and periodic effectiveness assessment. ESG Committee is
responsible to report to the board of directors periodically the
status of execution and recommendations of improvements.

The Group has set up an energy conservation project team to
implement a number of energy saving and emission reduction
measures in offices, department stores and supermarkets to
reduce electricity consumption, discharge of pollutants, and
to avoid wastage of resources. For achieving the concept of
“Green management and balanced development”, the Group
will continue to review and monitor the implementation of each
measure, and optimise the measures based on their effectiveness.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group has ensured and will continue to ensure full
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on its operations, including but not
limited to laws and regulations in relation to product safety
and liabilities, customer rights protection, employment and
occupational safety and laws and regulations relating to
property leasing and property management.

The management will monitor the impact of any changes in
the relevant laws and regulations from time to time and seek
external advice if considered necessary.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group is engaged in the operation of department stores,
a shopping mall and supermarkets in the PRC. The risks
associated include burglary, fire, significant incidents, cash
storage and in transit. The Group has followed relevant laws
and regulations to set up security measures to lower the
chance of these risks, to protect the security of human lives
and inventories and to minimise any loss.

For other risks, such as credit risks, interest rate risks, liquidity
risks, currency risks and equity price risks, and risk reduction
measures, please refer to “Financial Risk Management and Fair
Value” in note 29 to the financial statements.

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group firmly believes that maintaining good relationship
with key stakeholders (including employees, customers,
vendors, governing bodies and shareholders) is the key
element to ensure long-term success and continual profit
growth.

(1) Employees
Employees are the most important and valuable assets
of the Group. The Group has established comprehensive
talent recruitment and sound performance appraisal
polices to reward and recognise performing employees
with competitive remuneration package, and to
promote them with career development and progression
by appropriate training and providing them with equal
opportunities within the Group for career development.

(2) Customers

Our customers come from buyers of department stores.
Through good standards of the look, appearance and
actions of employees, the Group creates a good service
model to customers. The Group not only devotes to
set up a consistent labelling system and clear pricing
system, but also endeavors to eradicate the selling of
fake and inferior quality products. The Group treasures
complaints and comments from customers. In order
to provide excellent customer services and to increase
market share and business expansion, the Group has set
up various channels to strengthen the communication
with customers, including customer satisfactory surveys,
customer opinion cards and website of the Company.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Relationships with key stakeholders (continued)

(3) Goods suppliers and services providers

The Group adheres to open, fair and transparent criteria
in choosing goods suppliers and services providers and
has set up a vendor evaluation system. The evaluation
will base on prices, quality, costs, delivery and after-sales
services after strict execution of purchase procedures
and goods/service inspection standards. In order to
ensure sustainable quality of goods and service supply,
the Group will carry out continual monitoring and
periodic examination of all vendors.

(4) Regulators

The Group operates in the retail business through
different department stores which are subject to the
jurisdictions of the national and local regulators.
Along with compliance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations, each department store of the Group
has taken steps to ensure that relevant local concerns,
customs and changes of laws or regulations have been
accounted for.

(5) Shareholders

For communication, shareholders may contact the
Group via “contact us” section of the website of the
Company. Besides, the Group will also communicate
with shareholders through printed or online version
of notices, announcements, annual and interim
reports. Annual general meeting provides a forum for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss and cash flows of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 and the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are set out in the
financial statements on pages 146 to 155.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021, the nine months ended 31
December 2020 and the three years ended 31 March 2020,
2019, 2018 and the assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31
March 2018, 2019, 2020 and 31 December 2020, 2021 are set
out on page 6.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 28 to
the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set
out in note 28 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves (including
retained profits, if any, and contributed surplus, subject to
equity shareholders’ approval) amounting to RMB995,255,000
(31 December 2020: RMB995,255,000) were available for
distribution to the Company’s shareholders. In addition,
the share premium of the Company in the amount of
approximately RMB1,136,595,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB1,136,595,000) may be distributed in form of fully paid
bonus shares.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF scheme, each of
the Group and its employees make monthly contribution to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer’s
and the employee’s contributions are subject to a cap of
monthly earnings of HK$30,000 and thereafter contributions
are voluntary. As stipulated by the rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
plans for its employees in the PRC. The Group contributes to
retirement plans at specified percentages of the basic salaries
of its employees, and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

Directors’ Report

EEEHE

MBHRE

AEERBE_T-_—F+-_A=1+—H
HFE -BE-_T-TF+— H +— EIJt

NEARBE-ZT_TF. —NF =
E-NEF=A=1— EIJJ:_1I¢F§*Z?$/:|\

XE URAERER-_ZF—N\F —F—1
FRZFEFF=-_A=1— E&_g_g
FNZE - —F+_A=t—HZEAEHR
BEMEHENFR -

[N
AR E—_E-_—F+-_A=+—81t
FRERA S FFBE N TR KM T
28

fr 15
RRERAR 72@%%@1_;:—¢

f’w&%ﬂﬁ.ﬁzg o

RZE-Z—F+=A=+—H8B &R
1\’7},@%%&%2%{%(&%%5/@
%J(Zzum&f%ﬁz)\”ﬁﬁ(,,\ 1SR 3R 2 #t
) )7,%/\1%%995,255,0007c (ZE=F
F+—-A=+—H: AR®995,255,000
TC) o WAN A RR 2R BEEELHAA
K #1,136,595,000c (ZE=ZEF+—H
=+—H: AR¥1,136,595,0007T) * A LA
BERAKRER DK -

iR k48 R
AEBELZHEFZEREZMAHMEATES
it ([efEestdl]) - BB 8 A%
VEFEANEE 2 ERMKEE - RIBRE
ZFHE KEI&EEE\KQ/AtHBﬂE
BFe (EERBIMEREEREN)H5%
tE AR &I {EE&E,\Zf RAE A
¥ £30,000/8 T4 LR - S A F B FRIERE
SMER - RIFH BDERMOER 2 BTE - K&
B REPEESRERE BRI EEL
T e K%lﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁ$ FE LB E B
7 LR RZ R IR BIE 43R BRUEIASN - 1
?ﬁii&-i?ﬁﬁf#&&ﬁﬁﬁkiIﬁiﬁi{éhﬂz
BE-BREBRNEHE LREKE
BEXfEREZ2HMEE-

RS EEEERERAT
—E-—FEH

L



Directors’ Report

EEEHE

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 24 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company or his/her connected entities had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at 31 December 2021
or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company who held office during the year

ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Shunxu (Chairman)
Mr. Qin Chuan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Qi Yong (resigned on 7 June 2021)

Ms. Wan Qing

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Li Yang
Mr. Chen Shuai

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng
Ms. Song Hong
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company,
one-third of the directors of the Company for the time being
should retire at each annual general meeting from office
by rotation, Mr. Huang Shunxu, Mr. Li Yang and Ms. Wan
Qing will retire from office of Directors by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from the Independent Non-Executive Directors,
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng and Ms. Song Hong,
and considers them to be independent for the year ended 31
December 2021. The Company considers that each of such
Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent from
the Group based on the Guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”).

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set
out on pages 17 to 21.

None of the directors had entered into any service contract
with any member of the Group which is not terminable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT AND TOP FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the directors and top five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the financial statements.

Details of the remuneration of the current senior management
of the Company by band for the year ended 31 December
2021 are set out as follows:
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Reference is made to the circular of the Company dated 11
January 2022 regarding the major and connected transactions
in relation to entering into the lease contract (the “Lease
Contract”) as the lessee in respect of the Premises located
in Xi'an, the PRC. On 30 November 2021, Xi‘an Honghui
Property Management Company Limited Qujiang New
District Branch* (FAZBIEYEEEGRARMIIERD A7)
("Honghui Property”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into the Lease Contract with Xi‘an
Jinmeida Commercial Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (7
ToXEFNEMEMEBRAF) (“Jinmeida”) in respect
of the Premises located in Xi'an, the PRC, pursuant to which
Jinmeida has agreed to lease, and Honghui Property has
agreed to rent the commercial block of No.9 Street, Qujiang
Harbour City, No. 659 Yannanyilu, Qujiang New District, Xi'an
for a term of two years, being from 1 February 2022 to 31
January 2024. The total rental payable by the lessee during
the lease term is RMB95.7243 million (tax inclusive). As at the
date of the Lease Contract, Qujiang Financial Holdings, who
indirectly holds approximately 29.24% of the ordinary shares
in issue of the Company through Qujiang Investment, is a
substantial shareholder of the Company; meanwhile, Qujiang
Financial Holdings indirectly holds approximately 88.28%
of equity interest in Jinmeida, thus Jinmeida is a connected
person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

In respect of the connected transactions, the Company
has complied with all requirements (including disclosure
requirements) of the Listing Rules (as amended from time to
time).

Further details of the significant related party transactions
undertaken in the normal course of business of the Group
are provided under note 32 to the financial statements. Save
as disclosed above, none of these related party transactions
constitutes a connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction as defined under the Listing Rules that is required
to be disclosed.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

(@) Long positions in the shares of the Company
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Long position in the share options of the
Company

In accordance with the terms of the share option
scheme adopted by the Company pursuant to an
ordinary resolution of the Company passed on 15
February 2011 (the “Share Option Scheme”), the
Company may grant options to the eligible person of
the Company to subscribe for shares of the Company,
subject to a maximum of 30% of the issued ordinary
share capital of the Company from time to time
excluding for this purpose shares issued in the exercise
of options for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to selected eligible person for their contribution
to the Group. The Share Option Scheme became
effective on 15 February 2011 and unless otherwise
cancelled or amended according to the Share Option
Scheme, would remain in force for 10 years from that
date. Eligible person under the Share Option Scheme
includes the following:—

(i) any director, employee or consultant of the
Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(ii) any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include any director, employee or
consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an
affiliate; or

(i)  a company beneficially owned by any director,
employee or consultant of the Company, a
subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(iv) any person or entity whose service to the
Group or business with the Group contributes
or is expected to contribute to the business or
operation of the Group as may be determined by
the directors from time to time.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Long position in the share options of the
Company (continued)

Without prior separate approval from the Company’s
shareholders, (i) the total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company must not exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval of the option limit; and (ii) the
maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible
person under the Share Option Scheme (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not (when aggregated with any shares of
the Company subject to options granted during such
period under any other share option scheme of the
Company) exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue for any time being.

Any grant of options to any directors, chief executive
or substantial shareholders (as such terms as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company, or any of their
respective associates under the Share Option Scheme
or any other share option scheme of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries shall be subject to the prior
approval of the independent non-executive directors
or shareholders of the Company as the case may be.
Without prior separate approval from the Company’s
shareholders, the maximum number of shares issued
and to be issued in respect of which options granted
and may be granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such grant shall not (i) exceed 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue on the date of such grant; and
(i) have an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant, in excess of HK$5 million.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Long position in the share options of the
Company (continued)

The exercise price of the share options shall be at least
the higher of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant; and (iii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant (subject to
Share Option Scheme adjustments).

As at 31 December 2021, there were no shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme. The Share
Option Scheme expired on 14 February 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, none of the directors or chief
executives of the Company had, under Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO, nor were they taken to or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO, any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or any interests which
are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange or any interests which are required to be entered
into the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO or are required pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Interests of shareholders discloseable pursuant to the SFO

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December
2021, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being
interests of 5% or more of the Company’s issued ordinary
share capital. These interests are in addition to those disclosed
above in respect of the directors or chief executives of the
Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued) FERRE(£)

L

(a) Long position/short position in the shares of the (a) AQXTARBZER EA&
Company
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Number of ordinary share
Long positions/ issued ordinary capital of
Name of shareholder short positions  Nature of interests shares held the Company
BADF
FrsE &7 BRATEER
RR&% RE/ER REtE LERYA REzBHBA L
Qujiang Cultural Financial Long positions Corporate interests 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.24%
International Investment Limited
MIXteRERREERAA KA NAER (K1)
Xi'an Qujiang Cultural Financial Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.24%
Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. B
BREIX S RER KB RREHZERAER (K1)
(5E)ERAA
Xi'an Qujiang New District Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.24%
Management Committee
BZMINEERZEE RkE RREHZERAER (Higt1)
Glory Keen Holdings Limited Long positions Corporate interests 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
("Glory Keen")
REmmaRAq ([RE]) KB DAER (Hit2)
Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
KB RREHZERFARER (Hi2)
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, LP. Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
KB RGBS AER (Hit2)
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
KB RREHZERAER (Hi2)
Hony Group Management Limited ~ Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
KRB REEHEERAER (Hit2)
Hony Managing Partners Limited  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
KB RREHEBR AR (Hi2)
Exponential Fortune Group Limited  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
KB REAHEERAER (Hit2)
Mr. Zhao John Huan Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
BRREE KB RREHEBR AR (Hi2)
HEETEHEERERL A
TEC-FER
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b) Long position/short position in the underlying (b)
shares of equity derivatives of the Company (as

/

defined in Part XV of the SFO) EHRBIZEXVER)
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Number of ordinary share

Long positions/ issued ordinary capital of

Name of shareholder short positions Nature of interests shares held the Company

BALT

e g BRTEER

RRER RE/ER BENE EBRAUE REzBHBA L

Glory Keen Holdings Limited Long positions Corporate interests 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
REARERAT RkE NAER (Hit3)

Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
K& REEHZERAER (Kit3)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, LP.  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
K& RREHZERAER (Ht3)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
K& REEHZERAER (Hit3)

Hony Group Management Limited ~ Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
K& REEHZERAER (Hit3)

Hony Managing Partners Limited  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
K& REEHZERAER (Hit3)

Exponential Fortune Group Limited  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
K& REEHZERAER (Hit3)

Mr. Zhao John Huan Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%

#oRE

KR

REEHEBRERL

(Hfi3)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b)

Long

position/short position in the underlying

shares of equity derivatives of the Company (as
defined in Part XV of the SFO) (continued)

Notes:

(1

Quijiang Cultural Financial International Investment
Limited held 336,166,156 Shares. Xi‘an Qujiang
Cultural Financial Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. holds
the entire issued share capital of Qujiang Cultural
Financial International Investment Limited. Each of
Xi‘an Qujiang New District Management Committee
and Xi‘an Qujiang Cultural Holding Company Limited
beneficially owns 80.05% and 19.95% equity interests
in Xi'an Qujiang Cultural Financial Holdings (Group)
Co. Ltd., respectively. Xi'an Qujiang New District
Management Committee owns 99.9% equity interest
in Xi'an Qujiang Cultural Holding Company Limited.
As such, Xi'an Qujiang Cultural Financial Holdings
(Group) Co. Ltd. and Xi'an Qujiang New District
Management Committee were deemed to be interested
in 336,166,156 Shares by virtue of their shareholding
in Qujiang Cultural Financial International Investment
Limited.

The long position of 322,727,272 Shares represents the
322,727,272 Shares held by Glory Keen. Hony Capital
Fund 2008, L.P. holds the entire issued share capital
of Glory Keen. Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. is the
sole general partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P.
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hony Group Management Limited, is
the sole general partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008
GP, L.P. Hony Managing Partners Limited owns 80%
equity interests in Hony Group Management Limited.
Hony Managing Partners Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. Mr.
Zhao John Huan holds 49% of the issued share capital
of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. Each of the
above-mentioned parties was therefore deemed to be
interested in the interest held by Glory Keen.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b) Long position/short position in the underlying
shares of equity derivatives of the Company (as
defined in Part XV of the SFO) (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(3) The long position of 1,294,774,999 underlying
Shares represents the interest in the 1,294,774,999
conversion shares which may be issued under the
Hony Convertible preferred shares. The exercise of the
conversion rights attaching to the Hony Convertible
preferred shares are subject to the restrictions as stated
in the paragraph headed “Other terms of the Preferred
Shares” under the section headed “Subscription
Agreement” in the circular dated 19 November 2012.

Save as disclosed above, the directors and chief executives of
the Company are not aware that there is any person who, as
at 31 December 2021, had an interest or short position in the
Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or who is, directly or indirectly, interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meeting of any other member of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors nor their
respective associates had any interest which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers taken together were
less than 30% of the Group’s total sales for the year ended
31 December 2021. The aggregate purchases attributable to
the Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers taken
together were less than 30% of the Group's total purchases
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest major customers
and suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws and the laws of Bermuda.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group was entered into or existed during the year ended 31
December 2021.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

None of the members of the Group was engaged in any
litigation, arbitration or claim of material importance in which
any member of the Group is a defendant and no litigation,
arbitration or claim of material importance was known to the
directors of the Company to be pending or threatened by or
against any member of the Group in which any member of
the Group is a defendant during the year ended 31 December
2021 and as at the date of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s shares in the market as required under the Listing
Rules.

AUDITOR

KPMG should retire at the end of their term of appointment
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. There has been no change in the auditor of the
Company during the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
Huang Shunxu

Executive Director
Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors’ confidence and maximizing shareholders’ returns.

The Board regularly reviews its corporate governance practices,
risk management and internal control policy and procedures
in order to meet the rising expectations of stakeholders and
comply with increasingly stringent regulatory requirements,
and to fulfill its commitment to corporate governance
excellence.

The Company had complied with the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2021 except
for certain deviations as set out below.

CG Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. None of the existing independent non-executive
Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term.
However, all the Directors (executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement
at least once every three years under Bye-Law 87(1) of the
Company. As such, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those
in the CG Code.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company thus
considers all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent for the year ended 31 December 2021.

CG Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. He should
also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration and
nomination committees to attend. The chairman of the Board
and the chairman of the remuneration committee were not
able to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 1 June 2021 (the "AGM") due to other important
business engagement. They had delegated the chief executive
officer to chair and be available to answer questions at the
AGM.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all the directors, all the directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

As at 31 December 2021 and the date of this annual report,
the Board is comprised of three executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors.

The members of the Board are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Shunxu (Chairman)

Mr. Qin Chuan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Qi Yong (resigned on 7 June 2021)
Ms. Wan Qing

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Li Yang
Mr. Chen Shuai

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng
Ms. Song Hong

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to
the affairs of the Group. Each executive Director is suitably
qualified for his position, and has sufficient experience to hold
his/her position so as to carry out his/her duties effectively and
efficiently. There are no relationships (financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships) between members of
the Board. Biographical information of the Directors are set out
in the section headed “Biographies of Directors” of this annual
report.
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OPERATIONS OF THE BOARD

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad
strategies, monitors and controls operating and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies to manage risks in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. According to CG
Code Provision A.1.1, the Board should meet regularly and
Board meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximate intervals. During the year ended 31 December
2021, the Board met regularly and frequently for the review
and approval on the business of department stores, shopping
mall and supermarkets. Details of Directors’ attendance of the
Board and the shareholders’ meetings held for the year ended
31 December 2021 are set out as follows:

EEg2EE
EFECRRETCEBEREERK B
RREREERMBRE UKGIEEE
MEBEERE UNERAEBENKER
B BIBEEEETRRXEANMEZHE
TEESRTHRETER MEFSLER
BEFRITRIONR HIEF— R -REE
_;_*$+ A=+—HIEFE &=

FHREERTE S URH REIL
é—fﬁf?ﬁ-ﬁ% By O RBRTIS 2 ¥R -
AREE T —F+_A=+—HLF
ERTZESETERAREAG EF 2
L sEHIAT

Board
Name of Director meetings AGM & SGM
KRR EF
rER
EsnR ExggE RRBHIKRE
Executive Directors
HITEF
Mr. Huang Shunxu 12/13 0/3
HIEE A
Mr. Qin Chuan 13/13 1/3
=) %kE
Mr. Qi Yong (retired on 7 June 2021) 4/6 0/2
WBBEE (RZE_—FNALHBET)
Ms. Wan Qing 13/13 0/3
S+
Non-Executive Directors
FHNTEF
Mr. Li Yang 10/13 0/3
F5RE
Mr. Chen Shuai 13/13 0/3
PR B 52 4
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUIHITESE
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 13/13 3/3
BEELEE
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 13/13 0/3
il 5% 4
Ms. Song Hong 13/13 0/3
REz+
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All Directors are provided with relevant materials relating to
the matters brought before the meetings. They have separate
and independent access to the senior management and the
company secretary of the Company at all times and may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
When queries are raised by Directors, steps would be taken
to respond as promptly and as fully as possible. All Directors
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda of
Board meetings. Notices of at least 14 days of Board meetings
are given to the Directors and Board procedures comply with
the Bye-Laws of the Company, as well as relevant rules and
regulations.

FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The overall management of the Company’s operation is vested
in the Board. The Board carries out its functions according to
the powers conferred upon it by the Bye-Laws of the Company
which is uploaded onto the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company, and since the date of uploading, no
significant changes have been made.

The main functions and duties conferred on the Board include:

management of the overall business and strategic
development;

—  deciding business plans and investment plans;

— convening general meetings and reporting to the
shareholders; and

-  exercising other powers, functions and duties conferred
by shareholders in general meetings.

The Board is responsible for fulfilling the corporate governance
responsibilities under D.3.1 of the CG Code. Regarding the
aforementioned functions, during the year, the following
works, inter alia, were performed by the Board: (i) reviewed
the Corporate Governance Report of the Company for 2020;
and(ii) reviewed the trainings and continuous professional
development undertaken by the Directors and senior
management.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer
and the senior management of the Company. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approvals
must be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the aforesaid officers.
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The Directors may have access to the advice and services
of the company secretary of the Company to ensure
that the board procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations, are followed. In addition, the Directors may, upon
reasonable request, seek independent professional advice
under appropriate circumstance at the Company’'s expense.
The Board shall resolve to provide separate, appropriate,
independent and professional advice to the Directors to assist
the relevant Directors in discharging their duties.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment to
Board meetings and scrutinizing the Group’s performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision. In
particular, they bring an impartial view to issues relating to the
Group's strategy, performance and control. All independent
non-executive Directors have extensive academic, professional
and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advice to the Board. The
independent non-executive Directors provide independent
advice on the Group's business strategy, results and
management to ensure that all interests of shareholders are
taken into account, and the interests of the Company and its
shareholders are protected.

The Board has three independent non-executive Directors
in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, which
requires that every board of directors of a listed issuer must
include at least three independent non-executive directors.
In addition, at least one independent non-executive Director,
namely, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, who has appropriate professional
accounting qualifications or financial management expertise
in accordance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The
Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing one-third of the Board, in compliance
with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from each of the existing independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations, the
Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent and that they have met the specific
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing in preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring
such accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cashflow for that period.
The Company’s accounts are prepared in accordance with all
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently; and that judgments and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will be given an induction
training so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the Group’s business and of his/her duties
and responsibilities under the Listing Rules and the relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Company also provides regular updates on the business
development of the Group. The Directors are regularly briefed
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In
addition, the Company has been encouraging the Directors
to enrol in professional development courses and seminars
relating to the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance and
corporate governance practices organised by professional
bodies or chambers in Hong Kong. All Directors are requested
to provide the Company with their respective training records
pursuant to the CG Code.

All Directors participated in appropriate continuous
professional development and refreshed their knowledge and
skills during the year ended 31 December 2021 for ensuring
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Such professional development was completed by
way of attending briefings, conference, courses, forum and
seminars, teaching, self-reading and participating in business-
related researches which are relevant to the business or
directors’ duties.
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During the reporting period, the Directors participated in the
following trainings:

RBERR BEEC 2B T

Type of
Name of Director training
EEHE EIER
Executive Directors
HITESE
Mr. Huang Shunxu A, B, C
EY RS
Mr. Qin Chuan A, B, C
=k AE
Mr. Qi Yong (resigned on 7 June 2021) A, C
WBELEE (RZE-_—FRNACHBET)
Ms. Wan Qing A, B, C
58+
Non-Executive Directors
FHITESE
Mr. Li Yang A, C
FlHEE
Mr. Chen Shuai A, B, C
BR B 5 A
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUFNITES
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai A, B, C
DEEEE
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng A, B, C
B B i 5E A
Ms. Song Hong A, B, C
R4+

A: Reading materials provided by the Company relating to
the updates on the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements relevant to the director’s duties
and responsibilities

B: Attending briefings/seminars/webinars/conferences
relevant to the director’s duties and responsibilities

C: Reading newspapers, journals and updates relating

to the economy, environment and social issues or the
director’s duties and responsibilities

//4—'
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
separate and are not performed by the same individual as this
ensures better checks and balances and hence better corporate
governance. Mr. Huang Shunxu serves as the chairman of the
Company, and Mr. Qin Chuan serves as the chief executive
officer of the Company.

The Chairman’s responsibility is to oversee the functioning of
the Board and the strategies and policies of the Group.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for monitoring the
daily operation and management of the Company.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from the listing date on 23 October 2000,
renewable automatically by three years on the expiry of such
term and every successive period of three years thereafter,
subject to the relevant provisions under the Company’s
amended and restated Bye-Laws requiring no less than one-
third of all the Directors (i.e. both executive and non-executive
Directors are included) to retire from office by rotation at each
annual general meeting of the Company, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers. Such insurance were in force during the reporting
period and as of the date of this report.

APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Shunxu, Mr. Qin Chuan and Ms. Wan Qing have
entered into service contracts with the Company for a specific
term, and all the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at an annual general meeting at least once
every three years in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the
Company.
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The Bye-Laws of the Company provide that any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board
shall hold office until the first annual general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting, and any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the (i) audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), (ii) remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and (iii) nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) with defined terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the board committees, which explain their
respective roles and the authorities delegated to them by
the Board, are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice and other assistance under appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Company, with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee shall consist of not less than 3 members.
Currently, the Audit Committee consists of two independent
non-executive Directors: Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and Mr. Ruan
Xiaofeng, and one non-executive Director, Mr. Chen Shuai. Mr.
Tsang Kwok Wai is the chairman of Audit Committee.

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to review
the financial reporting process of the Group and its risk
management and internal control system, oversee the audit
process and perform other duties assigned by the Board and
make recommendations for the Company to improve the
quality of financial information to be disclosed. It also reviews
the annual and interim reports of the Company prior to their
approval by the Board.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit
Committee reviewed the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and made a recommendation as
regards the appointment of the external auditor. In addition,
the Audit Committee, together with management and
independent auditors, have reviewed the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed auditing,
internal control and financial reporting matters including the
review of the audited results for the year ended 31 December
2021 and the unaudited interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2021 prior to their approval by the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, two meetings were
held by the Audit Committee. The attendance record of each
member of the Audit Committee at the meetings of the Audit
Committee is set out below:
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There had been no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December 2021.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee shall consist of not less than
two members. Currently, the Remuneration Committee
consists of two independent non-executive Directors: Mr. Ruan
Xiaofeng and Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and one non-executive
Director: Mr. Chen Shuai. Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.
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The primary duty of the Remuneration Committee is to
formulate the remuneration structure and policy of the Group,
to review the remuneration packages of executive Directors
and senior management, including bonuses and share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme, to ensure that such
remuneration is reasonable and not excessive. Generally, their
remunerations are determined based on their experience and
qualifications, the Group’s performance as well as market
conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration
Committee has, among other things, reviewed the
remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management of the Group and made recommendations to the
Board in relation to their remuneration package.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration
Committee had reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy and
reviewed the remuneration package of the executive Directors
and senior management for the year ended 31 December
2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, one meeting was
held by the Remuneration Committee. The attendance record

of each member of the Remuneration Committee at the
meetings of the Remuneration Committee is set out below:

Name of Director
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.

Currently, the Nomination Committee consists of one executive
Director: Mr. Huang Shunxu, one non-executive Director: Mr.
Chen Shuai and three independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng and Ms. Song
Hong. Mr. Huang Shunxu is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board at least
once a year and to identify (including not limited to engaging
independent search firm(s) to assist such identification)
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships. The Company
shall appoint at least one female director. Ms. Wan Qing and
Ms. Song Hong currently serve as Directors of the Company.
In identifying suitable director candidates and making such
recommendations to the Board, the Nomination Committee
would also take into account various aspects of a candidate,
including but not limited to his education background,
professional experience, experience with the relevant industry
and past directorships.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed the board’s structure, size and
composition to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills,
independence and experience appropriate to the requirements
of the business of the Company and reviewed the annual
confirmation of independence submitted by independent non-
executive Directors and assessed their independence. Also,
the Nomination Committee will also give consideration to
the Board Diversity Policy when identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board, and the Board
will review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, one meeting was
held by the Nomination Committee. The attendance record of
each member of the Nomination Committee at the meetings
of the Nomination Committee is set out below:

Name of Director

ESHS
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RELZEGRIT T —XAEH -RZEES
EXNERREZEESHNLFLHHT
N

Attendance/
Number of
Nomination
Committee
meetings
HE/RE
ZEg
BR¥A

Mr. Huang Shunxu
= IR4E KL

Mr. Chen Shuai
BRED &4

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
LEIR KL

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng
B & 5t A&

Ms. Song Hong
REL L+

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company has re-appointed KPMG as its external auditor
during the year ended 31 December 2021. The external
auditor is refrained from engaging in non-audit services except
for specific approved items, such as review of interim results
of the Group. The Audit Committee reviews the external
auditor’s statutory audit scope and non-audit services and
approves its fees. A remuneration of RMB4,200,000 was paid/
payable to KPMG for the provision of annual audit and review
of interim results services, a remuneration of RMB700,000 was
paid/payable to KPMG for the provision of other non-audit
services (providing service regarding the circular for the
Group's Lease Contract) in the year ended 31 December 2021.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, supported by the chief financial officer and the
finance department, is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and the Group for each
financial year which shall give a true and fair view of the
financial position, performance and cash flow of the Company
and its subsidiaries for that period. The Directors acknowledge
their responsibilities for preparing the accounts of the
Company and the Group. As at 31 December 2021, the Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of KPMG, the Company’s external auditor,
in relation to the financial statements are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Kee Wai has been informed of the requirement of
the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, and he confirmed that he
had attained no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 December 2021.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility of maintaining sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems
of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group had complied with of the Corporate Governance Code
by establishing appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. Management is responsible for the
design, implementation and monitoring of such systems so
as to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interest,
while the Board oversees management in performing its duties
on an ongoing basis. The Board is also responsible for ensuring
maintenance of proper accounting records to provide reliable
financial information and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. The main features of the risk management and
internal control systems are described in the sections below.
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Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

Identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the
achievement of objectives;

(i) Identification:

Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks
and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly;
and

(i) Evaluation:

Consider the risk responses, ensure
effective communication to the Board and
on-going monitor the residual risks.

(iif) Management:

Based on the risk assessments conducted during the year
ended 31 December 2021, no significant risk was identified.

Internal Control System

The Group has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (“COSO") 2013 framework. The
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The components of the framework are shown as follows:

A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for
carrying out internal control across
the Group;

(i) Control Environment:

A dynamic and iterative process
for identifying and analyzing risks
to achieve the Group’s objectives,
forming a basis for determining
how risks should be managed,;

(i) Risk Assessment:

Action established by policies
and procedures to help ensure
that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement
of objectives are carried out;

(iii) Control Activities:
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Internal and external communication
to provide the Group with the
information needed to carry out day-
to-day controls; and

(iv) Information and
Communication:

(v) Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations
to ascertain whether each component
of internal control is present and

functioning.

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the
Group also adopts and implements inside information policy
and procedures. Certain reasonable measures have been taken
from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to
prevent a breach of disclosure requirements in relation to the
Group, which include:

(i) The access of information is restricted to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis.
Employees who are in possession of inside information
are fully conversant with their obligations to preserve
confidentiality;

(i) Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations;

(iii) The executive Directors are designated persons who
speak on behalf of the Company when communicating
with external parties such as the media, analysts or
investors; and

(iv) Unless the information falls within the “Safe Harbour”,
the Company will disclose such inside information to the
public as soon as practicable.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted during
the year ended 31 December 2021, no significant control
deficiency was identified.

Internal Audit

The Group has engaged an external professional (the “Internal
Control Consultant”) to carry out the internal audit (“IA")
functions of the Group. The IA function is independent of
the Group’s daily operation and carries out appraisal of the
risk management and internal control systems by conducting
interviews, walkthroughs and tests of operating effectiveness.
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The Group has reviewed an IA charter to ensure it has defined
the scope and duties and responsibilities of the IA function
and its reporting protocol. The Group has also conducted an
annual risk assessment for the period to identify respective
strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance
risks of its major business segments. Based on the outcome of
the risk assessment and following a risk-oriented methodology
audit approach, the Company has devised a three-year audit
plan that prioritised the significance of the risks identified
into annual audit project to assist the Board and the Audit
Committee in assessing the efficacy of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The three-year
audit plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal
control systems is conducted semi-annually and the results are
reported to the Board via Audit Committee afterwards.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted semi-
annually for each half-year period. Several areas have been
considered during the Board's reviews, which include but
are not limited to (i) the changes in the nature and extent
of significant risks since the last semi-annual review, and
the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its business and
the external environment, and (ii) the scope and quality of
management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal
control systems.

The Board, through its reviews and the reviews made by
IA functions and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective
and adequate. Such systems, however, are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. It
is also considered that the resources, staff qualifications and
experience of relevant staff were adequate and the training
programs and budget provided were sufficient.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may declare dividends from time to time. In
proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall take into
account, inter alia:

a) the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

b) retained profits and distributable reserves of the Group
and each of the members of the Group;

Q) the level of the Group’s adjusted net debts-to-equity
ratio, return on equity and the relevant financial
covenants;

d) the Group’s current and future operation;

e) any contractual restrictions from the payment of
dividends;

f) any restrictions under applicable laws or regulations;

g) the dividends received from the Group’s subsidiaries and
associates, which in turn will depend on the ability of
those subsidiaries and associates to pay a dividend;

h) the Group’s expected working capital requirements;

) general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the
Group; and

i any other factors that the Board deem appropriate.

No dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount
recommended by the Board.

This dividend policy and the declaration and/or payment of
future dividends under this policy are subject to the Board's
continuing determination that this dividend policy and the
declaration and/or payment of dividends would be in the best
interests of the Group and the Company’s shareholders, and
are in compliance with the bye-laws of the Company and
all applicable laws and regulations. The Board endeavours
to maintain a balance between meeting the Company’s
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management
with a sustainable dividend policy.
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The Board will continually review the dividend policy and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend, modify and/or cancel the dividend policy at any time.
This dividend policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Group in respect of its future dividend
and/or in no way obligate the Group to declare a dividend
at any time or from time to time, there can be no assurance
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any
given period. Even if the Board decides to recommend and pay
dividends, the form, frequency and amount will depend upon
the abovementioned factors.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, any one or
more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Unit 301, 3/F, OfficePlus@Wan Chai, 303
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition, and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

PROCEDURES BY WHICH ENQUIRIES MAY BE PUT TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Unit 301, 3/F, OfficePlus@Wan Chai, 303
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The company secretary
of the Company is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board’s direct responsibilities to
the Board and communications relating to ordinary business
matters, such as suggestions and inquiries, to the executive
Directors of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31 December
2021.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company.
The Company has established a number of communication
channels to maintain an ongoing dialogue with its
shareholders and to enhance the transparency of the Group.
These include (i) holding annual and special general meetings
to provide a forum for shareholders to communicate directly
with the Board and the Board committees; (ii) distributing
corporate documents and releasing announcements to
disseminate the Group’s latest information to the shareholders;
and (iii) maintaining the Company’s website to provide an
electronic means of communication with the shareholders and
the public.

Shareholders and other interested parties are welcome to
access the Group's information from the Company’s website
at www.cgrh.com.hk. The Group’'s corporate information
including terms of reference of the Board committees, the
Group’s financial reports, announcements and circulars are
available on the website. In order to enhance shareholders’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and
development, the Company will continue to improve its
corporate disclosure on the Company’s website and the
communication with its shareholders.

TEERKE

REEBR
BEXH
B ARRMBE Y EEAEH -

BRRZER
EERPEARARRETERER L

Zf o ARRBILZEBBRE AR
HERRFEHFRLRAANEEZEH
€ - ZEREBENVBITRREAF ARG MK
RENAREG MERREHEEKEEESR
ESZEERBZWE: (NMBERFED
EXMHRBEEREUNBMAEE 2 KFE
A R (iR R R M ARBRRE R
FRHEF BRI -

B AR 3R N A B8 5 55 A AN 2 &) 4
uhwww.cgrh.com hkER BB AR EE 2 &
e-AEBZAREHNBEMEN LIREZ
EXEZTEe v RERE AEE M K®
HFRNE B RRMERRE AL E X
RN ERZER AR EBIEINE
RRQ R b2 BRI K pnoR B H
MR B

RS EEEERERAT
—E-—FEH

—

L



//4—'

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Overview

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Century Ginwa
Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased
to present the Environmental, Social and Governance
(hereinafter called "ESG") Report (the “Report”) of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as the
“Group” or “we") for the year ended 31 December
2021 Nete T (the “Reporting Period”). The Report outlines
the policies, sustainability strategies, management
approach and initiatives implemented by the Group and
the performance of the Group in environmental and
social aspects of its business.

Reporting Scope

The Report covers the Group’s businesses in operating
department stores, shopping centers and supermarkets
in Mainland China. During the Reporting Period, there
were no significant changes to the scope of reporting.

Reporting Basis

The Report discloses the required information under the
“comply or explain” provisions of the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules. The relevant provisions
and details are set out at the end of the Report.

Reporting Principles
The Group adheres to the following reporting principles
as the basis for the preparation of the Report.

1. Materiality

The threshold at which ESG issues determined
by the Board are sufficiently important to
investors and other stakeholders of the Group
that they should be reported, details of which
are set out in the sections headed “Stakeholders’
Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment”
below for more details.
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I ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)

Reporting Principles (continued)

2.

Quantitative

The quantified environmental and social key
performance indicators (“KPIs") are disclosed
in the Report to give stakeholders of the Group
a comprehensive picture of the Group's ESG
performance. The information is accompanied by
a narrative, explaining its purposes and impacts.

Balance

Every effort has been made in the Report to
reflect the performance of the Group's ESG
activities impartially and avoid selection, omission
or presentation format that might inappropriately
influence the decision or judgment of the readers
of the Report.

Consistency

As far as is reasonably practicable, the Group
has used consistent methodologies to allow for
meaningful comparisons of ESG data over time.

Note:

1 Taking into consideration that the principal
business of the Group is carried out mainly
through its subsidiaries, which were
incorporated and are operating in the Mainland
China with the financial year end date on 31
December in accordance with the statutory
requirements, the Board considers that the
change of financial year end date of the
Company from 31 March to 31 December can
make it consistent with that of its principal
subsidiaries. Therefore, the period end date
of last period’s Report was changed from 31
March 2021 to 31 December 2020, and the
period of last period’s Report was from 1 April
2020 to 31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

Report of Chairman

The Group is committed to corporate social
responsibility and balancing environmental, social and
economic benefits. It also aims to balance its business
development with the interests of its key stakeholders
and operates its business in a sustainable manner. To
achieve this vision, the Group has set a sustainability
framework that focuses on environmental protection,
resource management, employee and community well-
being and guides its sustainability efforts to ensure
that sustainability elements are integrated into every
business process and all business decisions.

Global warming is a major concern for governments
worldwide. As a socially responsible corporate, the
Group is committed to mitigating its environmental
impact and integrating responsible environmental
practices into its businesses. Meanwhile, the Group
endeavours to foster a sense of environmental
stewardship within the Company, with an aim to make
joint efforts with employees to build an environment-
friendly and resource-saving enterprise.
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MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Report of Chairman (continued)

Under the COVID-19 pandemic, the employees of the
Group show team spirit, rise to the challenge of the
crisis and grab the chance, make use of corporate
advantages and the accumulated rich industry
experience over the years to enable the Group to stand
from the severe epidemic. At the same time, the Group
provides multi-pronged support to protect the health
and personal safety of customers and employees,
reduce the risk of customers and employees from
infection and stop the spread of the COVID-19 in
society. The prevention and control measures include
implementing the COVID-19 emergency plan, setting
up the epidemic prevention and control team, and
providing epidemic prevention materials to customers
and employees at operating places and offices. Despite
the severity of the pandemic, the Group still pays
attention to the employee remuneration and benefits,
career development opportunities and provides a
safe working environment, so that employees can
work proactively and enthusiastically, and realize
their self-worth in the home of “Century Ginwa “
Besides, the Group keeps the initial aim of embracing
corporate social responsibility, actively participates
in public welfare undertakings; continues to allocate
resources to optimise the equipment and facilities
using natural resources and set an example, respond
to the environmental protection measures of local
governments, and promote various environmental
protection activities in shopping malls, shopping centers
and supermarkets, so as to contribute positively to the
global climate change. However, there might be a long
way to fight against the pandemic. The Group hopes
that all of the employees and society will continue to
put unremitting efforts in leading through the crisis
and challenges and make continuous progress towards
sustainable development.
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MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Report of Chairman (continued)

To achieve these visions, the Board has set a number of
environmental and social KPIs and taken a top-down
approach to disintegrate the KPIs into the functional
departments. The Board not only improved the well-
being of the employees but also urged the employees
to make changes in different areas, such as reducing
greenhouse gas emissions and making good use of
resources. During the Reporting Period, the Group has
made achievements by actively supporting the Group’s
sustainable development strategies and objectives
from the management team and all employees. The
relevant scope, progress and achievements relating to
the environmental and social KPIs are disclosed in the
Report.

The Group aims to become the first group army in the
commercial sector in Central and Western China and a
respectable retail enterprise. Going forward, the Group
serves to enhance its business performance through
implementation of sustainable development strategies
and to generate more meaningful long-term value for
the enterprise and its stakeholders.
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MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Governance Structure

ESG Committee is established and chaired by the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group. The committee members
include representatives from major departments,
including Strategic Management Department, Human
Resources & Administration Center, Internal Control &
Legal Department, Brand Development Center, Member
Service Center, Marketing Planning Center, Property
Management Center, etc.. The ESG Committee will
follow the requirements of laws and regulations; and
conduct business following appropriate best practices;
like setting up ESG targets, policies, procedures and
guidelines. In order to promote our Group's business
and the long-term sustainable development of the local
community of our business locations, we improve our
corporate governance, protect the environment, engage
our stakeholders and contribute to the society. We have
five ESG Task Forces under the ESG Committee, with
key members from the related departments assisting the
ESG Committee to supervise and monitor the progress
of various ESG activities, to coordinate in setting up
key performance indicators, to regularly assess the
effectiveness, and to hold seminars to enhance the
staff awareness in environmental protection. The Group
also collects the appeals and feedbacks of stakeholders
through various channels. For example, customers,
suppliers/brands and shareholders can make their
recommendations via Member Service Center/Marketing
Planning Center, Strategic Management Department/
Brand Development Center, and general meeting of
listed companies. The Group also sets up suggestion box
to collect employees’ suggestions which are directly sent
to the management. The management implements the
relevant suggestions after evaluating the feasibility. The
ESG Committee is responsible for regularly reporting
the implementation status and providing optimization
advice to the Board.
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Il.  MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL, — RERE -HERERNER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued) (4&)
Governance Structure (continued) EREE (&)
The terms of reference, organizational structure, ESGEE M BESE EmEE .

reporting line and members of the ESG Committee are
as follows:

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
Leader: Chief Executive Officer
(Secretary of the Committee: Company Secretary of the Group)

Community and
Shareholders/Investors
Focus Task Force

REENHLERIE
Xi'an-Strategic
Management Department
and Human Resources &
Administration Center

AR-BREEH

RADTHFD
e To maintain good

communication with
shareholders and other
stakeholders, and to
enhance shareholders’
value in the long run

e To care for the
community and people
in need; to ensure
that the interests
of the community
are considered in
conducting business
activities

o BERFEMAMBHE
RIFRIFHER
ReEBRRNREEE

s HLHEREFEAL

BREBLDHEER
HREH &

/
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BE HEREREZEES
HE THESR
(REERE ARARE)

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee Convenor

Employees and
Occupational Safety Focus
Task Force
BIABRET NG
Xi'an-Human Resources
& Administration Center
and Internal Control &
Legal Department
BR- ADTHAD
RAEEBE
e To care for our people,
from recruitment,
training to developing
our employees
e To maintain good
communication and
interactions with the
management team
e To give appropriate
encouragement
and recognition to
employees
To provide a safe
working environment

e To prevent briberies,
extortion, frauds and
money laundering

IS IMRE EE

%R

o HEEENIERTH
BBAMEH)

o HETIHKTHEN
EELET

o RULEMIERE

o HEERER PR HGE

Kok R B
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Suppliers Focus
Task Force
HEBEE M
Xi'an-Strategic
Management Department
and Brand Development
Center
AR-BREER
R RREH
e To pay attention to °
product safety from
suppliers

e To focus on the °
procurement
procedures and the
practice in supplier
selection

e To maintain good
communication and
interactions with
suppliers and to
build up trust; so as
to keep the good °
reputation, integrity
and sustainable
development of the
Group

s BIHERARLE o

o BIIRBERA
BB EENED o

o EHEEERIRIN
BRREVEE
MR EEREE .
BEMAFELERE o

Customers Focus
Task Force

RFET

Xi'an-Member Service
Center and Marketing
Planning Center
AR-GERHFHL
REHDEHL
To concern about the

customers' service
quality expectations

To maintain good
communication and
interactions with
customers and to
build up trust; so as
to keep the good
reputation, integrity
and sustainable
development of the
Group

To focus on protecting
our customers' rights
and interests; and their
privacy

BIEERELEZ
L
BEEREROH
BRNEVERE
MR EEmESE .
BEMTHEELEE
%i”ﬁ%F%ﬂ
BELEHRE

EREBRKENT:

Environmental Focus
Task Force
RERERT A
Xi‘an-Human Resources
& Administration Center
and Property Management
Center
BR-ADTHADL
RMEEED L

e To cultivate a corporate

culture in promoting
energy conservation,

to prevent pollution, to
reduce emissions and to
reduce wastes

e To pay attention to the

environmental protection
related policies, measures
and effectiveness
(including setting up of
KPIs and performance
evaluation)

o HEENER
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RERAE RN
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MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Governance Structure (continued)

The Board has appointed an independent consultant
to provide advice on the ESG matters and assist in
collecting data and information for conducting various
analyses and providing improvement recommendations
on ESG performance. The Group has also collected
the views of key stakeholders on ESG matters
during daily operations and conducted a materiality
assessment to identify important ESG issues for the
Group, details of which are disclosed in the sections
headed “Stakeholders’ Engagement” and “Materiality
Assessment” below. To effectively lead the ESG process
of the Group, the Board monitors the work of all
departments to ensure that they work closely together
to achieve the sustainable development goals of
operational compliance and social responsibility.

Stakeholders’ Engagement

The Group is committed to maintaining the sustainable
development of its business. While achieving both
economic and social benefits, we actively shoulder
the social responsibilities and uphold the corporate
philosophy of “grace for the times and sincerely
contributing to the society”, and support environmental
protection at the communities where the business
operates. The Group maintains a close tie with
its stakeholders, including government/regulatory
organizations, shareholders/investors, employees,
customers, suppliers, community, etc. and strives
to balance their opinions and interests through
constructive communications in order to determine
the directions of its sustainable development. The
Group continues to identify, understand, assess and
determine its environmental, social and governance risks
in response to the needs and expectations of various
above-mentioned stakeholders, and ensures that the
relevant risk management measures and internal control
systems are operating effectively. The following table
shows the communication channels, management
response to the stakeholders’ expectations and
concerns:
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MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)
Stakeholders’ Engagement (continued)

Stakeholders
A

Government/regulatory
organizations

B A

d

FH
~

B/

o

E

Shareholders/
investors

KR/ REE

/
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Expectations
and concerns

HERER

>

YVYY

YYVYY

Compliance in laws
and regulations
Fulfill tax obligation
Cooperation

Joint anti-epidemic

ETERER
BIIMBAL
AfERE
HENE

Return on
investment
Information
transparency
Corporate
governance system
Joint anti-epidemic

REAEH
RN
RERRBER

KRR

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Communication channels

BBERE

>

YvYy

YYVY

Y

\

Periodic report/interim
announcement
Correspondence

Field investigation
Process business via
government website or
application

ha ik YN
EREM

BT
BRI RS R R ERER
N

Information disclosed on the
HKEX website

The Company’s official
website

Annual general meeting and
other shareholders’” meetings

AR B R A
BURBE2ER
NI
RERERAMRERSE

= BRE-HERERNER

(#%&

KFOESE(E)

Management response
EEEDRE

>

>

YYVVY Y

Y

Yy

Uphold integrity and compliance

in operations

Pay tax on time, and in return
contributing to the society

Establish comprehensive and

effective internal control system
Respond to government’s policies and to build a
harmonious society together

Strictly comply with the local
government’s guideline relating

to business suspension and resumption
NEERFHAELER
REHTACSEL S
BUPHERONBEFHER

B EBE Bt RERNEL S
BRETEHRGEIEIMNRES

Management possesses relevant experience and
professional knowledge in business sustainability
Ensure transparent and effective communications
by dispatching information on the websites of
HKEX and the Company

Set up an investor hotline to maintain close and
effective communication with the market and
investors

Continue to improve the internal control system
and risk management

Resume the business of shopping malls as soon
as possible
%?Eﬂﬁ@%@ﬁﬂ?%ﬂ%’%%%%%ﬂ
&

BRRE TR AR T BHBE AR BR
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REREENBRFETSRREEZEREN
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SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)
Stakeholders’ Engagement (continued)

Stakeholders
e

Employees

Expectations
and concerns

MERER

>
>
>

vy

YYYVYVY

Labor rights

Career development
Compensation and
welfare

Health and
workplace safety
Care for employees
Joint anti-epidemic

MTER
HEURE
EBMEN
BERZ2
BEET
HRETZ

Communication channels
BRRE

>
>

>

>

YYVYVYY ¥

|

Staff activities

Employee performance
evaluation

Induction and on the job
training

Internal meetings and
announcements

Contact via email, employees’
mail box, phone and
communication applications
Employees’ reasonable
recommendation
management measures
Epidemic prevention and
control manual

BTES

BTENER

B B 7 B |

AR eERBE
BAETHMH BIBME.
B ERERRT
STABLREERNE
EEHEFMH

R-HERERKRSE

= BRE-HERERNER

(%)
KFOESE(E)

Management response
EHEDRE

> Set up contractual obligations to protect labor
rights

> Set up development subsidy fund to encourage
employees to participate in continuous education
and professional trainings

> Establish a fair, reasonable and competitive

remuneration scheme

Pay attention to occupational health and safety

Organize leisure activities to enhance cohesion

Actively provide epidemic prevention materials

such as masks and sanitizer to protect the

employees’ health

YVYYVY

HERNBEENRES THR
RUERBHES BEEIZEREHE
REZE

BRUNT REMAZFNNHFHER
TERRBRERZ2
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BBREROZ HSREHENE
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MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)
Stakeholders’ Engagement (continued)

Expectations
and concerns

HEHEER

Stakeholders
RRE
Brands/Consumers > Integrity and
contractual
obligation

High quality
products

Intimate service and
experience

Privacy protection
Joint anti-epidemic

Yy

mIgE/ HEE HEEH
EREBmM
AL IR B R
RELRE
HEHR

vy VV Y

/
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Communication channels

EBERE

>
>

>

YVYYVYVY

Business visit

Through Brand Business
Department, customer service
center

Contact via email and phone
call

Customer satisfaction survey
and customer comment cards
Advertising media

[k

mEREL/ BERE L
BEETBHLEEARG
RPREEHEREEERR
BESERS

}%
(#%&
KFOESE(E)

B HERERANER

Management response
EEEOE

>

>

VV

vy

Ensure proper contractual obligations are in
place
Actively communicate with the brands to set
a reasonable payment settlement schedule, to
reach mutual agreement with partners and gain
confidence from brands, and to create favorable
condition for the company and stakeholders
working together
Continuously introduce quality brands and
enhance service quality to satisfy customers;
and focus on shop positioning so as to make
each store have its own characteristics and to
reduce competition among shops having the
same brands, and to achieve virtuous cycle of
differentiated operations
Establish uniform labels and set prices for
products, and strive to eliminate fake and
inferior products to protect consumers' rights
and interests
Establish communication channels through
interviews, phone surveys, hotline and complaint
mailboxes
Organize customer satisfaction survey to improve
service quality
Develop a comprehensive members' information
confidentiality mechanism and carry out regular
information system maintenance
Sterilize each corner of the shopping malls and
set up temperature measurement counter at
entrance, create shopping environment that
make consumers feel safe and secure
BRETENER
BEAREDER SENTHERER A
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MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Stakeholders’ Engagement (continued)

Expectations

Stakeholders

BHE

Suppliers >
>
>
>

HER >
>
>
>

Community >
>
>
>
>

e >
>
>
>
>

and concerns

MERER

Stable demand

Fair and open tender
Corporate reputation
Joint anti-epidemic

FRET
NN
TtEER
HAAK

Environmental
protection

Reduce waste
generation
Community
contribution
Economic
development

Joint anti-epidemic
to protect people’s
livelihoods

R RiE
WO BEMNMES
HE2H
TERR
HAGRRERE

Communication channels
BRRE

> Business visit
> (Contact via email

>

YVY

YVvYv

YVvYy

and phone call
Through Procurement Center/
Brand Business Department

ABRED
BBETHRERYA
REHL/ RERED

The Company’s official
website and information
publicity website of
government department
Community activities
Promotional activities
Publicity booths and posters

ARABURBRHRIES
AT

RS

RIEED

EEBURER

BR - HERERKS
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Management response
EHEDRE

>

>

>

YYVYVY Y

YVYY

Ensure proper contractual obligations are in
place

Establish policy and procedures in supply chain
management

Establish and maintain strong and long-

term relationship with suppliers, to build up
confidence of suppliers, and to create a good
situation in which all interested parties and the
company work together

Strengthen the tendering management system
continuously and select suppliers with due care
Resume the business of shopping malls as soon
as possible

Purchase epidemic prevention materials
BRETANEE

HIE MR E B HENRER
REBKERBOSERER BURRENGE
L BEENEFARABRLENR T RE
FEMRBEE RGBS
ERRERSEE

REHENE

> Pay attention to climate change
> Continuously invest resources in environmental

vy

YYYVVY

\l

protection

Actively promote the sorting of garbage
Encourage employees to actively participate in
charitable activities and voluntary services
Maintain good and stable financial performance
and business growth

Respond to government’s appeal of stimulating
business growth so as to drive the economic
development of the community

The supermarket business continues to operate
during epidemic and adopt various appropriate
epidemic prevention and control measures to
protect people’s health and safety; and to ensure
stable supply of daily necessities

AIREEl
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II. MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Materiality Assessment

During the Reporting Period, the Group held discussions
with the management and conducted materiality
assessment through various channels to identify ESG
issues in which both the Group and its key stakeholders
are interested and assessed the level of concern as
viewed by them so as to select the relatively important
ESG issues. For the materiality assessment, the Group
has adopted the following three processes:

BERZITURER A

Identification

st 7l

stakeholders’ engagement

JEE A EAESGRE A

issues

Prioritization A 8 S T ST 25 K P

— BRE-HERERNER
(%)
EEMTE
PR HAR - A IR T+
WREBTRRE ETEEMT
{5 31 B2 B B TR L)
MRS AR RERIEE - BITEE
HYEIEEMERRE - (RS
Y EEMESGHME - WRE BT
fl - AEBEREAT = ERIE

e Through diverse channels and internal discussions
3 Examines and adopts the ESG issues of concern in the past

BAR RN BER D E 2 EE K FTREMESGEE

3 Draws attention to emerging ESG issues

3 Synthesizes, analyzes and evaluates the views of all
parties to identify and prioritize potential and important

RAE IMRFGEETERL UHMNBEEERERE

aT o <
DTLME?E //\r% 3 Develops materiality matrix based on the importance of the issue

B e B

sought by the Group

to the Group and its key stakeholders
BEZEHAEEREIZHNENEZEERUE2ML

3 Interacts with the management team to validate
the materiality assessment and ensure that these issues
are aligned with the sustainable development direction

Validation REBENEE LREESTUTHER
W& BRELHBRLRASROTRERET K

/
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3 Reports the materiality assessment to the Board and makes the
required disclosures in the ESG Report
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MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Materiality Assessment (continued)

.~

B HERERNEE
EEMNME(E)

Materiality assessment helps the Group to ensure its
business objectives and development direction are
in line with the expectations and requirements of its
stakeholders. The matters of concern of the Group and

shareholders are presented in the following materiality

matrix:

Materiality Matrix
EEMER

ERUFEENAEERRERE
ReesmemihEMNMEEEN.
REBMET & FTEL ) EIEHD T
BRATHEZEEREER :

—

& Anti-discrimination & Talent management > Customers’ satisfaction
@ Labor rights protection & Staff training and > Product and service quality
promotion > Anti-corruption
& Staff compensation > Stimulation of
and welfare consumption
> Protection of the people’s
livelihoods
> Epidemic prevention
< and control
2 & @ Epidemic prevention
T
and control
* TR * ASER > EPmERE
* RIEAE & STHIEB > BmERBEE
& STHMERN > RES
0 > RIAHE
g > E@dﬂ%
S > BEhE
S i * BiEpiE
?‘3 i <> Greenhouse > Operational compliance
w = gas emissions > Customers’ privacy
o <> Energy consumption measures and protection
g ﬂqé £ & Occupational health > Suppliers management
S@m 3 and safety
+ % * > Community involvement
& = ¢ BERRHRN 2iEL
E < BEIR(E A RiERPILE
¢ BERFERZS HrEmE R
> H&2H
@ Preventive measures for | < Water resources utilization
child and forced labor
<> Exhaust air emission
<> Sewage discharge
<> Generation of non-
g e hazardous wastes
- & FEHET KRR & KEREH
BIME
& BERBEN
& KR
$ BEREZVMHN
Low Medium High
15 H ]
Importance to the Group
HEAKENEEM
<> Environmental & Employee > Operation
$ BRETA ¢ EIHA > 2ENH
HEETEHEERERL A
“EC-FFR

L



/

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBRHESE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group always paid great attention to energy
conservation, emission reduction and environmental
protection, and adheres to the management philosophy
of sustainable development to achieve green operation
and balanced development; in response to the global
environmental protection trends, the Group implements
energy conservation and environmental protection
measures to mitigate the environmental risks and
negative impacts from the Group’s business activities.
The ESG Committee plays a critical decision-making
role on various measures, including environmental
protection, customers’ service, supply chain, employees’
and investors’ concerns, and gradually enhances the
Group’s sustainability performance. Besides, we strictly
adhere to the applicable environmental laws and
regulations and support the government in various
actions to protect the environment, and hopes to fulfill
the expectations and concerns of both the Group
and its stakeholders in business development and
environmental protection.

In order to implement the Group’s environmental
protection policy effectively, we have set up Human
Resources & Administration Center, and Property
Management Center at each mall for monitoring
the daily environmental and resources conservation
management work within the mall and office areas; and
demand our employees to strictly follow the Group’s
internal guidelines to collect, classify, store and dispose
of wastes; hope to reduce waste and to avoid resources
wastage through various measures. Please refer to
the details in the “Management of Emissions” and
“Management of Resources Utilization” sections below.

1. Management of Emissions

The Group always strictly complied with the
“Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Energy Conservation
Law of the People’s Republic of China” and
the applicable laws and regulations of the
provincial and municipal bureau in ecology and
environment. We integrate green operation
into our development strategies to monitor and
manage various environmental factors and their
impacts on the environment, with an aim to build
a strong environmental management system.

RERE
AEERHARIEE TSN EREE
RFERE REZAFERRDN
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B YHREERNRFEES RS
HEBERRE I B ARBEHIRE
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SEEGERRNMEREK
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R ¥E e PR A BE A 05 SR W) Ko s
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Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

1.

Management of Emissions (continued)

The Group's economic and trading business does
not involve any production activities, and its
environmental impacts mainly comes from use
of natural resources, generation of solid wastes
(Please refer to the “Management of Disposal
of Solid Waste” section below for details) and
discharge of domestic wastewater from office,
shopping mall and supermarket operations, and
never produced any solid or liquid hazardous
wastes. The use of natural resources (including
gasoline, diesel, natural gas and electricity) will
produce air pollutants and greenhouse gases
(Please refer to the “Management of Resource
Utilization” section below for details); and
domestic wastewater is discharged to the local
wastewater treatment plant through the urban
wastewater pipeline.

Management of Disposal of Solid Wastes

The solid waste generated by the Group can
be divided into two types, recyclable and non-
recyclable, which mainly include the product
packaging materials (such as plastic bags,
wrapping paper, carton box), slow-moving goods,
kitchen waste, construction and engineering
wastes and domestic garbage. In order to reduce
waste production and the negative impacts on
the environment, we encourage the shops to
use bio-degradable plastic bags and packaging
paper, and strictly implement the plastic bag levy
system; we donate slow-moving consumable
goods to the people in need; encourage
employees to take food at right portions and
reduce food waste; re-use waste spare parts for
the repairs and maintenance of the equipment
inside the malls; recycle and re-use the wooden
boards, lights and electrical equipment removed
or discarded by the brands after shop renovation;
post environmental slogans in the malls and
organize activities in the theme of environmental
protection so as to enhance the public awareness
in saving the environment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBRHESE

1. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION = RIBRE(£)
(continued)
1.  Management of Emissions (continued) 1. HRYUNERE (&)

Management of Disposal of Solid Wastes
(continued)

The Group always advocates the belief in green
environmental protection, actively promotes
wastes classification and resources recycling
for relieving the pressure on the environment
and to spread messages on important measures
for improving the living environment, continue
to instill knowledge of wastes classification
to employees and customers and to explain
how people’s behaviors have been damaging
the environment and facilities and to illustrate
the correct way of implementation. Therefore,
we have set up a waste classification team,
established waste classification management
policy and procedure; improved and enhanced
the waste classification facilities, and delegated
personnel to monitor the implementation
progress of each department. The Group has
set up recycle bin for hazardous wastes, kitchen
wastes, recyclable wastes and non-recyclable
wastes and to share wastes recycling knowledge
at promotion booths inside shopping malls; so
as to actively promote the knowledge on wastes
recycling and classification, and to advocate
“mixed wastes is garbage and classification
turns wastes into resources”, hope to raise the
proportion of the recyclable wastes; and at
the same time, assist the local government to
promote wastes classification; and to cultivate
people’s habit to live a “low-carbon” life; and
produce less wastes.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE - #HERERBRHSE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

1.

Management of Emissions (continued)

Management of Disposal of Solid Wastes
(continued)

For the wastes generated from equipment
repairs and maintenance inside the shopping
malls and supermarkets, and the construction
wastes produced by shops when they move
in or undergo renovation, we follow the local
urban waste disposal management requirements
to arrange wastes collection by construction
companies or the local government sanitation
department; and illegal dumping of waste is
forbidden. The Group started to collect data on
domestic wastes and domestic wastewater from
shopping malls and offices since March of 2019,
and implemented the relevant measures relating
to the production, disposal and reduction of
domestic wastes and organized environmental
protection trainings at appropriate times to
enhance employees’ awareness of environmental
protection. With the active support of our
employees, the Group’s environmental
management system has been enhanced
progressively, and will continuously optimize
various re-use and wastes reduction measures.
The Group focuses not only on its own business
operations, but also actively promotes the global
sustainable development trend.

As shopping mall at Gaoxin carried out
renovation work project during the Reporting
Period, the non-hazardous solid waste generated
by the Group increased by approximately 590.73
tonnes or 6.36 times when compared with the
previous year "7 with a total of approximately
683.68 tonnes of non-hazardous solid waste
generated.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBRHESE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

1.

Management of Emissions (continued)

Management of Disposal of Solid Wastes
(continued)

At the beginning of the Reporting Period, the
Group estimated that the intensity for non-
hazardous solid waste generated would decrease
by 10% when compared with the previous year
Nete T However, due to the construction waste
generated by the shopping mall at Gaoxin,
the intensity of non-hazardous solid waste
generated increased by 6.11 times. Please refer
to the “Summary of Environmental Data and
Performance” section below for the relevant
data.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly
abided by the environmental laws and regulations
of the State and local ecology and environmental
bureaus, and the Group did not involve in any
confirmed violations or non-compliance incident
relating to emissions that had a significant impact
on the Group.

Note:

1 As the Group has changed its financial year end
date last year, the environmental performance
data in the previous period was from 1 April
2020 to 31 December 2020. In order to
enhance the comparability of the two years’
environmental performance data, the variance
analysis in this Report is made by comparing
the current period’s data with that of the same
period in last year (that is, from 1 January 2020
to 31 December 2020).
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RE - #HERERBRHSE
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lll. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

)

- RIRRE (4

A

(continued)

2.

Management of Resources Utilization

The Group has strictly complied with the
“Regulations on Energy Conservation in
Shaanxi Province”, the “Regulations on
Energy Conservation in Public Authority”
and the applicable energy-saving policies and
requirements of each city. We established an
energy-saving project management team to
carry out the energy-saving and emission-
reduction projects on shopping centers;
continuously enhancing the projects by adopting
various measures to conform with the national
environmental protection policy of energy-
saving and emission-reduction. The Group
clearly understands the use of resources not
only increased the operating costs, but also has
an impact on the environment. Therefore, the
Group strictly monitors and manages ESG data.
In order to operate as a conservation-oriented
enterprise, green management is implemented
throughout the Group to correct our wasteful
behavior in daily work and living. Besides, we
have also established “Employees’ Suggestion
Rationalization Management Measures” to
provide a direct communication channel between
employees and the management in order to
advocate employees to participate in operation
management. We hope that employees can
raise up different effective recommendations
relating to their familiar working environment
and to formulate efficient energy-saving and
emission-reduction policy, further promote and
implement measures in energy-saving, emission-
reduction and efficient use of resources, thereby
reducing operating costs, creating publicity and
atmosphere of energy-saving and emission-
reduction in the working environment, and
minimizing the Group's negative impact on the
environment.
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RIE - HERERBRHESE

. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION = REKRE(£8)
(continued)
2. Management of Resources Utilization 2. EBREFEANERE (&)

(continued)

Management of Diesel, Gasoline and
Natural Gas Consumption

Diesel and gasoline fuel-based vehicles are
mainly used for guest pick-up, business trips and
materials transportation. We analyze the monthly
fuel consumption data to regulate our employees
on the usage of vehicles. If abnormalities are
found, the vehicle administrators are required
to provide explanation. Drivers must plan the
routes before using the vehicles and use the
shortest route and the fastest way to reach the
destination. We also require the driver to stop
the engine to prevent engines idling; conduct
regular repairs and maintenance to reduce extra
fuel consumption and waste gas emissions due
to part failure. Besides, we also promote and
publicize the “low carbon travel” emission-
reduction measures, encourage employees to use
public transportations or the shared bikes within
the urban area to reduce use of vehicles, thereby
reducing emissions and greenhouse gas. We
hope the employees could deliver the message of
“Living Green” to their family and friends; and
to motivate more people to build an ecological
civilization together. During the Reporting Period,
the Group consumed approximately 7,769.00 liters
of diesel, representing a decrease of approximately
2,395.62 liters or 23.57% when compared
with the previous year "2 and consumed
approximately 4,462.53 liters of gasoline,
representing a decrease of approximately 1,122.75
liters 0r20.10% when compared with the previous
year 2.

At the beginning of the Reporting Period,
the Group sets targets to reduce the diesel
and gasoline consumption by 10.00% when
compared with the previous year "2 The
targets have been achieved during the Reporting
Period. Please refer to the below table and
the “Summary of Environmental Data and
Performance” section below for the relevant
data.
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Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2.

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Diesel, Gasoline and
Natural Gas Consumption (continued)

Natural gas is mainly used in staff canteen
cooking utensils and heating in some
supermarkets. We stipulate that the kitchen
staff should prepare food according to actual
needs, and the heating system could only be
used when temperature fell below certain
degree so as to avoid over-usage or waste of
natural gas due to excessive food prepared or
use of the heating system under inappropriate
temperature. During the Reporting Period, the
Group consumed natural gas of approximately
24,754.00 cubic meters (“m?3"), representing an
increase of approximately 2,184.00 cubic meters
or 9.68% when compared with the previous year
Nete 2 This is mainly affected by the COVID-19
pandemic. The Group’s normal business hours
had been shortened, and led to reduced demand
on food preparation and reduced heating time
by employees, and consequentially, less natural
gas was consumed in 2020. As the epidemic
eased slightly in 2021, the Group’s natural gas
consumption in 2021 is higher than that in 2020.

At the beginning of the Reporting Period, the
Group set a target to increase the natural gas
consumption by 10.00% when compared with the
previous year "2 The target has been achieved
during the Reporting Period. Please refer to the
below table and the “Summary of Environmental
Data and Performance” section below for the
relevant data.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RR - #HERERBRE

1. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)
2, Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)
Management of Diesel, Gasoline and
Natural Gas Consumption (continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s use of
energy and Scope 1 greenhouse gas emitted are
as follows:

.

For the Year Ended
31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HLLEE

Co;

equivalent

Consumption

emissions
(Tonnes)

—HBRES
EHE HEHRE (W)

Direct Use of Energy:

BHEMEHER:

Diesel 7,769.00 Liters
B A
Gasoline 4,462.53 Liters
e 2H
Natural Gas 24,754.00 m3
RAR MK
Greenhouse Gas Emission
BEREHHEE

Greenhouse Gas Emission Intensity '
BERBHKEZRE'

/
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12.08

45.34

78.96

0.32
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For the Nine Months Ended
31 December 2020 ?
#HZE2020F12 4318 1L9f@ A2

CcO,

equivalent

emissions

Consumption (Tonnes)
“HitIEE

FHAE HE ()

7,739.62 Liters 21.41
A

3,968.28 Liters 16.65
N

19,884.00 m? 36.42

74.48

0.31



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2.

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Diesel, Gasoline and
Natural Gas Consumption (continued)

Notes:

1 The Group's greenhouse gas emission intensity
is calculated based on 0.001 square meters
(m2) of the floor area of the shopping malls
and offices. During the Reporting Period, there
was no expansions in the shopping malls,
supermarkets and offices nor relocation or
demolition project related to the business.

2 As the Group has changed its financial year end
date last year, the environmental performance
data in the previous period was from 1 April
2020 to 31 December 2020. In order to
enhance the comparability of the two years’
environmental performance data, the variance
analysis in this Report is made by comparing
the current period’s data with that of the same
period in last year (that is, from 1 January 2020
to 31 December 2020).

Management of Electricity Consumption

The Group has always concerned about the
impact of its business operations on the
environment. However, due to the nature of our
business, high demand of electricity consumption
in shopping malls, mainly used in lighting and
air-conditioning. In order to balance the energy-
saving and emission-reduction target and
satisfying the customers’ needs, we strengthen
the management of electricity use within malls
and the publicizing effort of energy-saving and
emission-reduction in various aspects. We hope
to maximize the efficiency in electricity use,
and at the same time, build up habit in energy
conservation in our business environment.
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RIE - HERERBRHESE

. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION = REKRE(£8)
(continued)
2. Management of Resources Utilization 2. EBREANERE (&)

(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

For the management of lighting system, the
Human Resources & Administration Center and
Property Management Center strictly control
the electricity consumption during renovation
of new brands and the existing brands, control
the use of high-energy lighting, and at the
same time, recommend the use of LED energy-
saving lighting. The brands have to control
their electricity load, and turn off the lights
when there is no one in the shops. We conduct
detailed inspection and acceptance procedures
on different aspects, such as industrial art, fire
prevention, safety, design, resources and energy
consumption when the renovation is completed.
These measures can effectively control the
energy consumption of the brands in future
operation. For the electricity management of
existing brands and the public areas of the malls,
other than continuing to request the brands to
use LED energy-saving lighting, we also adopt
various electricity conservation measures, for
example, we only switch on the monitoring
lights and emergency lights during non-business
hours; the brands must apply in writing and
pay the extra electricity charges if they demand
additional electricity during non-business hours.
We will not provide additional electricity if the
brands or external units did not submit the
application and pay the extra electricity charges.
We implement regional lighting arrangements,
and turn off unnecessary lights in some areas,
adjust the running time of the escalator to
avoid unnecessary wastage, thereby reducing
the electricity consumption from lighting in the
malls. Apart from electricity use for lighting,
supermarkets need to store a variety of fresh
food and goods in 24-hour freezer facilities for
preservation purposes. These facilities consume
huge amounts of electricity, so we take various
measures to reduce electricity consumption. For
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2.

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

example, we carry out targeted maintenance
and repairs for the equipment; plan to carry out
innovative and intelligent management of the
equipment so that the equipment can adjust
its temperature automatically according to the
detected temperature and the product type, and
switch intelligently its operation mode (such as
sleep mode at night); provide alert or signal in
case of equipment failure so that the responsible
departments can carry out repairs as soon as
possible and reduce the failure rate of the
equipment.

For the electricity management of air-
conditioning, we conduct regular repair and
maintenance and monitor the operation of air-
conditioning equipment inside the malls, clean
the facilities regularly, and carry out appropriate
energy-saving re-engineering for the facilities,
thereby increasing their output rate, and
reducing the additional electricity consumption
from abnormal operation. Besides, we adopt
appropriate measures to control the temperature,
timing difference and air volume of the air-
conditioning equipment, such as, we reasonably
adjust the temperature according to seasonal
change, real-time temperature data feed from
the monitoring system inside the malls and the
feedback from on-site personnel. We also adjust
on/off time of the facilities and the ratio of fresh
air supply, aiming at satisfying the comfort needs
of customers, and at the same time, achieving
the goal of energy-conservation.
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1. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION = RIBRE(£)
(continued)
2. Management of Resources Utilization 2. EBREANERE (&)

(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

The Group has established a strict review and
approval procedure for selecting suppliers of
power facilities and equipment, the suppliers
have to provide qualification certificates and
product manual. We compare the qualification
among different suppliers and evaluate different
criteria about the equipment (including energy
consumption, quality, function, etc.) prior to
purchase so as to reduce unnecessary energy
consumption due to unsuitable facilities
and equipment. The Human Resources
& Administration Center, and Property
Management Center is responsible for the
daily inspection of offices and shopping malls,
and the organization, planning, execution and
inspection of energy-saving and consumption
reduction work, and the maintenance staff
conducts regular repairs and maintenance on
electrical facilities and equipment. When faults or
abnormal operations are found, immediate repair
is carried out to reduce energy consumption
and to avoid accidents. We also actively conduct
energy-saving technological transformation
for electrical appliances to improve the power
efficiency of the unit.
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. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION = RERE (&

NE=

(continued)

2.

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

For the electricity management in office, we post
different energy-saving promotional slogans in
the offices; increase the natural lighting capacity
of the work place; encourage employees to
change their habit in use of electrical appliances
by turning off the unnecessary lights and
electrical appliances during lunch break and
after work, the computer and the printer are
set to automatic sleep mode. Restricted use
of air conditioners according to seasonal and
temperature changes, the temperature setting of
the air conditioner in summer and winter cannot
be lower than 26 ° C and not higher than 20 °
C respectively, air conditioner should be turned
off 15 minutes before the end of office hours;
doors and windows must be closed when air
conditioners are turned on.

The Group believes that publicity and education
is also an important part of energy-saving and
emission-reduction work. Within the corporate,
we remind our employees to abide by the
energy-saving measures during the morning
assembly, so as to enhance their awareness in
energy-saving, and hope that employees can
understand that everyone must work together
to remain competitive under the fierce market
competition. We also hope that employees can
start from every little thing and are determinant
to avoid resource wastage, thereby enhancing
their environmental protection awareness in work
and life through participation in energy-saving
and emission-reduction activities. Besides, we
post various energy-saving slogans in shopping
malls, use electronic displays to publicize energy-
saving tips. We organize different promotional
activities in shopping malls to educate the public
about the relationship between energy usage and
the sustainability of the planet.
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. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION = REBERE(B)
(continued)
2. Management of Resources Utilization 2. EBREANERE (&)
(continued)
Management of Electricity Consumption EHRANEE (&)

(continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group
consumed approximately 25,956.71 megawatt
hours ("MWh") of electricity, representing a
decrease of approximately 5,095.19 MWh or
16.41% compared with the previous year Mot 2,
We have been actively transforming the lighting
system of public areas in malls and supermarkets
with LED energy-saving lighting for a number of
years; and the transformation project is gradually
completed, and thus effectively reduced the
electricity consumption.

At the beginning of the Reporting Period, the
Group sets a target to reduce the electricity
consumption by 10.00% when compared with the
previous year "2 The target has been achieved
during the Reporting Period. Please refer to the
below table and the “Summary of Environmental
Data and Performance” section below for the
relevant data.

B RNTERE
KA HEENEER -RRE
A ANEEXFEHRENY
25,956. 71K LB - 8 EF &
[B) HAM 2238 b 495,095.199K U
Brek16.41% B2 FRE
B8 S RBATISRN AR
[ 15 AR B R 4R 1 TLED RN BE &
Wi BUETEE B ST
FAE=S A mAE BUDREIE -

AEENFEROT LR
B b E R EIRE R AR
FENAEERL10.00% -
WERARFEEKEBIT - HRE
BEF2ATRE I [RE
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Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2.

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s use of

energy and Scope 2 greenhouse gas emitted are
as follows:

RR #HERERBRE

= RIBERE (F)
2. EREANERE (&)
BEHEANEE (&)
REEA - REEEAER

KA S E R =R A8
BRI T 5K

For the Year Ended For the Nine Months Ended

31 December 2021

31 December 2020 ?

BZE20215128318 L FE £ Z=20205128310 1L9{@ A2

Co, CO;

equivalent equivalent

Consumption emissions Consumption emissions
(MWh) (Tonnes) (MWh) (Tonnes)
“EtRES —SiRES

ERE (CkRE) HRE (W) EHRE8 OLRE) BiiE (8)

Indirect Use of Energy:

R fE AaE R

Electricity 25,956.71
B

Greenhouse Gas Emission
BEREHMEE
Greenhouse Gas Emission Intensity '

BEREBHHEZE
Notes:

1 The Group'’s greenhouse gas emission intensity
is calculated based on 0.001 square meters
(m2) of the floor area of the shopping malls
and offices. During the Reporting Period, there
was no expansions in the shopping malls,
supermarkets and offices nor relocation or
demolition project related to the business.

2 As the Group has changed its financial year end
date last year, the environmental performance
data in the previous period was from 1 April
2020 to 31 December 2020. In order to
enhance the comparability of the two years’
environmental performance data, the variance
analysis in this Report is made by comparing
the current period’s data with that of the same
period in last year (that is, from 1 January 2020
to 31 December 2020).

23,157.44 25,851.60 23,666.65
23,157.44 23,666.65
94.22 99.55
BE -
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BERA®RE

lll. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION = RERE (&)
(continued)
2. Management of Resources Utilization 2. EBREANERE (&)
(continued)
Management of Water Resources KEREHEE

Consumption

The Group uses government-supplied water
sources in shopping malls and offices. Although
we do not encounter any water supply problem
during the Reporting Period, we clearly understand
the importance of water resources for business
operations and living needs; therefore, we
implement various measures to enhance water
resource use efficiency and to avoid wastage.
The Human Resources & Administration Center,
and Property Management Center of each mall
regularly collect and analyze the statistical data of
water consumption to monitor the water usage.
We educate and promote the concept of “green
life” to our employees and customers by way
of slogans, training and publicity activities. We
have implemented a number of measures and
retrofitted the equipment in the malls; for the
purpose of reducing water use as long as the

REBMFEANKERBE
MRS T EAREER
S5 BYPORBAE R
HHEIA - HRPIBEAR B FEUS
BEANKRLBETMME 8
TR THRKEREER
EEREEFTEMNEE
B b P B b 5 TR pnK &
TR HFE I DR G2 0R B K
BR - ZEARISMANTTHRE
m&%%aﬁ%ﬁmﬁbﬁ

DATRAKE - BRI
ﬂuﬁﬁﬁuﬁm‘mw&g
BEHNSTAEETIRER
EITHENRTE UHELE
EERRS - RESNERS
TEFE I R AR AT E
BERMETEE ARIR RK

comfort of the customers is not compromised. BIREGEA  flan: ﬁ‘ﬁiﬂ%‘
For example, adjust the operating frequency of KR BHEETTIER BE
the water pump motors flexibly so as to minimize FREKRAE &7J<; j]ﬂ?ﬁ
the electricity and water consumption, strengthen KERE HRB iR
water pipes inspection to avoid running, dripping, RERRKRER H%%- Bai]
leaking and long flowing water; re-use condensed B2 REK B AR 2 a5 - R

water from air-conditioning equipment in the
cooling tower, as the temperature of condensed
water is low enough to reduce the temperature
of the cooling tower less energy is consumed,
and at the same time, reduced the frequency of
water replenishment into the cooling tower; install
water-saving faucets and reasonably adjust the
volume of water outflow; use foot valve manual
flushing to replace automatic induction flushing;
regularly check the water facilities to prevent
water leakage; immediately repair or replace when
problem is found, and keep detailed records. The
Group persistently instills its employees about the
importance of the conservation culture, and puts
up posters of different resource saving methods
in the office area, and demands the employees to
control the water flow at low level and turn off
the water tap after use, etc..

2R K HY R E B K BE # P& (K
RAKERRE .lﬂiﬁu/ (>
BEREFEZ 8 TREER DT
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2.

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Water Resources
Consumption (continued)

The Group reduce the water resources
consumption by approximately 32,998.74 cubic
meters or 14.82% during the Reporting Period
when compare with the previous year M2 with
a total of 189,604.43 cubic meters of water
resources used.

At the beginning of the Reporting Period,
the Group sets a target to reduce the water
consumption by 10.00% when compared with
the previous year Mo 2. The target has been
achieved during the Reporting Period. Please
refer to the below table and the “Summary of
Environmental Data and Performance” section
below for the relevant data.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's use of

RR #HERERBRE

g

- RIRRE (4

)

.

2. EBEREANEE(#E)

KREREFAHERE ()

REBERREHAERHBK
BIRE EFERBEEEH DL
32,998.743 5K 5414.82%
HEFHKER%189,604.43

AEERBERVFILER
S AR L s A O PN
FEAKER210.00%
WERAFEREKBIT - BREE
BEFLSHATRETX[RE
BERARE] —H-

R|BEHA - AEEAKE

water resources is as follows: N
For the Nine
For the Year Ended Months Ended
31 December 2021 31 December 2020 2
BZ2021F B =20206F
12A31HLLFE 12 A31H 1E91E A2
(Cubic Meters) (Cubic Meters)
(MZTTK) (3L FK)
Water Resources
KEIR
Total 189,604.43 175,618.36
Be
Intensity ! 771.48 738.70
L SEEERERA A
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RIE - HERERBRHESE

. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION = REKRE(£8)
(continued)
2. Management of Resources Utilization 2.

(continued)

ERERANER (&)

/

Management of Water Resources
Consumption (continued)

KREFREFAHEE ()

Notes: Bt E

1 The Group’s greenhouse gas emission intensity 1 AEFFEKEZECIZE
is calculated based on 0.001 square meters 5 RN ERREEER
(m?) of the floor area of the shopping malls 0.001FFR#EITFHE -
and offices. During the Reporting Period, there 1 PO 2 B A £ 5 75 AR B
was no expansions in the shopping malls, BB BEY O AR
supermarkets and offices nor relocation or G RN ERBHETIE
demolition project related to the business. Al B LIE

2 As the Group has changed its financial year end 2 HARAEFR FFEE
date last year, the environmental performance HTHRFEZAEHA - E
data in the previous period was from 1 April FRZREHEDS

Annual Report 2021

2020 to 31 December 2020. In order to
enhance the comparability of the two years’
environmental performance data, the variance
analysis in this Report is made by comparing

2020F4 8 1H £20204F
12A31HKFRE BT IE
= B B IR B Bk 7
AT EE 1 - 2N & A AT I

the current period’s data with that of the same L B 4F 2 B = 2 5415

period in last year (that is, from 1 January 2020 <281 FFEZ[RIE (BI2020

to 31 December 2020). FI1HI1HZE2020F12H
31A) R ER i o
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Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2.

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of the Use of Packaging
Materials

The packaging materials used by the Group
mainly include plastic and paper bags provided
for customers to carry the purchased goods,
and packaging materials used for supermarket
stock up and packaging of fresh food; in
order to actively support the national policy of
“Administrative Measures for the Paid Use of
Plastic Bags at Commodity Retailing Places”,
and to achieve the aims of conserving resources,
protecting the ecological environment, and
influencing our consumers to reduce plastic
shopping bags use, to bring their own shopping
bags, and to use more eco-friendly shopping
bags; we have established the “Regulations for
the Use of Eco-friendly Shopping Bags” to ensure
the Company’s environmental-friendly shopping
bags are used appropriately. The Group restricted
salespeople from providing plastic shopping
bags to consumers at below-cost price or free of
charge. We also regularly assign delegated staff
to packaging counters to inspect and carry out
comprehensive monitoring, including assessment
of the application standards, charge level and
review of the packaging materials record.
Besides, we have also promoted the concept
of “green lifestyle” to the public, and posted
promotional slogans at various sales areas,
appealed consumers to reduce the use of plastic
products and use more bio-degradable materials
to reduce the impact on the environment due to
incorrect or excessive use of packaging materials.

During the Reporting Period, the Group
consumed approximately 77.49 tonnes of
packaging materials, representing an increase
of 18.54 tonnes or 31.45% when compared
with the previous year "2 This was mainly
affected by the COVID-19 epidemic, the Group’s
online bulk food sales volume increased, and the
packaging volume increased accordingly.
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RR - #HERERBRE

1. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)
2, Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)
Management of the Use of Packaging
Materials (continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s use of
packaging materials is as follows:

= BERE(HE)

2. EBEREANEE(E)

BEHHEAHEE (&)

RBEHRA - NEEHBEY
ERERM TR

For the Year Ended
31 December 2021

Packaging Materials
BmitAEEME
Total

wE

Intensity '

==
B
Notes:

1 The Group'’s greenhouse gas emission intensity
is calculated based on 0.001 square meters
(m2) of the floor area of the shopping malls
and offices. During the Reporting Period, there
was no expansions in the shopping malls,
supermarkets and offices nor relocation or
demolition project related to the business.

2 As the Group has changed its financial year end
date last year, the environmental performance
data in the previous period was from 1 April
2020 to 31 December 2020. In order to
enhance the comparability of the two years’
environmental performance data, the variance
analysis in this Report is made by comparing
the current period’s data with that of the same
period in last year (that is, from 1 January 2020
to 31 December 2020).

/
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(Tonnes)

(W)

77.49

0.32

BE -

For the Nine

Months Ended

31 December 2020 ?
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12 4318 1-91E A2
(Tonnes)

(W)

38.94
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

2.

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Paper Consumption

In order to reduce the impact of our daily office
operation on the environment, the Group
actively promotes the “Paperless Office” policy,
sets up office automation system to enable
each department to distribute information and
documents in electronic format; requires all
papers to be purchased by the procurement
center and sets up an office paper distribution
registration management system; demands
employees to check the format of the document
before copying or printing; reduces the font
size of the file to make full use of the paper
without affecting the legibility; fully utilizes
paper by reusing single-sided papers, and
collects double-sided printed papers to qualified
recycler for handling. We have also introduced
different electronic payment methods in various
department stores and supermarkets to speed up
the implementation of paperless payment, and
carried out promotion activities through online
digital marketing channels to reduce use of
printed materials.

Environment and Natural Resources

The Group has always been actively bringing
environmental responsibility into its daily
operations, energy consumption and waste
production is monitored and managed over the
years, and will continue to monitor, identify
and disclose the impact of our business
activities on the environment. The major impact
on the environment and natural resources
from shopping malls and offices operations
mainly come from waste gas, greenhouse gas,
wastewater and solid waste generated from the
use of natural resources (including electricity,
natural gas, fuel, water, paper, etc.), and the
construction wastes and domestic wastes
generated from the operation of shopping malls.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
(continued)

3.

Environment and Natural Resources
(continued)

Although the COVID-19 outbreak has had a
huge impact on the economy in Mainland China,
the Group’s department stores and shopping
malls businesses are the first to bear the brunt.
Faced with the decline in profits of physical
retail corporates, the Group’s determination to
environmental protection and green operations
has not diminished. With years of accumulated
environmental protection work experience, we
have effectively reduced operating costs, allowing
us to invest more resources and implement
various measures to increase resource efficiency.
Besides, the Chinese government provides
preferential policies and tax reductions for
various industries, which indirectly provides great
support to the Group’s environmental protection
work and reduces economic pressure. We will
continue to advocate the concept of “save one
unit of electricity, save one tonne of water,
save a drop of oil, save a piece of paper, save a
penny”, manage resource utilization and enhance
the employees’ awareness of environmental
protection.

Climate Change

Climate change is expected to worsen the
frequency and severity of extreme weather
events and cause catastrophic damage. Climate
change is also changing seasonal and annual
patterns of temperature, precipitation and
other weather phenomena. The unprecedented
crisis from the global spread of the COVID-19
has created significant challenges worldwide
while the risks of climate change are still
imminent. Understanding of these trends and
the relationship with its businesses can help the
Group to prepare, analyze possible risks and
opportunities, seize the opportunities of potential
benefits and establish the response capacity of
the Group in the long run.
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lll. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

- RIBRE (4

)

.

(continued)
4, Climate Change (continued)

In response to climate change, the Group
will continue to pay attention to climate
changes, continuously review and monitor the
implementation of various measures, constantly
optimize measures based on effectiveness,
establish various effective and appropriate
measures with reference to its operations,
implement “green operation, balanced
development” and seek opinions from external
parties whenever needed, for reducing our
carbon footprint. We hope to use this report
to share with the others the results of our
efforts and performance on natural resource
conservation, and to convey environmental
protection messages to stakeholders, so as
to achieve a more powerful environmental
protection publicity effect and to work with all
walks of life to mitigate the climate change.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES

Employees are our valuable assets and the key driver
for the Group’'s sustainable and long-term business
development. We devote to create a non-discrimination,
equal, harmonious and safe workplace and establish
a comprehensive talent management mechanism.
In order to adhere to our governance philosophy
of attracting talent by means of “compensation”,
“relationship”, “career” and “working platform”,
we offer equal opportunities of advancement
and providing commensurate remuneration and
various benefits. The Group enhances employees’
consciousness of innovation, work flexibility and focus
on commitment when dealing with their customers,
promotes full participation of all our employees in
management, encourages employees to make rational
recommendations and put into practice so as to fulfill
the mission of providing high quality merchandises
and services to the customers. Besides, we encourage
employees to maintain harmonious interpersonal
relationships, promote team spirit of cooperation and
unity, bravely face difficulties and overcome challenges.
Our human resources policies vary by locations to
comply with the local labor laws and regulations.
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IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES - BEEREIER (£)
(continued)
1.  Employment EE

In order to strictly comply with the Labor Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Labor
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Social Insurance Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Employment Ordinance,
the Minimum Wage Ordinance, the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, Anti-
discrimination Ordinances in Hong Kong and
other applicable laws and regulations, the
Group has established an internal management
system which specifies the requirements for
recruitment, promotion, dismissal, working hours,
rest periods, compensation, welfare and other
benefits.

Recruitment, Promotion, Dismissal,
Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-
discrimination

The Group is a fair opportunity employer and
respects personal privacy, and established related
policy in this area. During the recruitment
process, the department head determines the job
positions’ responsibilities and requirements, and
the Human Resources Department assesses and
screens applicants according to the requirements.
We adhere to the merit system principles and fair
recruitment. The appropriate candidates would
be selected based on their morality, knowledge,
abilities and job requirements, and regardless
of their nationality, gender, age, geographical,
religious beliefs. The policy applies to all phases
of the employment relationship, including but
not limited to, hiring, promotion, performance
appraisal, training, personal development and
termination. The Group handles dismissal and
compensation in accordance with the local laws
and regulations.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

1.

Employment

Recruitment, Promotion, Dismissal,
Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-
discrimination (continued)

In order to enhance work quality and employee
competencies, the Group conducts periodic
performance appraisal and fairly assess
the level of awards, salary increment and/
or promotion recommendations based on a
number of criteria, including working experience,
seniority, knowledge and skills, performance,
contributions, etc.. In the performance appraisal
process, the department head communicates
and discusses with employees about their
achievements, suggest areas for improvement,
and setting objectives and performance indicator
for the next appraisal period, so as to motivate
the employees for continuous improvement and
to develop their potential.

On the basis of equality, the Group hopes to
identify talents who are committed and dedicated
to work, willing to take responsibility, keep
learning, continuously improving their abilities
and willing to move forward with the Group.
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RIE - HERERBRHESE

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES - BERBIER (£)
(continued)
1.  Employment (continued) 1. EE(&E)
Recruitment, Promotion, Dismissal, R -BH fE FEH
Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti- B ZTERRER (&)
discrimination (continued)
As at 31 December 2021, the number and R2021F12A31H REE
distribution of the Group’s employees are as WEBABESMHBERET
follows: *:
2021 2020
20214 20204F
Gender % 5l
Male 55 1% 148 402
Female Z 1% 672 895

Employment Type {E & 3E 5l

Full time & B 784 1,223
Part time & B 19 70
Persons with disabilities /& A + 3 3
Retired returnees E (KR FE A L+ 14 1

Age Group F# 4 Bl

18-30 110 180
31-45 512 772
46-60 196 345
>60 2 -

Geographical Region it &
Mainland China A7 B9 (A i 817 1292
Hong Kong &% 3 5

/
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IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES - BEREBEIER (&)
(continued)
1. Employment (continued) 1. ER’(E)

Recruitment, Promotion, Dismissal, BB FE FEH

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti- B ZTERRER (&)

discrimination (continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s average REEHAN - AEEEE T

monthly employee turnover rate is as follows: BARKEMTXR:

For the Nine

For the Year Ended Months Ended
31 December 2021 31 December 2020 !
8%2021F B Z20204F
12831BLEE 12A318 9@ A"

Gender £ Bl

Male 55 1% 8.45% 1.53%

Female % £ 3.01% 1.96%

Age Group F i Bl

18-30 4.57% 3.16%

31-45 3.52% 1.62%

46-60 4.99% 1.54%

Geographical Region ith &

Mainland China A [ /A 3 4.04% 1.82%

Hong Kong &% 6.00% -

Note: Bt E -

1 As the Group has changed its financial year end 1 HRAEFHR FFEFE
date last year, the environmental performance HTHERFEZEH £
data in the previous period was from 1 April FEZREHEOSH
2020 to 31 December 2020. In order to 2020F4H1H £20204F
enhance the comparability of the two years’ 12HA31H8 KRR 7B T1#
environmental performance data, the variance 5 18] J2 B 4 B 1R R 2R
analysis in this Report is made by comparing AT LE 1 - 2N 3R & o AT H
the current period’s data with that of the same it B E = 2 545
period in last year (that is, from 1 January 2020 28 _FFE[EE (B12020
to 31 December 2020). F1H1HZE2020F12A

31H) L& E S 4 o
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RIE - HERERBRHESE

V.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

1.

Employment (continued)
Compensation, Welfare and Other Benefits

The Group attracts and retains outstanding
talents with competitive remuneration packages
and regularly assesses their salary levels to
ensure it is up to the market standard. The
Group benchmarks the up-to-date remuneration
data in its industry, and strives to establish a
fair, reasonable and competitive remuneration
scheme in order to ensure the pay level of
general staff is competitive in the region where
the Group operates; and the core members are
remunerated competitively within the industry.
Employees’ salaries level is decided based
on one's knowledge, skills, experiences and
education background relevant to their work
requirements, and the Group implements a
remuneration system that consists of basic salary
and performance-based bonus.

The employees’ remuneration package includes
basic salary, seniority salary, overtime pay, and
so on. Other benefits include working meals,
messing allowance, communication allowance,
birthday gifts, festive gifts, medical insurance,
provision of group accident insurance for
employees in high risk job positions, infectious
disease insurance purchased for protecting the
employees’ safety at the time of the pandemic,
provide nucleic acid testing, medical donations
for employees and their families, etc.. We provide
anti-heatstroke and warm drinks and supplies
to special position workers (including security
guards, staff canteen’s employees, parking crews)
during high temperature and cold weather.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

1.

Employment (continued)

Compensation, Welfare and Other Benefits
(continued)

Besides, the Group provides social security
benefits for all employees following the
requirement of the local labor laws and social
security laws and regulations. The Group
contributes to various social security schemes
(endowment insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work injury insurance
and maternity insurance) and housing provident
fund for the employees in Mainland China, and
contributes to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for the employees in Hong Kong.

In response to the government’s COVID-19
prevention and control policies and to protect
the employees’ health, the Group suspended all
employees’ leisure activities during the severe
period of the epidemic. When the epidemic
eased, the Group organized employee activities
such as Spring Games, Abor Day team building to
relieve employees’ stress during the epidemic and
to enhance team tacit-knowledge and cohesion.

Working Hours and Rest Periods

The Group pays attention to its employees’
health and encourages everyone to maintain
work-life balance, and set up employee work
hours according to the requirements of the local
labor laws and protects the employee rights to
rest days and holidays; so that all employees are
entitled to rest days and statutory holidays such
as annual leave, maternity leave, funeral leave
and work injury leave in accordance with the
local labor laws.
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RIE - HERERBRHESE

V.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

1.

Employment (continued)
The Impact of the COVID-19

The Group has neither reduced employees’
compensation and welfare nor laid off employees
due to the COVID-19 epidemic. In order to
protect the employees’ health and safety, the
Group has implemented various epidemic
prevention measures. Please refer to the
“Health and Safety” and “Product and Service
Responsibility” sections below for details.

Staff Health and Occupational Safety

The Group pays attention to its employees’
health and provides a safe work environment
so as to prevent occupational hazards and
various incidents from happening. We sign
target responsibility statement of “Setup Safe
Workplace” with each subsidiary, and formulate
safe management team with reference to
the company’s operation. Management and
employees at all levels must clearly understand
their own safety responsibilities and strictly
perform the requirements as stated on the target
responsibility statement.

Safe Business Premises and Working
Environment

The Group establishes a safety management
manual to strengthen its fire safety management
in its business sites, key departments and offices.
Smoking is prohibited for staff and customers;
and we target to keep our shopping centers,
malls, supermarkets and offices smoke-free.
We designated staff to regularly carry out fire
prevention patrol every day at all locations and
critical departments; and keep patrol records. We
take immediate remediation or precautions once
fire hazards are found. In compliance with the
local fire prevention standards and policies, we
have stringent management on fire equipment
and facilities; carry out repairs and maintenance,
and keep records.

- BERBIER (&)

B (&)

201978 it % & 5 B 2 &

REBRAH2019TMRFES
FRBBAEEMERE T
FERRHRETI  ATEIR
BEREmTEER  AEBR
BT ZIEp R FFAER
BLETNREREZE] R
[EmAMRFEEE] 2D -

ETREEBEZS
AEE-MEEETRER
RHZE2NTHERE B8
ITRIBEMNREE BHS
BEROEL RARZHE
NAIRR] TR PR EM] T
ERREEE  REE QAN
IR AR B
M BREREMBINAR
EHEEEINLERE A&
REITHEEREEERTR
EBE-

REERGIRITERE

AEEGE T Z2ERFM
eRE X3R5 FEHAFT
MAEZMTHEG R E2H
EE-BEBYHL -BS-
BAMSEEMAEER[EE
i8] - B T R B R B LS
WAE - HILHEEATRER
LM M EREPIEST
HPIKE - WRFABRSERIE N
WMEBEBEHER - FILARD
o7 RSERENF 0 E  - DA
BRE 2 - IR T 60BN
FEMBR - BAPIE FTAE IR
M RIERRIBETERBE
2o ERELRRE LUFA
FCERIE L

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021

-



IV.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

2.

Staff Health and Occupational Safety
(continued)

Property Management

In order to regulate the property management
work, we have established property management
policies and procedures. The Human Resources
& Administration Center, and the Property
Management Center are responsible for
monitoring, inspection, providing guidance and
evaluation work. Employees have to report to
maintenance staff immediately when repairs
(such as electrical equipment, electric power
distribution equipment, facilities at shopping
malls, air-conditioners, drainage equipment, etc.)
are needed for shopping centers, supermarkets
and offices so as to ensure the customers’ and
employees’ safety at these locations. Staff of
special work types (such as electrician, welders)
must possess valid license before they are
allowed to work; for example, to get a fire
certificate before using fire; carpenter should
promptly clean up with the sawdust and shavings
after job completion; inflammables, explosive,
chemical or dangerous materials are prohibited
and no storage is allowed; paint workers should
not blend paints on-site or at the locations close
to fire or electric source; paints should be covered
with lids immediately after use.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBRHESE

V.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

2.

Staff Health and Occupational Safety
(continued)

Safety Training

Training topics are mainly related to workplace
safety and occupational health. The Group raises
its employees’ safety awareness by providing
appropriate occupational health and safety
training to introduce the corporate development
plan, enhance their awareness on safety and
continuously strengthen their consciousness,
improve their professional skills, especially for
those job positions under significant potential
safety hazards, and enable them to perform
their duties in a safe environment. Employees
have to report to the management immediately
when incident occurs or aware of any potential
hazards. Safety education and training work plays
an important role to ensure the workplace is safe.
New hires must receive safety training prior to
put into work. This is to make sure that staff have
the necessary safety knowledge in their position;
familiar and able to master the safety techniques
required. Key and special positions (such as
fire control center) have to take professional
training and pass the examination before they
are assigned to take up the role. Firefighters have
to be familiar with and master the use of various
types of fire prevention facilities to ensure that
they can operate with the equipment for fighting
fire. During the Reporting Period, we organized
various safety training activities such as fire
control training, fire evacuation drills, fire fighting
drills, etc.
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IV.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

2.

Staff Health and Occupational Safety
(continued)

Impact of the COVID-19

To cope with COVID-19, the Group has adopted
a number of epidemic prevention measures
for the sake of employees’ health and safety.
After the shopping malls resumed business, we
distributed epidemic prevention and control
manual to our employees, strengthened the staff
education on personal hygiene, provided anti-
epidemic materials such as masks, alcohol hand
sanitizer, protective clothing, protective glasses to
employees, and stipulated that employees must
wear masks when working, pay attention to hand
hygiene; we also measure the body temperature
of employees every day, and use “health code”
to monitor employees’ health status, prohibit
employees from travelling to those areas with
severe epidemic. Since employees are facing
customers in the malls, we have adopted a
series of anti-epidemic measures to enhance the
hygiene management of the shopping malls to
protect the health and safety of customers and
employees. Please refer to the “Product and
Service Responsibility” section below for details.

During the Reporting Period, the number of lost
days due to work injury is as follows:
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For the Nine

For the Year Ended Months Ended

31 December 2021 31 December 2020 !

BZ20214F B =20206F

12A31BLFEE 12A318 9@ A"

Lost Days Due to Work Injury 308 days 65 days
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RIE - HERERBRHESE

V.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

2.

Staff Health and Occupational Safety
(continued)

Impact of the COVID-19 (continued)

Note:

1 As the Group has changed its financial year end
date last year, the environmental performance
data in the previous period was from 1 April
2020 to 31 December 2020. In order to
enhance the comparability of the two years’
environmental performance data, the variance
analysis in this Report is made by comparing
the current period’s data with that of the same
period in last year (that is, from 1 January 2020
to 31 December 2020).

There was no work-related fatality occurred
in each of the past three years (including the
Reporting Period) within the Group.

Development and Training

In order to align the staff career development
with its long-term corporate business plan,
the Group sets up staff training polices with
reference to the departmental human resources
needs. The human resources department
established a comprehensive staff training
plan with an aim to build an excellent, well-
trained and responsible corporate team.
This can enhance the staff's knowledge and
management capabilities, improve their work
ability, performance and efficiency, and raise their
enthusiasm in work to cultivate team spirit.
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IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES M- EEEREIER (&)

(continued)

3.

Development and Training (continued)

New hires have to participate in induction
training and pass the assessment. The
training topics include corporate culture, site
management, sales skills, membership policies,
service etiquette and skills, quality awareness,
fire safety (on-site public facilities). On top
of providing foundation training, we also
provide skills advancement, professional and
management training to ensure that staff possess
professional theory and knowledge, and new
knowledge for overcoming challenges in order to
lay a solid foundation for long-term development
of employees and the Group.

During the Reporting Period, in addition to the
new hire induction training, we also organized
various training programmes related to corporate
management, customer service, finance, human
resources, information system management,
employees’ health and work safety (please
refer to “Health and Safety” section below for
details of employees’ health and work safety),
etc. The training topics include management
system training, corporate culture training, legal
knowledge, one-day work flow training, contract
risk, member knowledge training, service
etiquette training, brand knowledge training,
sales skills, cashier training, expenses approval
process, performance evaluation management,
SAP knowledge training, office software training,
etc. In order to achieve better results from
organizing training programmes, employees are
asked to provide feedback and satisfaction level
upon completion of training programmes and
serve as reference for next year’s training plan.
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RR - #HERERBRE

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)
3. Development and Training (continued)

During the Reporting Period, the percentage of
the Group’s employees trained is as follows:

For the Year Ended
31 December 2021

Gender % 5|

Male 55 1%

Female Z 1%

Employee Category B 4% 4 5l
Senior management = & & 12 B
Middle management 4 E 12 [E
Management £ € B 12 [
Ordinary staff E@E T

During the Reporting Period, the average training
hours' per the Group’s employee are as follows:

For the Year Ended
31 December 2021

Gender 5l

Male 5 1%

Female 2%

Employee Category B4 41 5l
Senior management = & & 1% 8
Middle management /1 4% & 12 [
Management Z[EE 2 &
Ordinary staff @8 T
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3. EBIZERIZI(E)
RBEHRR - AEENZIE
THDHITIER:

For the Nine
Months Ended
31 December 2020 ?

HE20215 HZE2020%F
122A31BLEE 12 A31H 1E9@ A2
39.86% 85.82%

80.95% 88.72%

29.41% 42.86%
32.32% 100.00%
30.61% 100.00%
100.00% 68.73%

RI|EHA - NEEEEH)F
BB MTR:

For the Nine
Months Ended
31 December 20202

(Hours) (Hours)
HZE20214% H E20204F
12B31A L FE 128318 1F91A A2
(INEF) (/INEF)

2.45 5.51

8.48 7.92

0.49 1.64

1.02 4.43

0.65 6.79

11.85 7.91



IV.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

3.

Development and Training (continued)

Notes:

The average training hours refers to the number
of training hours provided by the Group to its
employees within the Reporting Period divided
by the Group’s total number of employees at
the end of the Reporting Period.

As the Group has changed its financial year end
date last year, the environmental performance
data in the previous period was from 1 April
2020 to 31 December 2020. In order to
enhance the comparability of the two years’
environmental performance data, the variance
analysis in this Report is made by comparing
the current period’s data with that of the same
period in last year (that is, from 1 January 2020
to 31 December 2020).

Labor Standards

The Group cherishes human rights and protects

labor

rights and interests. During the hiring

process, we strictly abide by the Labor Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Labor
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Employment Ordinance, the Employment
of Children Regulations, the Employment of
Young Persons (Industry) Regulations, and other
applicable laws and regulations, and do not allow
hiring children labor and forced labor.
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V.

ER®E

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

4,

Labor Standards (continued)

The human resources department of the Group
conducts background checks and reference
checks in its hiring process to prevent any child
labor. Besides, the Group has also implemented
various measures to prevent any forms of forced
labor, including prisoners, indentured servitude,
bonded labor. For example, labor contract is
signed by the employee on a fair and voluntary
basis, ensure employees do not need to bear
any onboarding costs, never deduct wages,
benefits or property of employees, detention of
employee’s identity card or other identification
documents is strictly prohibited, any form of
physical abuse, assault, body search or insult,
or forcing an employee to work by means
of violence, threat or unlawful restriction of
personal freedom are all forbidden. Employees’
consent for work overtime is required to avoid
involuntary overtime work, and the employees
are compensated as appropriate in accordance
with the applicable labor laws and regulations.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did
not involve in any violation of the laws and
regulations related to the child and forced labor.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
involved in any non-compliance incidents relating
to employment, health and safety, and labor
standards that has a significant impact on the
Group.
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V. OPERATING PRACTICES

1.

Supply Chain Management

The Group conveys its concern on environmental
issues to its suppliers and business partners, and
expects them to implement similar practices.
The Group also serves to maintain long-term,
stable and strategic cooperative relationships
with leading suppliers, and co-develops with its
suppliers on the basis of equality and win-win
situation.

We have established centralized procurement
management manual to strictly control and
monitor the procurement process relating to
materials, engineering work and services. We
have set up strict processes and requirements
in respect of the management of approved
suppliers, procurement methods, quality
improvement, procurement contract, etc., in
order to ensure the procurement processes are
carried out following the principles of fairness,
justice, openness, effectiveness, integrity
and ethics, and to enhance efficiency and
ensure good product and service quality. The
centralized procurement team is responsible for
establishing procurement policy and carrying
out daily procurement work. The audit team
conducts qualification evaluation and reviews
the procurement process. The supervision team
monitors the compliance of procurement process,
handles reports and appeals relating to the
procurement process, corrects violated behaviors
and penalizes the employees for breaches.
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RIE - HERERBRHESE

V.

OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

1.

Supply Chain Management (continued)

To accept new suppliers, we will pay visits to their
business sites, and evaluate their certifications,
internal management policies documents, work
manual, operational status, etc. to make sure
that they possess the capabilities in fulfilling the
obligations. We also establish strict evaluation
procedures for renewal of merchandise suppliers,
and regularly compile statistics and review
the performance of our suppliers, assess their
capability, business status and operational results;
in order to grasp the product sales situations and
make appropriate adjustment to our strategies.
The evaluation includes reviewing their market
position, overall capability, product quality, supply
performance, sales performance, quality service,
business results; and conducting a comprehensive
evaluation based on a combination of scores
and text comments. The evaluation result is
sent to management to ensure that the selected
suppliers are competitive and possess recognized
qualifications and good internal control system,
stable quality, on-time delivery, laws and
regulations compliance. We have established
policies and procedures in supply chain
management and provided various reporting
channels for employees, suppliers, customers and
other business partners to report any violations
and suspected abuse one's authority for own
interest. During the Reporting Period, the
Group did not have significant issues relating to
violations in this respect.

During the Reporting Period, the number and
geographical distribution of the main suppliers
that have business with the Group are as follows:

For the Year Ended
31 December 2021
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE - #HERERBRHSE

V. OPERATING PRACTICES (continued) - EEEH (E)

1. Supply Chain Management (continued) 1. MHEEER(F)
Note: % -
1 As the Group has changed its financial year end 1 HRAEER FFEE

date last year, the environmental performance
data in the previous period was from 1 April
2020 to 31 December 2020. In order to
enhance the comparability of the two years’
environmental performance data, the variance
analysis in this Report is made by comparing
the current period’s data with that of the same
period in last year (that is, from 1 January 2020
to 31 December 2020).

Product and Service Responsibility

The Group realizes that the department store
and shopping center business not only need to
guarantee high-quality goods, but also need to
provide customers with high-quality services and
establish good corporate image. Therefore, we
follow the operating strategies and goals of each
operating location, and observe the requirements
of laws and regulations, market conditions,
customers’ needs and expectations and other
information to establish our policy relating to
quality. The Group pays attention to customers’
needs, wins customers’ confidence with high-
quality and distinctive products; cares about
customers’ feelings, provides services that exceed
customers’ expectations, and creates surprises
for customers; protect its own image, promotes
business innovation, and insists on adopting
innovative methods to enhance customers’
service experience; focus on trends; while leading
the trend and advocating consumer spending on
the mainstream culture, we also pay attention
to the customers’ experience. Every department,
every employee of the Group, everything they
did, and every word they said, altogether built
the “Century Ginwa"” brand. Both the front-line
employees and back-office personnel uphold the
Group’s core value of “To do the best, and never
change “, consistently implement each quality
policy, provide customers with high-quality
services and products, and instill the thoughts
of “our action is customers’ needs driven”
among employees, so as to achieve a first-class
enterprise brand image.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBRHESE

V.

OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

2.

Product and Service Responsibility
(continued)

Customer Service

In order to build up an image of excellent
service, we established employees’ handbook to
strictly require our staff to pay attention to their
appearance, phone manner, reception etiquette,
conduct and behavior, dressing, job descriptions
and requirements, and service greetings, etc.
We have established service quality monitoring
system to accurately evaluate the company’s
service quality, to promptly remediate problems
found, and to provide customers with satisfactory
services meeting their needs. When serving
customers, every employee must abide by the
Group'’s professional ethics, serve customers with
sincerity, respect customers’ national customs and
religious beliefs, and should not judge people by
appearance or comment on customers.

During the Reporting Period, the number of
products and service related complaints received
are as follows:

For the Year Ended
31 December 2021
HZ2021%
12A31B L EE

Complaints received

ERERF
Note:

1 As the Group has changed its financial year end
date last year, the environmental performance
data in the previous period was from 1 April
2020 to 31 December 2020. In order to
enhance the comparability of the two years’
environmental performance data, the variance
analysis in this Report is made by comparing
the current period’s data with that of the same
period in last year (that is, from 1 January 2020
to 31 December 2020).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE - #HERERBRHSE

OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

2.

Product and Service Responsibility
(continued)

Product Quality

The Group strictly implements the price policy,
hoping to achieve “Fair trade, genuine products
at fair price, and adequate measurement”. In
order to strengthen the quality management of
merchandise and maintain the reputation of the
malls, we have established the “Merchandise
Quality Control Regulations” according to the
national product safety standards. Before each
type of merchandise are placed on the counter,
the Operation Department have to check
and accept the brand products according to
the acceptance standards, and the Customer
Service Department monitors the merchandise
acceptance process including the appearance,
shelf life, labels, safety, instructions for use, etc.,
to ensure the products provided by the suppliers
comply with the national standards and our
requirements, and at the same time, to prevent
the inflow of fake or inferior merchandise and
to protect the legitimate rights and interests of
consumers.

Quality of Brand

In order to continuously strengthen the brand
products quality monitoring, to maintain our
reputation, to eliminate fake and shoddy goods,
and to protect the consumer rights and interests
by the Group; we follow the applicable local laws
and regulations in brands and goods selection;
and monitor and manage closely the brands and
suppliers that we work with. We also establish
supplier renewal system to ensure that the
suppliers’ merchandises are continuously kept at
high quality.
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RIE - HERERBRHESE

V.

OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

2.

Product and Service Responsibility
(continued)

Customers’ Complaints

Besides, continuous improvement is one
of the key principles of the Group’s quality
management. We actively seek various
opportunities to improve the quality of products
and services, correct and reduce the adverse
impact on the Group, to meet customer
requirements. We, from time to time, conduct
customer satisfactory survey to obtain feedbacks
on our malls’ reputation, merchandise and service
quality, shopping environment, service facilities,
goods pricing, etc. in the form of phone calls
and on-site visit. We regularly review the number
of customers’ complaints received, analyze
and evaluate our customers’ comments and
suggestions; and to formulate improvement plan
to enhance our service quality. We remind our
employees of the service image requirements and
customers’ feedback during morning assembly.
We also use the customers’ complaints as case
sharing and employee training materials to
strengthen the responsiveness of employees to
customers’ complaints and to give the customer
better impression.

Recall of Merchandises

During the Reporting Period, the Group has no
merchandises sold or shipped subject to recalls
for safety and health reasons.
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V.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

2.

Product and Service Responsibility
(continued)

Intellectual Property Rights and Portrait
Rights

The daily operations of the Group in shopping
malls often involve the use of the others’
intellectual property rights and portrait rights.
In order to prevent infringement behaviors, we
have established “Management Regulations
Involving the Use of Others' Intellectual Property
Rights and Portrait Rights in Propaganda”,
strictly regulate the pictures, celebrities portraits,
copyrighted emoticons, text materials, fonts,
video and audiovisual materials used by us and
brand owners in promotion inside and outside
the shopping malls, and through different media.
Any promotion without the authorization from
the owners are strictly prohibited. We also
regularly organize training relating to the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Advertising”,
the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Copyright” and the applicable laws to strengthen
the professional skills and litigation awareness of
the employees.

Customers’ Data Privacy

In order to strengthen our connection with
customers, we have set up membership system
since 2000, member services and concessions
are given by member class; a customer service
consultant is assigned to each of our senior
members and focus on meeting the customer’s
personal preferences and needs; and we become
the pilot enterprise in the Northwest Region.
Confidentiality is one of the Group’s core values.
We set up management policies relating to
information security, information system network,
set up access right with information system
to handle and store customers’ information
diligently and confidentially, and to protect
customers’ privacy. All employees are strictly
prohibited to disclose any such information to
third parties without proper authority unless
there is a legal or professional right or duty to do
s0.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RR - #HERERBRE

V. OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

2. Product and Service Responsibility
(continued)

Impact of the COVID-19

To cope with the COVID-19 epidemic, the
Group has implemented a number of preventive
measures to protect the health and personal
safety of our customers and employees, and the
details are as follow:

o Launched the “Emergency Plan for
Epidemic Prevention and Control” and
set up epidemic prevention and control
team to cope with the situation of possible
spread of epidemic in the shopping malls;

o Posted a reminder “Safety first at time of
epidemic” in the malls;

o Put up posters to remind customers to
keep a safe distance of 1.5 meters from
the staff in the malls;

o Arranged staff at each entrance and exit
to scan customers “One code pass”.
Customers can access the malls only after
measuring body temperature and wearing
face masks;

o Used spray disinfection to sterilize the
public areas, public facilities, waste mask
disposal point, etc. and increase the
frequency of cleaning and sterilization
during business hours;

/
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

V. OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

2.

Product and Service Responsibility
(continued)

Impact of the COVID-19 (continued)

Set up isolation rooms;

o Provided customers with anti-epidemic
materials such as hand wash liquid soap
and alcohol hand sanitizer;

o Set up waste anti-epidemic materials (such
as masks) disposal point on each floor of
the malls;

o The brand must sign “Epidemic prevention

and control commitment letter” to
ensure preventive and control work has
been done, and can meet the relevant
government requirements;

o Strictly followed sterilization requirements
before delivery of merchandise, and
carried out the four steps in packaging
and sterilization, and reduced the
frequency of goods delivery to ensure the
safety of employees and customers.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group's
products and services was not involved in
significant issues relating to violations nor did
the Group receive any complaints concerning
breaches of customer privacy, loss of customer
data, intellectual property rights and portrait
rights.
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RIE - HERERBRHESE

V.

OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

3.

Anti-corruption

Maintaining an ethical working environment
is one of the Group's core values. We have
adopted a zero-tolerance approach for all kinds
of corruption, bribery and extortion situation.
To comply with the “Criminal Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the “Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance” enforced by the Hong Kong
Independent Commission Against Corruption
and other applicable laws and regulations, we
set up internal management system to regulate
employees’ conduct. Offenders who request
and accept bribes, obtain other illegal interests
are heavily penalized, including termination
of employment contracts, sent to the judicial
authority (if violating local laws and regulations),
and so on. We conduct anti-corruption training
and case study each year and demand all
personnel to build a habit of strict compliance
with policies and procedures, and to prevent all
bribery. During the Reporting Period, the Group
organized “Honest Practice ‘Ten Don'ts’” training
to the staff.

We bring the disciplinary monitoring work in the
business process, ensure that there are channels
(including for reporting boxes, email and hotline)
for reporting suspected cases of obtaining
personal interests in carrying out one’s job duties,
briberies, extortion, fraud, money laundering in
breach of policies, regulations, and laws in strict
confidence to the Internal Control Department.
We also set up suggestion box and reward
employees who make good recommendations.
We sign the anti-corruption agreements with
suppliers. During the procurement and bidding
processes, the Internal Control Department
participates in the procurement and bidding work
to monitor the compliance of each department
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V.

VI.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
3. Anti-corruption (continued)

(such as bribery, receiving gifts and mis-behavior
in the bidding process, etc.); the Internal Control
Department also participates in the engineering
work inspection process, and is responsible for
monitoring whether the engineering companies
are authorized, their employees’ qualification,
whether the equipment is consistent with the
contract terms, and whether the company has
executed the inspection according to the process,
and so on. During the Reporting Period, the
Group or its employees did not involve in any
litigation cases of corruption.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to building the corporate
culture of “open and creative, win-win, grace for
the times and sincerely contributing to the society”,
advocate a green, energy-saving and safe lifestyle,
and devoted to charitable activities to show our
determination in taking up the social responsibility, to
care for the people in need and to push on building a
harmonious enterprise. During the Reporting Period,
the Group delegated employees to support the frontline
epidemic prevention work, donated epidemic prevention
materials to people in need with an aim of putting in
some effort in fighting against the epidemic.

The Group advocates the concept of sustainable
development and jointly promotes regional economic
development. The Group is a responsible taxpayer and
offers job opportunities to local people. We paid “five
insurances and housing provident fund” for staff in
Mainland China and the mandatory provident fund
contributions for staff in Hong Kong. We run our
business following good practices; we actively promote
green energy-saving and environmental friendly
concepts; we set up a role model for the industry; and
to some certain extent, we have contributed to social
stability and building a harmonious community.

RR #HERERBRE

+H

-~
/N

EEEN (&)

3. REB(E)
By - FAERETEHNTA
F) AREESIESERMHET
BRKRE aEEBEIRES
ELEREEMN - TRABNE
T BMETHEEGR -
Y EEBERBA R ERBRE
ETE - RMERRN IRE
W RIEEAEBR N AERE
TESHFMEMS-

HtERE
REBFRATFRMEF BFHH
ROZBNRR BEBER e Od
EXfb BB EMELENERT
L BORRGRER TERERMAER
AEAGRET BEEREALIMNE
BREZ HEENBELEER - NRE
HR - AEEKE B TXHAKIE
T -BENERMETEFTEAL
FERMEIEH—S -

AEBEEFHEERIEZD  HER
RN EHEER - AEBROELE
B HENVERE B ERS - T
BT REINE IOk —%
RBEBEIZ2MBESTE -3
—EHRFRENEL  ERETTHRE
RERRESNEERIFNERK
o RITEENEE EREHER
EoRRVMEEETE B—ENE
& o

RS EEEERERAT
—E-—FEH

—

L



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBRHESE

VIl. ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA +t - BEHBRABE

SUMMARY
For the Nine
For Year Ended Months Ended
Unit 31 December 31 December
B 2021 2020 °
BZE2021F  #HZE2020%F
12A31H 12H31H
LHFEE 1EOfE A®
Greenhouse Gas (“GHG") Emissions:
BERE:
Scope 1':
EiE—"
Total Tonnes 78.96 74.48
HE U7
Intensity 3 Tonnes 0.32 0.31
BE3 Mg
Scope 2 %
EIE 2
Total Tonnes 23,157.44 23,666.65
HE 15
Intensity 3 Tonnes 94.22 99.55
BE3 Mg
Air Emissions:
BRAHENE:
Nitrogen Oxides Kilograms 131.50 99.37
AGY NI
Sulfur Oxides Kilograms 0.19 0.21
maEw NS
Particulate Matters Kilograms 6.40 5.56
HRY /N
Non-hazardous Wastes *:
EEERBEY
Total Tonnes 683.68 68.51
mE Mg
Intensity 3 Tonnes 2.78 0.29
BE3 Mg
Packaging Materials Used for Merchandise:
EmTREEME:
Total Tonnes 77.49 38.94
W 148
Intensity 3 Tonnes 0.32 0.16
BE3 Mg
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VIl.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA

SUMMARY (continued)

Energy and Water Consumption:
AARERBEFRE:
Electricity:

wes B2
Intensity 3
o

Diesel:
£
Total
Intensity 3

Gasoline:
;i
Total

=
wes B
Intensity 3
= E3

Natural Gas:
RARR:
Total
Intensity 3

Water Resources:
KER:

Total

Intensity 3

RR #HERERBRE

t BREBEBERRRFBE (£)

For the Nine

For Year Ended Months Ended

Unit 31 December 31 December
B 2021 2020 °
BZE2021F  HZE2020%F
12A31H 12A31H
ILFE 1EOfE A°
MWh 25,956.71 25,851.60
JK LB
MWh 105.61 108.74
JK BB
Liters 7,769.00 7,739.62
nFH
Liters 31.61 32.55
NFH
Liters 4,462.53 3,968.28
NS
Liters 18.16 16.69
NI
Cubic meters 24,754.00 19,884.00
Cubic meters 100.72 83.64
Cubic meters 189,604.43 175,618.36
S5 K
Cubic meters 771.48 738.70
3K
RS REEZRERA R
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VIl.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA
SUMMARY (continued)

Notes:

Scope 1 refers to the Group’s business direct GHG
emission, including combustion of diesel, gasoline and
natural gas.

Scope 2 refers to the Group’s business indirect GHG
emissions, including consumption of purchased
electricity.

The above environmental performance data intensity
is calculated based on 0.001 square meters (m?) of the
floor area of the shopping malls and offices.

During the Reporting Period, the non-hazardous solid
waste was the construction waste generated from
renovation work and the domestic waste produced
by the employees of all shopping malls and offices.
Domestic waste data is a multiple of average daily
weight of waste produced by each person and the
number of employees at month end.

As the Group has changed its financial year end date
last year, the environmental performance data in the
previous period was from 1 April 2020 to 31 December
2020. In order to enhance the comparability of the two
years’ environmental performance data, the variance
analysis in this Report is made by comparing the
current period’s data with that of the same period in
last year (that is, from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020).

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021
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t BREBBERRRBE (F)

Bt E -

BE—ZELXEBEGABEZRE
FH A T BE 2 A8 = SRR HE K
BRGSOl R AR

BE—2IEAKEBEFE AL HFE
BB A 9 & ) FT 51 By [T #% B
TR B E R

U ERBXRBE RN ERIZR
5RO B E S H £ A90.001
FHR#EITETE -

RBEHAN BEZBIRREYEE
RETEFELENEY KEE
BGa N E B TATEF O EE
Wk AR BIRRILIR TN
BRFPGELNEYEBRILE
ARERETABGEE -

ARAEFR FFEERTHE
FREEEH FFEZIREHE
B & H2020F4H1H E20204F
12H31HBYHRE B T 1= A fE
FRBEHIEREA A K
IR & b BT 1 2t A SR A = 2 5
W92 8 L FZ R A (BI20204F
1H1HZE2020F12H318) b &
B A e



VIIl.

"ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE"” BY

THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG =)
LIMITED
General
Disclosure/KPIs Reporting Guideline
—RiEE
BERENER HEEL

A. Environmental

ARIE

Aspect A1 Emissions
EEA1 235 &)

General Disclosure

— MR R

KPI A1.1
B S AS IR IR AT

KPI A1.2

BB R IRAT.2

KPI'A1.3

BB AE R 1RAT3

KPI' A1.4

BRI A IR IRAT4

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

BERABERIORERBHN RKRTHOE 5T EERESE

BEEYNELESD:

(@) L% &

(b) BFHBEITABERTENEAEERBROINER -

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BE W E R R AR R B B

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse
gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

B (FBE) keeREZ (8E2) ) R =REBYHE (A @E*Jr
B (mER)BE (MASGESSEMN BRRKREAR

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

PEAEETEEMEE (AMEE) R (ER) ZE (1A
BEEEN BERMHE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,

per facility).
ELABREERENEE (M@‘H@C)&(ZZD @A) TE (20A
BESEN BEHRBHE
RS REEZRERA R

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RR #HERERBRE

N BEBBEXZHABRQIAN
(BRI HEREREEE

Page
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VIIl.

"ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND AN
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE"” BY
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

ER®E

i
51 (&)

LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs
—REE
BAREERER

KPI'A1.5

BB AE RIRALS

KPI'A1.6

FAH 4B IR IRAT6

Aspect A2
BmEA2

General Disclosure
—REE

KPI' A2.1

B 5 45 R 1R A2 1

KPI A2.2
FASAR IR IR A2.2
KPI A2.3

FE S AR IR IR A2 .3

KPI A2.4

BE SR AR B IR A2 .4

Reporting Guideline
HEEL

A. Environmental (continued)

ARE (&)
Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.
FFTE] M E B R R AETE L B R A5 -
Description of how hazardous' and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.
HIEEEE REEEEYN L L
BRRAEDEL B ZRPTERENE 8 -

att FiT T 7 RO IRl BE

Use of Resources

EREH

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

BRERER (BIEEIR K M HEAD R F) B9 o

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.qg.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (MWh) and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility)

RERNESHNEEL, SRMERR(NE Rah)EREE
(AREEAE) RBE (NABES SN  FEEAGTE) -

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

REKENTE (WABEEEN BERMEIE)

oIk

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

R ATET LB RER M B RN RERE LR
ok N

12 T EEEX

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water

that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and

steps taken to achieve them.

it SREGE R KR Er] B EARE - - ARPTET S8 AR
ARk REINELERMERNTRE-

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021
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VIIl.

"ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE"” BY
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

N B#E
51y (&)

LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs
—REE
BARERER

KPI A2.5

BAHAE IS TRA2.5

Aspect A3
ETHA3
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI A3.1

B 5 45 AR 1R A3

Aspect A4
ETHEAL
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI A4.1

B 5 4B R AR A4

Reporting Guideline
HEEL

A. Environmental (continued)
ARE (&)
Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.
N mAAABREMENES
B {8 -

(AWEEHE) & (WER) B8EE

The Environment and Natural Resources
RERRXRARER

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

BMEBETAHRRERAERERERTEHHE -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

M EBEHHRERAAERNERAZEREHERE
BT ENTE -

Climate Change

RIRE 1L

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.

BRI KRR RAEGHBETAEEFENERRIRA
HEEREUR -

Description of the significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.

BB RAREEHETAEATENERRIGHEBEE
RIEL1TE) -

RS EEEERERAT
—E-—FEH

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RR #HERERBRE

FERBFTERIAN
(RE - HERERBREE
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VIIl.

"ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND AN
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE"” BY
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

ER®E

=B
51 (&)

LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs
—REE
BAREERER

Aspect B1
[EmB1

General Disclosure

—RKE

KPIB1.1

BB IR IEB1

KPI B1.2
BA 5248 B 1R .2
Aspect B2

[ B2

General Disclosure

— R

Reporting Guideline

HEES
B. Social
B.ALE
Employment and Labour Practices
&=

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

B RSB N R - RS % TS REY - FERSE -
Lt RIBAR A R E A 75 8 R g F 6y
(@) K

(b) BTHBEITABERZENRBERNAHINER -

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example,
full-or part-time), age group and geographical region.
IR EBEAR (N2 BERE)  FiaEn kbR a5 8
BEBAE-

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and

geographical region.

R Firdp RREDHEERKL X -

Staff Health and Occupational Safety

ETREAREZS

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing
a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.

BRARMLZ2TERELREEEREBELEEN:

(a) Eﬁlﬁ% &

(b) BFHETABERTENEAEZZLBRINEHR -

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021
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e S 45 A8 12 B 2.1

KPI B2.2
FAS A4S I 1RB2.2

KPI B2.3
RS2 48 12 B2.3
Aspect B3

EHB3
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B3.1

B SRR AR 1EB3

KPI B3.2

B 41 45 A5 132B3.2

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE - #HERERBRHSE

VIIl. “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND N BEBBEXZMERATMN
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE"” BY (BE HERERBREE
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG g|y (4&)

LIMITED (continued)
General
Disclosure/KPIs Reporting Guideline Page
—REE
BRENER &1 5l BE¥™
B. Social (continued)
BAi® (#&)
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each 106

of the past three years including the reporting year.

BE=ZF (BHRERFE)SFRAITHHAB L -

Lost days due to work injury. 105
EIGERTERE-
Description of occupational health and safety measures 101-106

adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.
R ER A B R R 25 A RBBRTRERS
hril

Development and Training

R KR

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for 106-109
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

BRERTHE B BT TIERE A A B N B AR BUR © 55 3l

EE e

The percentage of employees trained by gender and 108
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle

management).

BRERLREERN (NERRERE TREEE)EAHINX

JMEEA DL -

The average training hours completed per employee by 108
gender and employee category.

RUERNMEERERE D BREETKEINFHREH-

—

RS EEEERERAT
—E-—FEH

L
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VIIl. “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND AN
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE"” BY

ERBEXZMARDAMN
(BRR HERERBREE

/

THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

51 (&)

LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs Reporting Guideline Page
—RiEE
BERENER HEEL E#
B. Social (continued)
BAE (&)
Aspect B4 Labour Standards
[EEB4 Z IR
General Disclosure Information on: 109-110
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing
child and forced labour.
— AR R BRAMIEZE T o5 TrY :
(@) B3R s &
b) BEFHETABEAZENHBEZRELRONER -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to 109-110
avoid child and forced labour.
B 5245 I 1RBA. g R ESNE AR R E T KA ST -
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when 109-110
discovered.
B3 4B 1R B4.2 i 7 B3R E RIF R ERR B BB S P ERER A 22 B o
Aspect B5 Supply Chain Management
& EB5 fHEEEE
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the 111-113
supply chain.
— IR ERHEENRE R GRRIBEK -
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 111-113
B $ 48 R 1ZB5. 1 riBRE S HEREE -
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, 111-113

[6 i 45 W51 B5.2

number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

AR HERNIED  mERITHEBENNHERE
B - URBEBERITRERF A

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RR #HERERBRE

51 (&)

LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs
—REE
BARERER

KPI B5.3

8§/ 45 B 12 B5.3

KPI B5.4

B #1 45 A $5 1 B5.4

Aspect B6

/E T B6
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B6.1

3R 4 45 W 513 B6.1

KPI B6.2

8§/ 45 B 12 B6.2

Reporting Guideline
HEEL

B. Social (continued)
B.ALE ()
Description of practices used to identify environmental and
social risks.
B RAMN T ERESERHNRRE L SRERNES
AREBARITRER T -

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

i BRE R BT 8 2 MIRIRE m LIRS B - LA K
HEARITRERG &

Product Responsibility

EmEE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and methods of
redress.

FAMRHERNRBOHEREZS BE RELLESE

BRI ER -

(a) LR I

(b) BFHEBETABERTENEAEZRBROINER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.
EENCEXERARTAL2ERREHMADKRN R
Dt e

Number of products and service related complaints received
and how they are dealt with.

EEBNE M LR HRFBE AREE TA-

ﬁ%ﬂﬁ?éﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁl‘ﬁ’&?ﬁ

N BEBBEXZHABRQIAN

(RIR HERERBEE

Page
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VIIl.

"ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND AN
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE"” BY
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

ER®E

i
51 (&)

LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs
—REE
BAREERER

KPI B6.3

8§ 45 38 12 B6.3

KPI B6.4

i 45 5 1Z2B6.4

KPI B6.5

B 5245 IR 1RB6.5

Aspect B7
B B7

General Disclosure

—RKE

KPI'B7.1

8§ 45 A8 12 B 7.1

KPI B7.2

B i 45 W5 1RBT.2

Reporting Guideline
HEEL

B. Social (continued)
B.iE (#&)
Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.
fe B RS A E R BN -

Description of quality assurance process and recall

procedures.

HilEERTAERERBIKERF -

Description of consumer data protection and privacy

policies and how they are implemented and monitored.
MUHBEERRERALBERE  UREERITRERA

/Z:

Anti-corruption

RES

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BERAWILBE R BEFRLREN:

(a) BUR &

(b) BFHETABERTENEAEZ LRI ER -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
E@i&%ﬁﬂW%ﬁé‘ﬁ/\iﬁﬁ%}%ﬁﬁa%%ﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ?&%
GR:0E QDS EIEN

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.

By A e LR WAE - AMMBBRITRERTT -

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021
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RR #HERERBRE

N BEBBEXZHABRQIAN
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

51 (&)

LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs
—REE
BARERER

KPI B7.3
8 S 45 B 12 B7 .3

Aspect B8

JE F B8
General Disclosure

—RKE

KPI B8.1

B 4 45 W5 15 B8.1

KPI B8.2

8§ 45 38 12 B8.2

Reporting Guideline Page
wEE S BE
B. Social (continued)
BA®E (&)
Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors 120
and staff.
HmMEEREIRENREGTEI -
Community Investment
HERE
Policies on community engagement to understand the 121
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to
ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.
UL BE2EREREEMELRFTEMBRELERE 121
FeZE RN EaEE-
Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental 121
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
EIEREE (HE RESE -BIHk f@2F k-
m@t) °
(W]
Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus 121

area.

EEIBBMBAER (MEBEHKME) -

Note: Pt
1 The Group’s main business is operating department 1 AEBETEXFREAETER
stores, shopping centers and supermarkets. We did not BB RERT S Bl
generate any hazardous wastes. REEFETHEEEY-
RS REEZRERA R
sy

L



Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BRI S

KPMG'

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 146 to 288,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code") together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021

-

BHLESREEAXREZERERAA
& IR BR Y 8 3 A% BT R
(REREFMALZBERAA)

=z
=

PR BZETNNRFE1462288E Myttt 40 &
TEEEERAER AR ([ERAF]) REKE
DR (HE[EEE]) NGV BRE &
REER - —F+-_A=1+—BH%&
BUBRRER BEZB ILFENLGESE
mx meEakEMEENER GEE
HEHRNGERERER AREEH
BRENZT(BREIESHERBERE) -

HPRAR GEMBRREREBTE ST
fiAg((EEGHMAG])RHNELE
MsmE £ ([FEMBEREEL])E
EMARMRREEENR —T - —F+—
A=+ —BNHEAUM BRI REREEHE
ZBULFENEEVBRREEEETR
E YEEREEQAAMKI ZERREER
SKE SHmEL -

RREXE

B RBRELSEAMASRHNELE
TR ([HABJTED ) EITEZ TR
BAIRIRZFER /B T — S HARA
BE(RBMEEERFEMBEHRRNE
Fl - -RREBGHMREN [EXS
stEngsrsT Al ([<PRI)) EZERBBARE
B P47 B B 5 R 0 B A AR B BV (]
BEEX HMABLNEEE BHME
BBZFEL R TRAIETEMEREE-
BAEE RMAERNEZIEERD &
B ORBREREREHTER-

BRRELZEE
AREZSEERERANERHE &
BFIHARRE SRR HRENELPRE
ENFH S FRERMYEE M B R
RETEBECZLUNERT AR
BAL AU S IMEHRER



Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B % AR

RREKER (&)

Assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern

FEEREBECE 28D

Refer to Note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

FRH A BHRERT20b) °
The Key Audit Matter
BEREBELSE

As at 31 December 2021 the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB2,638,621,000 and incurred net loss of
RMB381,443,000 and had net cash used in operating
activities of RMB514,764,000 during the year ended 31
December 2021. Note 2(b) to the consolidated financial
statements explains how the directors of the Company
have formed a judgement that the going concern basis
is appropriate in preparing the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

RZEZ—F+-A=+—RH ESBZRBHEEFE
BARY2,638,621,000 UERRBE-T=-—F+=
A=+—RIEFEELEER T ARK381,443,0007C
ML RS MAR S FRARK514,764,0007T © 4765 Bt
BmEMEA20)@EE QAR ESHAERFELEEE
DESBGEMBRFRERES 2 HE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERPNAEESRSE

Our audit procedures in respect of the directors’
assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern included the following:

B EEERTAEEERELERNINER
EFEENATEIE:

o assessing and challenging the key
assumptions used by management in
the cash flow forecast (including annual
sales growth rate, gross margin and
necessary capital expenditure for retail
business) and evaluating whether there
were any indicators of management bias
by comparing the key assumptions to
forecast reviewed by management, historical
performance and externally available
information;

e FMEREREEENRHEESRERD (BFEF
BHEERE ENXRTEXBMTFER
AX)FERAZEEZEREZ TEBHLREE
BRREEEEEN 2R BERRRIND
ARENTHESEENBEEERE 2B

=
= ;

o comparing the cash flow forecast prepared
in the prior year with the current year’s
performance of the Group to assess how
accurate the prior year's cash flow forecast
was and making enquiries of management
as to the reasons for any significant
variations identified;

e RBEFEREZESRERAESEER
FRZRRETHR UABEFEZRSE
MEBTEA ERIEE WREREESRNEH
MERMEXREZESHZRE:

—

RS EEEERERAT
—E-—FEH
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BRI S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

RRELEE (&)

Assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern (continued)

TEERESELE €D (F)

Refer to Note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements. (continued)

BRI E BRI F20) o (&)
The Key Audit Matter (continued)
BEEZREE (&)

The directors of the Company made their assessment
of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
by preparing a cash flow forecast in which certain
key assumptions were applied. These key assumptions
included forecasts of annual sales growth rate, gross
margin and necessary capital expenditure for retail
business and the availability of banking and other
financing facilities as well as financial support from
Xi‘an Qujiang Cultural Financial Holdings (Group) Co.,
Ltd. (“Qujiang Financial Holdings”), a state-owned
enterprise, which is the controlling shareholder of
Qujiang Cultural Financial International Investment
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Based on the assessment, the directors concluded that
there are no material uncertainties related to events or
conditions which, individually or collectively, may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern.
ERFESARREBeRERAUNERAETEER
ROBEEBEFELEZRNMEET M -ZFFTERR
BRFEHEERE ENXRTEEBRLVEELAFX
ZTEA ARAIBARITREAMMRBERE ARKREAR
I @mER (KB ERLAF ([HISBZER])
ZHBERE  ZBECAHIXteRBIBREERRA A
(ERAIEFZERR) 2 EBRBRR -RIZTE EFRA
WA FEEFISERAEETERERELLENENX
BEARBENEMHHIBERAEBNERNTREEIE -

We identified going concern as a key audit matter
because a significant degree of management judgement
is involved in making this assessment and in forecasting
the future cash flows of the Group which are inherently
uncertain.

BN EREBHEED LT ERFEAAKRERNENEE 2R
RBEERERAELERHE REMABHELSERR
TBEEREE-
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
(continued)

EMNERTFNAEERRSE (&

o assessing the availability of banking
and other financing facilities during the
forecast period by inspecting relevant
underlying documentation in relation to
banking and other financing facilities and
evaluating whether the financing facilities
were sufficient to meet the Group’s needs
in the context of the cash flow forecast,
taking into the account any breach of
loan covenants which may trigger early
repayment of loans;

s ZERMEMERAEBERANBEERNE
RREAOMER  BiRREFARITREME
BHEEMNEBERTEREPHRRIT IR
R EREN A ESE  MAERERER
AR mEESEEMB 2R RETEA:

o inspecting the letter of financial support
from Qujiang Financial Holdings and
assessing the intention of Qujiang Financial
Holdings to provide such financial support,
the legality and enforceability of the terms
of the letter and the ability of Qujiang
Financial Holdings to provide such financial
support by inspecting financial information
of Qujiang Financial Holdings;

o MBI R M SRR - AT
TR RIR R B ST R M - KRR
BEMRATITY - ARGRBRE ISR

2R ) B 75 B KL AR i IR (B B S R Y
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B RS

RREKER (&)

Assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern (continued)

TEERESELE €D (F)

Refer to Note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements. (continued)

ARG AE BRI F20) - (&)
The Key Audit Matter (continued)
BEEZREE (&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit
(continued)

EMNERTFNAEERRSE (&

o obtaining from management sensitivity
analyses of the key assumptions (including
annual sales growth rate, gross margin
and necessary capital expenditure for retail
business) adopted in the cash flow forecast
prepared by management and assessing
the impact on the conclusions of the going
concern assessment; and

e ENMEREEHEREERHIJHRERERA
IR T2RR (ERFEHEERER
ENMXRBERBMFBZERRZ) 2%
Bt Wl hHBREN hERITE
&

o assessing the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements with
reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.

o ZERITEFEAZRTE HEERE MK
RZIEBERE -

—
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Independent Auditor’s Report
M A% B R R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

RRELEE (&)

Assessment of impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

BEKELEERENG

Refer to Notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes 2(e)

and (i).

R IR T 1415 R I iT2(e) R (D6 & B °

The Key Audit Matter
BRELSE

As at 31 December 2021, goodwill and intangible
assets, which arose from business acquisitions of
department store and supermarket operations in prior
years, amounted to RMB309.8 million and accounted
for approximately 4.3% of the Group's total assets at
that date. Impairment losses on goodwill and intangible
assets of RMB72.0 million were recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (nine months ended 31
December 2020: RMB365.9 million).
R_TB_—F+_A=+—RH BEKEFEE (FHBE
FEETEERSARBRTSEB 2 XKW EMEE)
EARK309.8HETT hZ A EEENREELNLI3% -
REZE-T-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFEZHREER
%WE%%WE&EKQFZWEEEAE%DOEE
T (BE —TEE+T_RA=T—HIEAEA: AR
365.95%772)

The financial performance of the Group's department
store and supermarket operations, as a consequence
of a slow-down in economic growth in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), as well as intense
competition from surrounding shopping malls and
online retail sales, has underperformed management'’s
expectations when these businesses were acquired,
which has increased the risk that goodwill and
intangible assets related to these business acquisitions
may be impaired.

HRPEARAMBE ([FE])EEERRERKEE
EBYPLOEFITENGEFNE SEEAERENK
BETHEEBOMBRAEBNREEERBZERBEN
TR EMTAEBRBZEEBNEENBLEE R
B & = B o
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHNERFNAEESRSE

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets included the

following:
BARHEREMEL EERENEZIZF BN
ERE

assessing and challenging the Group's
identification of cash-generating units
(“CGUs") and the allocation of goodwill,
intangible assets and other assets to those
CGUs;

HELEREEEURcEAEM ([BHE
FE SR BRI MZEReELEM

PhREE BREEMEMEE:

assessing the reliability of management’s
cash flow forecasting process by comparing
the previous year's forecasts with the
current period’s results, discussing
significant variances with management and
considering the effect of such variances on
the current period’s forecasts and if there
was any indication of management bias;
FRS - FRENRREEHRALE
FEEEER S RIENBENA] ST - *E-EM
BENREANRE TEBEZRE=HE
ANTENRRFERME f%fFiE’]EJT
EE



Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B % AR

RREKER (&)

Assessment of impairment of goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

BEREVEERERNL (&)

Refer to Notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes 2(e)

and (i). (continued)

2RSS I T IRAR M A 148154 K M i2(e) & ()9 & &t B °

The Key Audit Matter (continued)
REEZEE (&

Management performs impairment assessments of the
relevant CGUs to which goodwill and intangible assets
have been allocated at the end of each reporting period.
Management compares the carrying amount of each
CGU with its recoverable amount, which is determined
by assessing the value-in-use based on discounted cash
flow forecasts.
ERERABENSSHRESEBERBTEENEHM
ReEEEMETREN G - ERERSReELEMN
WEREEREFBNERENRRSREFAAATHE
REEEENAIKE S BETHLER-

The preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts
involves the exercise of significant management
judgement, in particular in forecasting revenue growth
and operating profit and in determining appropriate
discount rates.

MEBRBFHRBAASREREBEHRERAE LHEE
FEFE R R 3G R S A8 & 4 F A R B FE & O B IR R s o

We identified the assessment of impairment of goodwill
and intangible assets as a key audit matter because
the carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets are
material to the consolidated financial statements, and
also because management'’s forecasts of the future cash
flows involve certain critical judgements in respect of the
assumptions made, which are inherently uncertain and
could be subject to management bias.
BMRAHEREVEERENTEE —HEREZS
B RASHEMBEENROEHGRSUBHRKE
BEX HEEBEHARKRRS RIS LB BATELRR
BWETHRAG MZEAGLIE ERTHETEH - A6
RIEEERRIOZE -

(%)

How the matter was addressed in our audit
(continued)

EMNERTNAEERAEE (4)

involving our internal valuation specialists
to assist us in evaluating management’s
valuation methodology and assessing the
discount rate applied by comparison with
the discount rates for similar companies in
the same industry;

ZEER PR EEZR GBI EE
BENMGERE  RASBLRRTERMU
NAIMBEIR R - PP ER AV BE IR =

obtaining management’s sensitivity analysis
and challenging the key assumptions to
which the outcome of the impairment
assessments was most sensitive, including
forecast revenue and forecast profit
margins, and considering if there was
any indication of management bias in the
selection of these assumptions; and
ERERENGREDN  BrRBEN LS
REGURNERMERR (BRETEN S M FEA
MER) ZEEREEEATRBLRERE
EEEBEZSBRHEFEERERR &

considering the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in respect
of the impairment assessments and assessing
the adequacy of the disclosures against
prevailing accounting standards.
ZRBENGNZEE M B|MKRIELD 2B
B WA BT EAEL I KBRS
e

RS EEEERERAT
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Independent Auditor’s Report
M A% B R R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) FAREZSEE(F)
Valuation of land and buildings held for own use and investment properties
FEERZIHREFURREVEMLE
Refer to Notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes 2(g)
and (h).
BRI IREN F 12213 RIT3E2(9) R (h)E & a5 ©
The Key Audit Matter
BRELSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHNERFNAEESRSE

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation
of leasehold land and buildings held for own
use and investment properties included the
following:

B FIEE Az L KRB FUARKRE YL
ENEZEFBRENUATRE:

The Group is engaged in the operation of department
stores, a shopping mall and supermarkets in the PRC.
EEBIENEFETELLEAERS BYPLLBER
% e

The Group's land and buildings held for own use and

investment properties are revalued at the end of each
reporting period and are stated at their fair values.
EEEREERAZ L NEBTFURKREMEN SRS H
REM BEAREBEARK:.

As at 31 December 2021, land and buildings held for
own use and investment properties with aggregate
fair value of RMB4,191.8 million accounted for
approximately 58.1% of the Group's total assets at that
date. No valuation adjustment on investment properties
and surplus on revaluation of land and buildings held
for own use of RMB106.1 million were recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended December
2021 (nine months ended 31 December 2020 valuation
loss of RMBNil and surplus on revaluation of land and
buildings held for own use of RMB42 7 million).
RZE_—F+_A=1t—HB #BR2REBEAARK
4,191,800, OOOTEE’JT—H/EEﬁﬁziﬂﬂ&@+%&&ﬁf%¥
HZABEEEBREENSS81% BE-_T-_—F+=A
=+—BLEFE #BERGaER AN ERARE
RREMEHEAERRFEARZ LM REFZERR
BARKI066 1 BELT (BE-_ZE-TF+-_A=+—H
IENBEABEEBAREZEIAFEERLWRET Y
ERBHRARKL278ET) -
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assessing the external property valuer's
qualifications, expertise and experience and
considering the external property valuer's
objectivity and independence;

AN R M EMNER BREER
WEEREZE M RIBL

assessing whether the properties held by
the Group were valued on a consistent
basis using a consistent methodology by
inquiry of management and the external
property valuer and assessing whether
the valuation methodology is appropriate
with reference to the prevailing accounting
standards;

FRAMEERERINBYELEMTEE
SEMMFEMERRER —B I EE —HE
EEE URB2EZRITEFER A&

EHEARERE



Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BRERSIE (&)

Valuation of land and buildings held for own use and investment properties (continued)
BFIFEAZIHREFURREMEME (&)

Refer to Notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes 2(g)
and (h). (continued)

BRREE M BEHRENTI12RI3UA R F2(9) R (WS EKE - (&)

The Key Audit Matter (continued)
BREZSE (&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit
(continued)

EMNERTNAEEEAEE (&

The fair values of land and buildings held for own use
and investment properties were assessed by the board
of directors based on independent valuations prepared
by an external property valuer using certain estimates,
which included comparable market prices.

FIEERZ LM REFURKREMENRIABIHRES
SERIBYRMEEMERE TE (BREAIE LT
HER) BB L EM A -

We identified the valuation of land and buildings held
for own use and investment properties as a key audit
matter because of the significance of their value to the
Group's total assets and also because determining their
fair values involve a significant degree of judgement.
HARRFIEEBRAZ LW REFURKREMENEHER
—EAREZEE RARAEEYESELZEERSR
AN BEEHAAEBESREREERH -

involving our internal valuation specialists
to assist us in assessing the valuations
prepared by the external property valuer
by evaluating the valuation methodology
adopted and comparing the valuations with
recent sales transactions of properties of
the same type and in the similar location as
the Group’s properties which were subject
to valuation; and

Z BER P80 N B A B B K 15 B B AP s Ak o
Y EEEMRRNGE  SHEFTRAR G
BERE EBAEREERGEDERNERE
N EHBERNYERIHREER S &

considering the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in respect
of the valuation of land and buildings held
for own use and investment properties.
ZRGZEMBHREPEBFEER 2 L
REFUARREYEMERNIKEE -

RS EEEERERAT
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BRI S

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

B % AR

BRBMEZAREMBRRNEME

BANEEERGFEMBRRERES T
FHEE AR R (T A EGF R E 5 B
GEERE YHABEHMERNZH
B E - AMERBE-NN-—FARER
ADEFOFRERME TIRE TERNEM
A - HPIB AR AR RENADTRE M
MABBRAEEMEL

EERIFR —EBREKFNRE EBAL TR
BRREBEHEAETHNERBRER
Pi T FE B9 BE K 55 ¥ © #5 R 7J BE R KRR s iR
MRMEL ERXKBEESERYAER
ERPENZEREMBRRELNEE
RE-RIBEKX-

Ve B IRFRE B BE LT BAZ M —
5 BIER AR e S KB T
REF L - RIS
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BRI S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Cheung Tsz Chung.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

31 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEBE®R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE—ZFT-——F+-_A=+—HIFFEE

(Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB”)) (U ARE ([AREK])Z7])
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BZ HZE
—B-—-F —E-THF
+=A=+—8 +=—A=+—H
ILEE LIEAEA
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
it iE AR%Frx AR FT
Revenue U =5 4 494,280 397,021
Other income H A A 5 10,371 12,164
Cost of goods sold B S KA 19 (215,501) (161,264)
Sales and other taxes and surcharges 58 K E th £ 38 & M hn % (16,897) (15,334)
Staff costs 8 TR 6(b) (113,537) (76,552)
Depreciation expenses WERX 12 (156,145) (116,028)
Utilities expenses NHEBEMRAX (26,940) (21,490)
Advertisement expenses EERAX (11,599) (8,048)
Expected credit losses on trade and & Uk BR 5% & H fth & U X 78 HF
other receivables EEEE (2,523) (4,905)
Impairment losses on goodwill and &R EF L EREEIE
intangible assets 15 (72,000) (365,855)
Other operating expenses HiEEmE 6(c) (78,611) (242,701)
Loss from operations KEEIR (189,102) (602,992)
Net finance costs B & F 5 6(a) (169,760) (115,798)
Loss before taxation BRE A E B 6 (358,862) (718,790)
Income tax FTiS %4 7 (22,581) 53,611
Loss for the year/period FR/HANEER (381,443) (665,179)
Attributable to: HUTALEMN:
Equity shareholders of the ZAN/NSI1 S
Company (367,967) (635,095)
Non-controlling interests JEE R R (13,476) (30,084)
Loss for the year/period FRHRER (381,443) (665,179)
Basic and diluted loss per share SREALE#EER
(RMB) (AR ) 11 (0.158) (0.273)

F 1562288 H 2 M st JhAE A %2 5 I IS TR
235 e

The notes on pages 156 to 288 form part of these financial
statements.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REeREBERHEMEZE KRS R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

e
(Expressed in RMB)

—E - —FFZA=1T—HIFE

(KAREZ5)

Nine months

Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BZE BHE
—E-—fF —ETHF
+=A=+—B +t=—A=+—H
I E LIENE A
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it &t AR T ARKF T
Loss for the year/period FRHAER (381,443) (665,179)
Other comprehensive income for & HRH 2K
the year/period (after tax and (RINBRBEREH 2 E
reclassification adjustments): AE)
ltems that will not be reclassified to H#TAEEFDEEER 2
profit or loss: TH A :
— Surplus on revaluation of land —EffREERZ MR
and buildings held for own use EF A 10 79,904 16,988
— Equity securities at FVOCI-net —RARBEFEEEEE
movement in fair value reserve FFARMEEKEZ
(non-recycling) EmEHF-ARERKE
(TR &%) B e FHE 10 88,200 (37,973)
168,104 (20,985)-
ltem that may be reclassified HERAEMSREERERZ
subsequently to profit or loss: HH:
— Exchange differences on —BREREINE¥KZ
translation into presentation M+ ZRE
currency 10 (16,373) 15,026
(16,373) 15,026
Other comprehensive income FR/HREMEZEKE
for the year/period 151,731 (5,959)
Total comprehensive income FRHREZEKRZHEE
for the year/period (229,712) (671,138)
S BREEZRERA A

—E-FFR

L



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REeBEaRHEMEZEWE X
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #BZE_-FT_-_—#+_H=+—HILFZ
(Expressed in RMB)  (UAAR¥EZ27)

Nine months

Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

BZE HZE
—E-—F —E-THF

+=A=+-8 +t=A=+—H
1.3 IENE A

Note RMB000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥TRT ARETT

Attributable to: HUTALEMN:
Equity shareholders of the ZN/NSIES
Company (230,454) (634,933)
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR HE 2 742 (36,205)
Total comprehensive income FR/HANEE WSS
for the year/period (229,712) (671,138)

The notes on pages 156 to 288 form part of these financial %1562 288H Z Mi s T4 Z S M 15k &
statements. Z A7 °

/
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R &R

R-_E-—_—F+—-H=4+—H

At 31 December 2021

(Expressed in RMB) (LA A B Z7)
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R-ZB-Z—F R _FTF
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
K a¥ AR¥ T ARKFIT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property and equipment I E S 12 3,134,933 2,998,451
Investment properties KEME 13 1,347,798 1,265,300
Intangible assets | EE 14 274,646 209,646
Goodwill EES 15 35,129 72,129
Prepayments for acquisition of WHENXREREEL
properties and intangible assets S=ENE @] 17 1,982,153 1,655,682
Equity securities designated EEREBEAREFERHE
at fair value through other SFEE AEMEEKZEZ
comprehensive income (FVOCI) TE 23 78 55 18(a) 255,900 167,700
Financial assets measured at fair AR ETEAHE
value through profit or loss TABRZEREE
(FVPL) 18(b) 16,639 14,307
Deferred tax assets RIAEFRIAE 27(b) 11,537 13,976
7,058,735 6,397,191
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 19 24,523 34,516
Trade and other receivables & U B 5% % L i B R 20 59,595 237,430
Prepayments AT B 30,072 21,805
Cash at bank and on hand RITHEGFLFHERES 21 36,520 393,556
150,710 687,307
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables JiE {<F BR 2k K% L At B A< X 22 416,496 812,122
Contract liabilities aRAE 23 134,955 101,893
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMEE 24(a) 2,151,486 1,766,455
Lease liabilities HEBE 25 50,223 16,864
Income tax payable e FTiS %% 27(a) 36,171 36,632
2,789,331 2,733,966
Net current liabilities REBEEFHE (2,638,621) (2,046,659)
Total assets less current HWEEBRRBEE
liabilities 4,420,114 4,350,532 ;

HESEHEZRERD

3
—E-FFR

—
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBRRE
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-—#+_-A=+—H
(Expressed in RMB)  (UAAR¥EZ27)

At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
RZB-Z—F R_ZT_ZTF
t=A=+—-HB t—A=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it 7E AR¥ T ARKFIT
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Long-term provisions R HB S 20(b) 288,593 288,593
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EMEE 24(b) 1,459,576 1,349,000
Lease liabilities HMEaE 25 233,679 64,078
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEEE 27(b) 630,006 610,889
2,611,854 2,312,560
NET ASSETS EEFHE 1,808,260 2,037,972
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR &S 28
Share capital [N 199,369 199,369
Reserves {1 1,557,514 1,787,968
Total equity attributable to AARBRREGERERE
equity shareholders of the
Company 1,756,883 1,987,337
Non-controlling interests FEIERER 51,377 50,635
TOTAL EQUITY ERAEE 1,808,260 2,037,972

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

KEFeRN T __F=A=+—8HtE

31 March 2022. RT3 o
Huang Shunxu Qin Chuan
EIE#E =S
Chairman Director
FE EFE

The notes on pages 156 to 288 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REkafgB X

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB)  (AARKZ31)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARERREL
Share held
under share Property  Fair value Non-
Share award Capital  Contributed ~ revaluation reserve (non-  Statutory  Exchange Accumulated controlling Total
Share capital ~ premium scheme reserve surplus reserve  recycling) Teserves reserve losses Total interests equity
BiteliA NEER RAERE R Aif

kA RivEE R EARE  BARE G (Fwal®) ieRE EXEE  ZHER Rt s Ea

RMB000  RMBO00  RMB00O  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMB000  RMB'O0  RMB000  RMB00  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETT ARBETL ARETT ARETT ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETI ARETT ARETR
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note

20)  2800)  280i) 280 280)  280) 280w 28())  28(c)ivi)

t (Wit (Wit

(Hlat

206))  280)i)) 280

(L

200)  280) 280 280))

Balance at 31 March 2020

Changes in equity for the
period:

Loss for the period

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
for the period

Termination of share award
scheme (see Note 26(a))

Balance at 31 December
2020

R-B-%F
ZR=t-R&EH 199369 1,136,595 @922) (A4 995255 1153501 (1106

9 12958 95900 (902372 2621878 86,840 2,708,718

rEHEREH:
HnEE - - - - - - - - - (635095 (635095 (30,084  (665179)
Eth2EkR - - - - - 1698 (318%) - 1506 - 162 6121)  (5959)
BhzENREE
- - - - - 1698 (3185 - 15026 (635095 (634933) (36205  (671,139)
- - 2922 (2,530) - - - - - - 39 - 39
Skt 3:3
tZA=t-H
&s 199,369 1,136,595 - (74944 995255 1170489 (142471) 129585 110926 (1537467) 1987337 50635 2,037,972

—

RS EEEERERAT
—E-—FEH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEREa® 8K

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB)  (UAAR¥EZ27)

Property  Fair value Non-
Share Capital Contributed revaluation reserve (non-  Statutory  Exchange Accumulated controlling Total
Share capital  premium reserve surplus reserve  recycling)  reserves reserve losses Total interests equity
NRER DAERE FER ait

kx  REE EARE  HAR& e (Fo®) GeRE EXRE  ZHER ait E# E#
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFRL ARETR ARETL ARETT AREFn ARETR ARETR ARETL ARETT AREFn ARETT ARETR
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
28(c) 280))  28(alii) - 28(c)iv) 28)) 28l 28(dli)) 28w

, o

280) 200)  280Ni))  280\w) 200)  28000)  280)  28Hi)

Balance at 1January 201~ W=F=-%-f-H
Geh 199369 1,136,595 (74,944) 995,255 1,170,489 (142,471) 129,585 110926 (1,537467) 1,987,337 50635 2,037,972

Changes in equity forthe ~ AFEEZEH:

year:
Loss for the year rEERE - - - - - - - - (36797 (367967)  (13476)  (381443)
Other comprehensive income 2 MG = - - - 79,904 73,982 - (16,373) - 137,513 14218 151,731

Total comprehensive income  AFE2EHHAE
for the year - - - - 79,904 73,982 = (16373)  (367.967)  (230,454) 742 (229,712

Balance at 31 December 2021 W=Z=-%
TZR=T-REH 199,369 1,136,595 (74,944) 995,255 1,250,393 (68,489) 129,585 94553 (1,905434) 1,756,883 51377 1,808,260

The notes on pages 156 to 288 form part of these financial ~ 5 156% 2888 v Wi sT Jh4ER % B I M=
statements. Z &bt e
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—T-_—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB)

(KAREZ5)

Nine months

Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
5= H=E
—E_—&F -
+=A=+—-8 +=A=+—H
IEFE IEE A
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Kt &t AR¥Fx ARETFT
Operating activities RETH
Loss before taxation BRI A& 18 (358,862) (718,790)
Adjustments for: o EE
Depreciation expenses TERX 12 156,145 116,028
Expected credit losses on trade JFE s B 73R Ko HL Ath 8 LW R 78 BR
and other receivables BElR 2,523 4,905
Impairment losses on goodwill HELREREEREBSE
and intangible assets 15 72,000 365,855
Net loss on disposal of property BEEMERZE BB FHE
and equipment 6(c) 9,433 3,198
Interest income F B U A 5 (5,339) (11,264)
Dividend income A% 8 Ua A 5 (2,700) (900)
Net finance costs B & R 58 6(a) 169,760 115,798
Change in fair value of financial BEARBEFEAEEEHTA
assets measured at FVPL BaseRMEEZARE
g0) (2,332) -
Changes in working capital: LEEEF:
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,(m) 9,993 (6,954)
Increase in trade and other B 5 & H b UK TE 2 38 10
receivables (201,005) (170,763)
Decease in restricted cash at bank = PREEITIR SR 428 26,292
Decrease in trade and other FETBR A R E b FE ST 3R 2 R
payables 2 (370,207) (177,377)
Increase in contract liabilities AEHaEZEM 33,062 17,393
Increase in long-term provisions REEBRZEM - 194,547
Net cash used in operations KEFFHBRESFE (487,101) (242,032)
Income tax (paid)/refunded (B /BRENSEH 27(a) (27,663) 610
Net cash used in operating RETHIARSER
activities (514,764) (241,422)
iR STEEEERERA

=
—E-—FEH

L



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB)  (UAAR¥EZ27)
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Bz BHE
—E_-—F -
+=HA=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
IHFE LEAE A
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
fftf &t AR T ARKF T
Investing activities REED
Payments for the purchase of BEMERZBRNK
property and equipment (4,483) (3,155)
Proceeds from disposal of property BB &EREZ
and equipment FT1S 318 161 471
Payments for the purchase of BERARBEFEHEEZH
financial assets measured at FVPL ~ AR S REE 2 MK - (14,307)
Interests received B F| B 5,339 11,264
Dividends received from the equity WIEEAZRAREFEBEEE
securities designated at FVOCI Bt AR 2 2 i
B ESRRE 2,700 900
Net cash generated from/(used ®R&EEEHFE  (FTA)
in) investing activities HEFE 3,717 (4,827)
Financing activities REEE
Capital element of lease rentals ENMHEzERE D
paid 21(b) (67,610) (21,644)
Interest element of lease rentals EfHe e
paid 21(b) (9,442) (4,098)
Proceeds from new bank loans LR ITE RS RIE 21(b) 830,000 717,984
Proceeds from new other I EH MBS HRIE
borrowings 21(b) 1,740,977 1,640,000
Proceeds from termination of share #% | B {7 8251 Bl Fr 15 7118
award scheme - 392
Repayment of bank loans EERITENK 21(b) (1,296,072) (1,645,862)
Repayment of other borrowings BEAMES 21(b) (832,727) (288,951)
Decrease in restricted cash at bank S RIE7TIH LR 21(a) 281,885 160,193
Other finance costs paid H 2 g & B AN 21(b) (210,578) (232,148)
Net cash generated from RMETBHRERESFE
financing activities 436,433 325,866

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mEEERER
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—T-_—F+-_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB)  (AARKZ31)

Nine months

Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

BZE HZE
—E-—F —ETHF

+=A=+—-8 +=A=+—H
1.3 IENE A

Note RMB000 RMB’000
Mt &t AR¥TRT ARETT

Net (decrease)/increase incash BRERBEELZEHIERHZ
and cash equivalents R % (74,614) 79,617

Cash and cash equivalents at the & Hi#IHE€RRE
beginning of the year/period £EER 21(a) 104,966 25,731

Effect of foreign exchange rate /M R RS g~
changes ga (109) (382)

Cash and cash equivalents at the £ "HRXEER
end of the year/period RE&EZEEHER 21(a) 30,243 104,966

The notes on pages 156 to 288 form part of these financial ~ 5 156% 2888 v Wi 5T JhEA 5% Z B I &
statements. = 3V

—
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZFIER BRIUAREZS)

/

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 8 August 2000 as
an exempted company with limited liability under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. The shares of the
Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 23 October
2000. The consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”). The principal activities of
the Group are the operation of department stores, a
shopping mall and supermarkets in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC").

On 1 December 2019, Maritime Century Limited (“MCL",
the then substantial shareholder of the Company, and a
company wholly-owned by Ginwa Investments Holding
Group Limited (“Ginwa Investments”), which in turn is
owned as to 96% by Mr. Wu Yijian), Ginwa Investments
and Mr. Wu Yijian entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “SPA”) with Xi'an Qujiang Cultural
Financial Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Qujiang Financial
Holdings”) and Qujiang Cultural Financial International
Investment Limited (“Qujiang Investment”, and together
with Qujiang Financial Holdings, the “Purchasers”),
pursuant to which MCL agreed to dispose of, and the
Purchasers agreed to purchase, 336,166,156 ordinary
shares in the Company each with a nominal value of
HK$0.10 (the “Sale Shares”) at a consideration of
HK$0.2123 per Sale Share, equivalent to an aggregate
consideration of HK$71,368,075. On 5 June 2020, all the
conditions precedent in the SPA were satisfied or waived,
and the sale and purchase of the Sale Shares under the
SPA was completed (the “Completion”). Following the
Completion, Quijiang Investment became a substantial
shareholder of the Company, holding 29.24% of the
issued ordinary shares of the Company.

ARIER

LR SIEIEERBERAF (AR
AR _ZEZZFNANBREER
E-—NAN—FRAVERBREFMK
VEAEREERAR AR RZKMN
R-_ZEETF+A-+=HRBEES
BEMEXZHMABR AR ([BRFAT])
tH-ARRAREE-_T=-_—F+_A
ST+—RLEFEZHEEVBERS
RARRREWBAR (KB I4AE
B AEBZEFEXBANPEA
EHME ([FE])ELEAEES B
P 0 R BB AR T o

R=ZZ—NF+=H—H "  Maritime
Century Limited ([MCL] R FE
REERRERAEBSEREZER
EEERQAR([&EHRE]2EH
BEZRR &R ERR —BELER
B%%iEDR) SHEHKERR —BRE
SHEFETHT S BIER (EE)
BERAA ([T IZERR]) RihT
Mt BRI EBR AR ([#T
RE| EHfTEMERABEAIE
AL EEHZE([EEHZE]) -
BHEMCLAELEE EXRREREE
336,166,156/% & % H{B0.107%5 7T 2
AArERRRG ([HERD]) -
REASRHEERD0.2123F T
HEREREAET71,368,075%8 7T A
TE-TEXAAB - BEEWMEZM
BRRGHHEEK ST E MEE
HRETZRHOZEEE K ([5E
K1) o SR8 I REDKAARA
AIZEEZRR FHEARAIDEITE
BRTA D 229.24% °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting period reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the board of
directors of the Company dated 3 September
2020, the Company’s financial year end date has
been changed from 31 March to 31 December.
Accordingly, the current financial statements will
cover a financial year from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021. The comparative figures (which
cover the financial period from 1 April 2020 to 31
December 2020) for the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement and related notes
are not comparable with those of the current year.

Bt 75 R R Y &

BE—_T - —F+_A=+—HIFEE

(BIFFEEH BRIAAREZS)

2 EIBEREH

(a)

(b)

BHIEHA

AZEMBRRCREBEABERZ
M BHREE ([FEHK
WEER]) - BEBESFEQ
([ZEESFHMAG])BEMZ
FrA @AM @RI FEM G HREE
A B ER ([FEGE
A RBBARBEARESR
[RAI- ZEMBMRITTEER
N AVEB 2 8 R FE R E A R
B rE s EmARR (T EmR
Al]) 2 BRI BRI - NEEIX
MZEBEHRBELT -

BEGEMAGERMETER
M mEEANER] YR AKHE
Z AN e B ER A Rk AT i
RPN - ARERZFRARE
BB 2B BT HERE LR P
BEARATETHEZ &K
REF ERMRRZFFHREK
W BRER IR KT E2(c) °

MR REBREE

BEARREZEESRABAGPAC
E_FFENA=ZBZ2REFER K
RAIZHBFEELHERR=AR
—t—HEMAT=-_A=1+—
BRIl A BEHmESERE =
T —F—HA—HEEZ_ZT—_—%F
+ A=+ —BZYWHRFE 4R
EETKX meEakEMER
WEk ReaEREBRREE
REMERARABBEM 2 LR
HFY (REBH-_ZT_TFHOA—
BEEE—_Z " ZTF+_-_H=+—
HiE B EBRERE) BAFE 2%
ZYH T AL

RS EEEERERAT
—E-—FEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BIBREEE(£2)
(continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial (b) BIBEBMREMEE (&)

/

statements (continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except for investments in equity securities (see Note
2(f)), land and buildings held for own use (see Note
2(g)) and investment property (see Note 2(h)) which
are stated at their fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R M &t
BE—F-—F+-A=+—HUFE
(BRIHFFEIEH  BRIKAREZ5])

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BIBREEE(£)
(continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial (b) BIBEBMREMEE (&)

statements (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net
current liabilities of RMB2,638,621,000 and
incurred net loss of RMB381,443,000 and
had net cash used in operating activities of
RMB514,764,000 during the year ended 31
December 2021. However, the directors of
the Company do not consider that material
uncertainties related to events or conditions
exist which, individually or collectively, may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. This is because based on a
cash flow forecast of the Group for the twelve
months ending 31 December 2022 prepared by the
management, which has taken into account:

—  the Group has obtained a short-term loan from
a bank of RMB90,000,000 after the end of the
reporting period;

—  the Group has obtained a financial support
letter from Qujiang Financial Holdings (the
controlling shareholder of Qujiang Investment),
a state-owned enterprise, who has agreed to
provide loan facility of RMB3 billion to the
Group and provide guarantees for the loan
facilities from banks or any other financial
institutions. Also, Qujiang Financial Holdings
has agreed to extend its short-term loans
granted to the Group of RMB1,221,486,133
(see Notes 24(a) and 32(a)) when they fall due.
The directors are of the opinion the Group is
highly dependent on the financial support of
Quijiang Financial Holdings for at least twelve
months from the end of the reporting period;

The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the Group will have adequate funds to
meet its liabilities as and when they fall due
for at least twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. Accordingly, the directors are of
the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the
Group's financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 on a going concern basis.

RZEBE-_—F+_A=+—
A AEBZRBEBEFEAA
R #2,638,621,0007T * LA R A
HE_T-—F+A=+—
BIEFEELEBEFEARE
381,443,0007T M 4 & E & B A
I & F R AR®514,764,000
TLeAM ARABEERE W
PNFEERI BRI eSS
B ECER N EREARED
EMNBABBHNEATET
Mot TR BIEEEERE 2
REEBHE T -_—_F+_H
=t+—HIE+ZEARZBEERE
JER - HEBEEE:

- RBHFHPRE AKEE

B —RRTRERAER
AR #90,000,0007T :

- AEEa-HEALFMH

T2 BER (BHIREZ
T ARAR R ) HRAS B 7 ST ER
# EEREAAEEREM
ARBIVETLZERBME
URARITESHRIER
HEEREER UL -
T B LR R 2 R B B A
EERFRTASEB 2EBE
AR #1,221,486,1337C
(R M sE24(a)}232(a)) + &
ERE AEEBHREHK
BELT+—EAARSERK
BT SmIER 2 B x

S

ARREERAE AKEHER
WECRENEEBREHRER
V@AM EE Fitt
EEZRA RFBEKERERE
AEBBEE-_TS=-—F+=A
=+t RIEFEZHERERTIB

ath

HE e

RS EEEERERAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to these financial
statements for the current accounting period:

o Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest rate
benchmark reform — phase 2

° Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-related
rent concessions beyond 30 June 2021

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period. Impacts of the adoption
of the amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest rate benchmark
reform — phase 2

The amendments provide targeted reliefs from (i)
accounting for changes in the basis for determining
contractual cash flows of financial assets, financial
liabilities and lease liabilities as modifications,
and (ii) discontinuing hedge accounting when
an interest rate benchmark is replaced by an
alternative benchmark rate as a result of the reform
of interbank offered rates (“IBOR reform”). The
amendments do not have an impact on these
financial statements as the Group does not have
contracts that are indexed to benchmark interest
rates which are subject to the IBOR reform.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZHEHH  BAIAAREZ3)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BIBREEE(£)
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(d) HMEARAKRFEZERES

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
interests in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms
with the holders of those equity interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having a
contractual obligation in respect of those equity
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the period
between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’'s equity interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but
no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain
or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire equity
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Any equity interests retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture.

In the Company’'s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see Note 2(k)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e) Goodwill

()

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess
is recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see Note 2(k)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Investments in equity securities

The Group’'s policies for investments in equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associate and joint venture, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investment. The investments are
initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
for which transaction costs are recognised directly
in profit or loss. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE_—_FT—-_—F+_-_HA=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f) Investments in equity securities (continued)

(i) Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

Annual Report 2021

amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments
of principal and interest. Interest income
from the investment is calculated using
the effective interest method (see Note

2(u)(vi)).

fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) — recycling, if the
contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from
equity to profit or loss.

FVPL if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the
fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(f) Investments in equity securities (continued)
(ii) Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment is
not held for trading purposes and on
initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the
investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer's perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained profits. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised
in profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policy set out in Note 2(u)(v).

(g) Property and equipment

Land and buildings held for own use are stated at
their revalued amount, being their fair values at
the date of the revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amounts of these assets
do not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair values at the end of the
reporting period.
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE_—_FT—-_—F+_-_HA=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(g) Property and equipment (continued)

Changes arising on the revaluation of land and
buildings held for own use are generally dealt
with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the property
revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as
follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the amount held in the reserve in
respect of that same asset immediately prior to
the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or
loss.

Residential properties held for own use and other
items of property and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Note 2(k)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation
surplus is transferred from the property revaluation
reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(g) Property and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property and equipment, less
their estimated residual values, using the straight-
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line method over their estimated useful lives as T ¢
follows:
Estimated
useful lives
fhat £ A F 5
Land and buildings held for own use carried at fair value 20 — 50 years
NAREIRZFEER L RET 20E504F
Residential properties held for own use carried at cost and leasehold
improvements 3 — 35 years
BRERAVEZHEEREEMERBEMEEE 3E354F
Properties leased for own use 1 - 13 years
BEREEYE 12135
Furniture fixtures and equipment 3 — 28 years
BRI KB RRE 3% 28%F
Motor vehicles 3 - 10 years
BEBRITA 3E106F
Where parts of an item of property and equipment =N EENZ I MDA TR

have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of
the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value
are reviewed annually.

No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

(h) Investment property

Investment property is land and/or building which
is owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
Note 2(j)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

()

()

Investment property (continued)

Investment property is stated at fair value, unless it
is still in the course of construction or development
at the end of the reporting period and its fair value
cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment property is accounted for as described in
Note 2(u)(iii).

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see Note 2(k)).

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for prospectively from the date of change and is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% R 3k MY &
BE—_f-—F+=-A=+—HIFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(j) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate non-
lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for
all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily office furniture. When the Group
enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over the
lease term, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

/

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEBX2E (£Z)
(continued)
(j) Leased assets (continued) () HEBEE (&)
(i) As a lessee (continued) (i) EBEBA(E)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Notes 2(g) and 2(k)(iii)), except for
the right-of-use assets that meet the definition
of investment property are carried at fair value
in accordance with Note 2(h);

The initial fair value of refundable rental
deposits is accounted for separately from the
right-of-use assets in accordance with the
accounting policy applicable to investments in
debt securities carried at amortised cost. Any
difference between the initial fair value and
the nominal value of the deposits is accounted
for as additional lease payments made and is
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group's estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% R 3k MY &
BE—_f-—F+=-A=+—HIFE
(BISBEHER TAUARKZZ)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(j) Leased assets (continued)

2 EIBXREF(4F)

() HEEE#H)

(i) As a lessee (continued) (i) ERFRBA (&)
The lease liability is also remeasured when EHEHRAENHEEL
there is a change in the scope of a lease RE(LIZVREES
or the consideration for a lease that is not AR EE) ([HEZFE])
originally provided for in the lease contract WAREABILHEE AR
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted B -HEaEMTEHT
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease E-BRAT HEERE
liability is remeasured based on the revised RIS R & 5% M 18 B
lease payments and lease term using a LAMERT AR B Bl 2 & 5]
revised discount rate at the effective date BEIREE T2 oM — Ol
of the modification. The only exceptions are ShEECOVID-19%Z 1EME
rent concessions that occurred as a direct BEERUHFERBUBER
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and H AR E 165570 & 5468
met the conditions set out in paragraph 46B ERFFEIGRHHME R R -
of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group EZEBLAT AKEE
has taken advantage of the practical expedient FMAERERE 25 TF
not to assess whether the rent concessions HHEFTESCTBEMEE
are lease modifications, and recognised the f& 2R - N0 PR S 2 78 & 4 AT
change in consideration as negative variable B2 E R34 2 B
lease payments in profit or loss in the period in M- EEaASREZD
which the event or condition that triggers the mRABERAEHHEE -
rent concessions occurred.
In the consolidated statement of financial EHEEMBMRAES K
position, the current portion of long-term HESEaEN RS rE
lease liabilities is determined as the present R EBRE + ZE
value of contractual payments that are due RARBZNEE LK
to be settled within twelve months after the HIRME
reporting period.

(ii) As a lessor (i) ERHAA
When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines EAEEEANE AR

at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the
lease is classified as an operating lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

/

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEBX2E (£Z)
(continued)
(j) Leased assets (continued) () HEBEE (&)
(ii) As a lessor (continued) (i) FERBHHAA (E)

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with Note

2(u)(iii).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
sub-leases are classified as a finance lease or as
an operating lease with reference to the right-
of-use asset arising from the head lease. If the
head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the exemption described in Note
2(j)(i), then the Group classifies the sub-lease
as an operating lease.

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following
item:

HWEMNBEEHENMEEE
B fp - AR B 1% 40 H 98
VEBEEKAEHTZHK
BEoRkR=xEH K&H
&2 HESWAREMHEE2(U)
(iii) 7R

WARERTELEA
AlpHE2EZRREEE
EZEREEER DR
AREHEIKERE-
MAEREREHEE M
7 5% [ & B S 2()) (i) B st
e AAEESSES
BAREHEE-

(k) FEBEKREERE

(i)

ERMTAZIEEEE
AEERBHEEEERE
A NYIEB M EREE:

- financial assets measured at amortised - REHEKATENR
cost (including cash and cash equivalents MEE (BERE2K
and trade and other receivables); HeEBEERANE

I BR 3R & H b fE Uk
)

Financial assets measured at fair value,
including equity securities measured at FVPL
and equity securities designated at FVOCI
(non-recycling) are not subject to the ECL
assessment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% R 3k MY &
BE—_f-—F+=-A=+—HIFE
(BISBEHER TAUARKZZ)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

2 EIBXREF(4F)

(k) FEBEREERE (&)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () MITAZIEEEE
(continued) (&)
Measurement of ECLs FrTEFAHEEEE

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

—  fixed-rate financial assets and trade and
other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate;

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

BHREEBREAEEER
MR G -EEE
BAMERMREZEN
RE(AREBEENENT
AEEMRSREBERE
BFEF MBS RELZ
R ZR)TE -

WHBE Y EEA EH
6 2= IG5 A TR
ESIER

- BEENEEBMEER

B B I X A
R E R HERE
£ 2 B K SR
1A

- EFONXREREE:

BITERH =

et RBEEEERAE
EHHRARASAEER
HEERBRNZES R H
]

LR SR
AREEEEEEE T
BERARGE N TEA
BEHARARER UL E
BEARATEE BB
RO T SR IRA I 4R R
BB R

RS EEEERERAT
—E-—FEH

—

ﬁ



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BIBREEE(£2)

/

4

(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)
Measurement of ECLs (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default

(k) FEBEREERE (&)

(i)

EHMTAZIEEEA
(%)
FTERHIEEER (&)

A5 BB BRI IA T
R

- NREABRHMEES
B WS B HER2

events within the 12 months after the & A A A] gE 2 A /Y 32
reporting date; and OEREATRCES OB RS
EiE &

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives

- EREFEHNESE
EEBE - ERYEER
EIEEEREE M

of the items to which the ECL model TEHAF HA NPT A A B
applies. EANSHMERWTE
RS 1E -

Loss allowances for trade receivables are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix based
on the historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at
the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or
(ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due.
The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BIBREEE(£2)

/

(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account,
except for investments in debt securities that
are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which
the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
fair value reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
Note 2(u)(vi) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

—  significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties
of the issuer.

Werite-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BIBREEE(£2)
(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(ii) Credit losses from financial guarantees (i) BERHHEIERZIEES

(k) FEBEREERE (&)

/

issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially
recognised at fair value, which is determined
by reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services, when
such information is obtainable, or to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual
rates charged by lenders when the guarantee
is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made.
Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group’s policies applicable to that category
of asset. Where no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount
initially recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—T-_—F+-_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZHEHH  BAIAAREZ3)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SIHEEH(£)
(continued)
(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(k) FEBEREERE (&)

(i) ERHMBERZEERS

(ii) Credit losses from financial guarantees

issued (continued)

The Group monitors the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract and
recognises a provision when ECLs on the
financial guarantees are determined to be
higher than the carrying amount carried in
respect of the guarantees (i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers
changes in the risk of default of the specified
debtor since the issuance of the guarantee. A
12-month ECL is measured unless the risk that
the specified debtor will default has increased
significantly since the guarantee is issued,
in which case a lifetime ECL is measured.
The same definition of default and the same
assessment of significant increase in credit risk
as described in Note 2(k)(i) apply.

As the Group is required to make payments
only in the event of a default by the specified
debtor in accordance with the terms of the
instrument that is guaranteed, an ECL is
estimated based on the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it
incurs less any amount that the Group expects
to receive from the holder of the guarantee,
the specified debtor or any other party. The
amount is then discounted using the current
risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the
cash flows.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZFIER BRIUAREZS)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each end of reporting period
to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

- property and equipment, including
right-of-use assets (other than land and
buildings held for own use stated at

revalued amounts);
- intangible assets;

- goodwill

- non-current prepayments for acquisitions

of properties; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the
Company's statement of financial

position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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BE—_T - —F+_A=+—HIFEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). A portion of
the carrying amount of a corporate asset
(for example, head office building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating
unit if the allocation can be done on a
reasonable and consistent basis, or to the
smallest group of cash-generating units if
otherwise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

U]

(continued)

(iv) Interim financial reporting and

impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see Notes 2(k)(i) and 2(k)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process of
production for such sale or in the form of materials
or supplies to be consumed in the production
process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method
and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to
the sales proceeds of items sold in the ordinary
course of business subsequent to the financial year
end date or to management estimates based on
prevailing market conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZFIER BRIUAREZS)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBIERXEH (&)

(continued)

() Inventories (continued) n #wE(E)
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of EHEFER ZSEEREE
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the RE A tER 2 A AR R
period in which the related revenue is recognised. F X e
The amount of any write-down of inventories to FAFE S EMOR M E 0] #I5)F
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are BERFEZFBERGNMRE
recognised as an expense in the period the write- BRZEAHMABRAREZ 17
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal B HOR R B 2 & FE R 0] 3
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a 7 BN R ER R E R A
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised XZTFERBIRD -
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

(m) Trade and other receivables (m) FEURBR X & H fth P& UK
A receivable is recognised when the Group has an FEWCRIER AN R B B SRR
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right WEKBR T A®R - W EE
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the BERFEHEB RN g X R D HAELT -
passage of time is required before payment of that B ER X (B & 1 B A R ik o
consideration is due.
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant WESEAMELD ZEKE S
financing component are initially measured at their RRYTRERGBFE-BE
transaction price. Trade receivables that contain BEARMEH S 2EKEFER
a significant financing component and other N CE fth B WO IB ¥ 2 #2 R P {E
receivables are initially measured at fair value plus MR BKAGE - B EUEIE
transaction costs. All receivables are subsequently Hg A ERN R R REHK AR
stated at amortised cost, using the effective interest Pl - WERFEEEEEREE (R
method and including allowance for credit losses M aE2(k)(0) ) °
(see Note 2(k)(i)).

(n) Interest-bearing borrowings (n) SEEE

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense
is recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note
2(w)).

SEEENSRATFEREGR
SRATER - RY S HERE &
EEERAERF SSAIREHEMK
RHEE - FIEFALBIEASES
BEEXRAZ S ERER (R
B EE2(wW) ) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Convertible preference share capital

Convertible preference share capital is classified as
equity if it is non-redeemable, or redeemable only
at the Company’s option, and any dividends are
discretionary. Dividends on convertible preference
share capital classified as equity are recognised as
distributions within equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
trade and other payables are stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice
amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy set
out in Note 2(k)(i).

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the period in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts
are stated at their present values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Share-based payments

Annual Report 2021

Share option scheme

The fair value of share options granted
to employees and service providers
is recognised as an employee cost or
operating expense with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date
using the Black-Scholes Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected to vest
is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to
profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Share-based payments (continued)

Share award scheme

The shares awarded under the share
award scheme are acquired from open
market. The net consideration paid,
including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as “Shares
held under share award scheme” and
deducted from equity.

For shares granted under the share
award scheme, the fair value of shares
granted to employees is recognised as
an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve within equity.
The fair value is based on the closing
price of the Company’s shares on grant
date plus any directly attributable
incremental costs. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the
shares, the total fair value of the shares
is spread over the vesting period, taking
into account the probability that the
shares will vest.

During the vesting period, the number
of shares that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to profit
or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of shares that
vest with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

(s)

Employee benefits (continued)
(ii) Share-based payments (continued)
—  Share award scheme (continued)

When the awarded shares are transferred
to the awardees upon vesting, the related
weighted average acquisition cost of
the awarded shares vested are credited
to “Shares held under share award
scheme”, and the grant date fair value
of the awarded shares vested are debited
to the capital reserve. The difference
between the related weighted average
acquisition cost and the grant date fair
value of the awarded shares vested is
transferred to retained profits directly.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate to
business combinations, or items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the period, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BIBEEH (EZ)

(continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

Where investment property is carried at its fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(h), the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of this asset at its carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BIBEEH (EZ)

(continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to
settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed
by another party, a separate asset is recognised
for any expected reimbursement that would be
virtually certain. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of
the provision.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—T-_—F+-_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZHEHH  BAIAAREZ3)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BIBEEH (EZ)
(continued)

(u) Revenue and other income

(u) WEKEEMEA

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sale of goods and net income from
concession sales

Revenue arising from the sale of goods
and net income from concession sales
are recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the goods. No
revenue or net income is recognised if
there are significant uncertainties regarding
recovery of the consideration due, the
possible return of goods, or continuing
management involvement with the goods.
Payments received in advance from customers
that are related to sales of goods not yet
delivered are deferred in contract liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Revenue is recognised when goods
are delivered to the customers. After expiry of
prepaid stored value cards, the corresponding
receipts in advance are normally recognised
as income based on the Group’s previous
experience in forfeiture of prepaid stored value
cards by customers.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBIEEREH (F)
(continued)
(u) Revenue and other income (continued) (u) WEREMEKA (&)
(ii) Service fee income (i) FRBEERA
Service fee income from the operation REBEHS BYHPLO
of department stores, shopping mall and NBRTIS 2 REE KA
supermarkets is recognised when the related P B L A8 PR 75 B EER o

services are rendered.

(iii) Rental income from operating leases (iii) HBEHEZHELWA
Rental income receivable under operating reEg 2z EIKNHES WAL
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal MEHMRERRER - LA
instalments over the periods covered by the EHEEaTHER BN
lease term, except where an alternative basis is B H b B E R F OB
more representative of the pattern of benefits ERNEEEEMEL
to be derived from the use of the leased By Us 25 48 = I BR A1 o R
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised ZHERBEBEPER
in profit or loss as an integral part of the AREUCFHSBRTEAEN
aggregate net lease payments receivable. B9 o S BUR R 48 B3k A
Variable lease payments that do not depend =2 A B E N R BRER
on an index or a rate are recognised as income i HEBR AR
in the accounting period in which they are
earned.

(iv) Customer loyalty programme (iv) EFEHEE
The Group’s customer loyalty programme AEBZE P BHEE
awards customers credits which entitle the REEFES MAME
customers to the right to exchange for AETEFPENIBRIRE
products offered under the customer loyalty BEPEBEEFRMEZ
programme and gives rise to a separate EmIELEEBNBENE
performance obligation. The Group allocated F-AKEEZREEBLE
a portion of the transaction price to the BRARE—HHORX5EBHEE
customer loyalty programme based on relative XFPAHEFE -FHAR
standalone selling price. Such amount is REELCERE mMkaeg
deferred and revenue is recognised when the REt 8B BEER & ARE
programme credits are redeemed and the EEBITHRERTPTH
Group has fulfilled its obligations to supply the EitgIREEMCBEER
products offered under the customer loyalty i 58 o 3R & W 2= IR 5T 2l
programme. Deferred revenue is also released &9 % 1 5 Al B 15 B [0 B
to revenue when it is no longer considered B e S -
probable that the programme credits will be
redeemed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (continued)

(v)

(v) Dividends

Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(vi) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit
impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see Note 2(k)(i)).

(vii) Income from financial guarantees issued

Income from financial guarantees issued is
recognised over the term of the guarantees
(see Note 2(k)(ii)).

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of operations which have a functional
currency other than RMB, the Group’s presentation
currency, are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into RMB at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y &

BE—_T - —F+_A=+—HIFEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(x) Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group.

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group

of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BIBEEH (&)
(continued)
(y) Segment reporting (y) oB®mE

/

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group's various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

The Group’s revenue is substantially derived from
retail customers in the PRC and the Group’s
operating assets are substantially located in the
west region of the PRC. Accordingly, no segment
analysis based on geographical location of the
customers and assets is provided.

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

In the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies, management has made the following
accounting judgement:

(i) Going concern assessment

Management has made judgement about
the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and concluded that there are no
material uncertainties related to events or
conditions which, individually or collectively,
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Further
information is set out in Note 2(b).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE—=-FT-——#+_-_H=+—HILFZ

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIFSBEH TAIUARKZ7)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3 ERtHERMEE (&)
ESTIMATES (continued)

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying (a) ERXEEETEREZHARE
the Group's accounting policies (continued) SETHE (&)
(ii) Classification of interests in leasehold (i) HEEAZHELHRKRE

land and buildings held for own use

In accordance with HKAS 16, Property, plant
and equipment, the Group chooses to apply
either the cost model or the revaluation
model as its accounting policy for items of
property and equipment held for own use on
a class-by-class basis. In applying this policy,
the Group has concluded that its registered
ownership interests in leasehold properties
and the right to use other properties leased
under tenancy agreements are two separate
groupings of assets which differ significantly
in their nature and use. Accordingly, they are
regarded by the Group as separate classes of
asset for subsequent measurement policies in
accordance with Notes 2(g) and (j). Specifically,
registered ownership interests are carried
under the revaluation model, while rights to
use properties under tenancy agreements are
carried at depreciated cost.

In making this judgement, the Group has
taken into account that, as the registered
owner of a leasehold property, the Group
is able to benefit fully from any changes in
the valuation of these properties whether
as holding gains or by selling the property
interest to others, as well as being able to
use the properties in its operation free of
paying market rents. In contrast, the shorter
term tenancy agreements are typically for
periods of no more than 15 years and are
subject to other restrictions, in particular on
transferability of the Group's tenancy rights to
others. These shorter term tenancy agreements
are executed in order to retain operational
flexibility and to reduce the Group’s exposure
to the property market fluctuation. They may
contain termination or extension clauses, and/
or rental payment are usually increased every 1
to 3 years to reflect market rentals.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 12, 13, 15 and 29 contain information about
the assumptions and their risk factors relating to
valuation of land and buildings held for own use,
investment properties, goodwill and intangible
assets impairment and financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Expected credit losses of receivables

Expected credit losses are a probability-
weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the
present value of all cash shortfalls) over the
expected life of receivables. Receivables are
categorised by individual characteristics of
each customer. The Group estimates the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses for receivables based on
the ageing of overdue balances, repayment
histories of individual debtors, debtor credit-
worthiness, historical write-off experience,
existing customer-specific and market
conditions and forward-looking information.

The Group considers the following indicators
when assessing the credit risks, such as
the changes in macroeconomic conditions,
probabilities of default and internal or
external credit ratings, or expected operating
performance of the customer, etc. At every
reporting date the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking information are analysed. Such
assessment involves a significant degree of
judgement by the management.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% R 3k MY &
BE—_f-—F+=-A=+—HIFE
(BISBEHER TAUARKZZ)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3 SBtHETRM&E (&)
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b) fEFHTREMRIR (&)

(ii) Impairment losses of non-current assets (i) FRBEEZREEE
If circumstances indicate that the carrying fis] B 18 S0 # T R 0K W (B g

amount of a long-lived asset may not be
recoverable, the asset may be considered
“impaired”, and an impairment loss may be
recognised in accordance with accounting
policy for impairment of long-lived assets as
described in Note 2(k). The carrying amounts
of long-lived assets are reviewed periodically
or when indications are identified in order to
assess whether the recoverable amounts have
declined below the carrying amounts. When
such a decline has occurred, the carrying
amount is reduced to recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the
fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In determining the value in use, expected
future cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant judgement relating to the
level of revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is
a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of the level of revenue and amount
of operating costs. Changes in these estimates
could have a significant impact on the
carrying value of the assets and could result
in additional impairment charge or, except
for goodwill, reversal of impairment in future
periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3 EFtHERME (&)
ESTIMATES (continued)
(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) (b) fHEFFABEMERR (&)
(iii) Depreciation (i) #TE&

Property and equipment are depreciated MERZEZITETIRE
on a straight-line basis over the estimated R RIREER BE
useful lives of the assets, after taking into EZHEFRAFERAERNAE
account the estimated residual values. The BEFE-BEEETHR
management reviews the estimated useful NEBEEZMERIEAER
lives and the residual values, of the assets REEE UETRE
regularly in order to determine the amount of MR ERRNRHEITES
depreciation expense to be recorded during HEFE A EAFRKLF
any reporting period. The determination of the HREEDRBERUEEZ
useful lives and the residual values is based BAEKBRET - WBEZ
on historical experience with similar assets. et B ERES AR
The depreciation expense for future periods is BHEITEILITEH
adjusted if there are significant changes from o

previous estimates.

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WzmkoEHmE

(a) Revenue (a) Wz
The principal activities of the Group are the REBZEZXZB SN PELK
operation of department stores, a shopping mall LREAY% BYHORBRT
and supermarkets in the PRC. 15 o
Revenue represents the sales value of goods sold to WaEREPEL 2 mHER
customers, net income from concession sales, gross B S EEHESFWA - BH
rental income and management and administrative WA UAREERITHREE
service fee income. WA o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—T-_—F+-_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZHEHH  BAIAAREZ3)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WakoibHmeE (&)
(continued)
(a) Revenue (continued) (@) Wz (&)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (i) BASZHE
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with RIZEMIMBERE D
customers by major products or service lines is ZEPEHNKRES BN
as follows: I
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BZE #H=E
—E--F ZT-TF
+=B=+—-HB +t-—A=+—H
ILEE IENE R
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARE T ARETTT

Revenue from contracts with BEEMBRELEAEISH
customers within the scope of EHERZREEFEHNZ

HKFRS 15 &
Sales of goods EmiEE 251,206 184,528
Net income from concession sales 45 FrEfEHEF WA 133,050 134,913
Management and administrative B RITHRBERA
service fee income 52,087 33,473
436,343 352,914
Revenue from other sources H 2Rt 2=
Gross rental income @ e A 57,937 44,107
494,280 397,021
Disaggregated by timing of RWEEIAREDE
revenue recognition
Point in time i 2h 384,256 319,441
Over time BE B 110,024 77,580
494,280 397,021
The Group’s entire revenue is attributable AEENZ WK G+
to the market in Shaanxi province, the PRC. BIpR PTG - Eit - =2
No analysis of geographical information is P IR B K S AT

therefore presented.

RS EEEERERAT
—E-—FEH
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(a) Revenue (continued)

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

The Group engages in the retail business, and
accordingly, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s customer base
is diversified and has no customer with
whom transactions have exceeded 10%
of the Group's revenue for the year ended
31 December 2021 (nine months ended
31 December 2020: RMBNil). Details of
concentrations of credit risk are set out in Note
29(a).

Information on gross revenue

Gross revenue represents the gross amount
arising from the sales of goods, concession
sales charged to retail customers, gross rental
income and management and administrative

4 WERDBEE (&)

(a)

Wz (&)

(i)

WADHE (&)
AEENSEE XL
W ARBEERAE X
SENEPERZ TL:
BEE—_ZE-_—F+=A8
S+ —BLEFEIERS
HBEBAEERKZI0DHNE
F(BEZZE-ZEH&+=
A=+—B1IEABA: A
R¥Zx) SR EERR
B FF B A B 5E29(a) ©

HRBERZEHZEH

MRS EHEERE M A
TERFPZBFERESE
S REWARERAE
PUE 2 & 1B R 1T R

service fee income charged to tenants. BIWAZ B
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
8z HE
—E--F —T_TF
t=A=t+-8 +-A=+—H
LEE IENEA
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREF T
Sales of goods EmiEE 251,206 184,528
Gross revenue from concession sales 45 #F B 4E 8 & 42 U 25 955,166 1,019,894
Gross rental income RS WA 57,937 44,107

Management and administrative EERITHREERA

service fee income 52,087 33,473
1,316,396 1,282,002

Further details regarding the Group’s principal
activities are disclosed in Note 4(b).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(a) Revenue (continued)

(ii) Revenue expected to be recognised in
the future arising from contracts with
customers in existence at the reporting
date

The Group has applied the practical expedient
in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales
contracts for prepaid stored value cards
such that the Group did not disclose the
information about revenue that the Group will
be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the contracts
for sales of prepaid stored value cards
because the Group recognises revenue at the
amount to which it has a right to invoice,
which corresponds directly to the value to
the customer of the Group's performance
completed to date.

(b) Segment reporting
The Group manages its businesses by lines of
business. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following
two reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments:

o Department stores and shopping mall: this
segment operates 5 department stores and
a shopping mall. 2 department stores and a
shopping mall have been closed for renovation
and upgrade during the year ended 31
December 2021 and will be re-opened in July
2022 and in January 2023 respectively.

o Supermarkets: this segment includes the
operation of 13 supermarkets.

Bt 75 R R Y &

BE—_T - —F+_A=+—HIFEE

(BIFFEEH BRIAAREZS)

4 WERDBEE (&)

(a)

(b)

Wz (&)

(i) BHRARAREE A
FHEZEFEHNMELZ
W 5=

rEBEHEREMNRER
HEASNRMNE BT KR
EEBIE155R121R B Al
TREER RALEEY
EREENREEMNEER
HEANBTRENEMLE
AEEBWRZ K2 1=
B REAALXEEKHES
EREzEBRWS
MZzeBEERRES

SEREFBEHZEME-

3]

P e
AEEEBEBRIUEERR
o BRD B RRRF M
5 ORANEAAKREZZSRE
BEEERNBHREERD KL
B 23R AT M T #R S 7 BRETT
2 - MELE DA G ABK
ATAHEDE:

=]

] ERGREYER LI
DEEERARAEES R
—XBYHRL-HE_ZT
—_—®+=-—A=+—81t
FE WMEXBE®HGR—
REYWHRLEBEAETH
FIRFAH WED RN
S FELARZE =
F—REHFAM

e HBAMB: hoHMBEE
BT=FBRTE-

RS EEEERERAT
—E-—FEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment information

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable
to each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Revenue and net income and expenses
are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue and net income
generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments.
However, assistance provided by one segment
to another is not measured.

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is “adjusted EBITDA" i.e. “adjusted earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded as
including interest income and other financial
charges and income, and “depreciation
and amortisation” is regarded as including
impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets and valuation gain or loss on investment
property. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA, the
Group's earnings are further adjusted for
items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as head office or corporate
administration costs. No inter-segment sales
have occurred for the year ended 31 December
2021 and nine months ended 31 December
2020.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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4 WERDBEE (&)

(b)

DERE|E (F)

(i)

7 EBE R
MR D MEFE D IHBRIR
MOBRERME NEE
ZEREBEEEREER
HEDH 2 EIEEE H
BEEMT:

Yoz BMOF A BB S99
EErAHmEDE 12K
7% F 0 BB P EE A M aR BOF
WA B %% » 8B P EE &
B o AT - 2 &R 2 B P 12
HZEL T TEAE-

AR#fEsHmMzA
A B [ EBITDA | -
BN M4 A& 2 Rt F B -
HE -TEREHEA A
A He (58] 8577
BUWAREAME % H &
WA MmITEREE B
REREEREFREEZ
BEBEEAREYE 2 H
BEREHEE - BTEL
JHEEEBITDA AEE 2 &
M TE A AR HEFIIE T B
RE B2 302 18 B fEH &
— SR AP E R K
RETTHE AR -REZEZ
E-—F+=-_A=+—H
IEFEERZE_TF 4=
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment information (continued)

Assets and liabilities are not monitored by the
Group’s senior executive management based
on segments. Accordingly, no information on
segment assets and liabilities is presented.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the year ended 31
December 2021 and nine months ended 31
December 2020 is set out below.

Bt 7% R 3k MY &
BE-—F-—F{+-—A=1+—HIFE
(BRIESHEH TRIKAREKZS)

4 WERDBEE (&)

(b) ZEE/E (&)

() DEER(E)
BERBELELHAE
lzﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂw
= m&WﬁE“%§F
LREBEARZENZ

uT%ﬁﬁ%$%l2ﬂ
WEDEER RS T A
%lz?%&%ﬁ%*u
HEEREE T - —F
+-A=+—HIEFEER
—E-FF+_A=+—
HiE @R D EREIR LT
D IR -

Year ended 31 December 2021

BE-E--5+-A=+-HLEE
Department
stores and
shopping mall  Supermarkets Total
BEEER
B B&TE CH
RMB‘000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETFT AREFT ARBETFT
Disaggregated by timing of RWEBRABEIE
revenue recognition
Point in time B 21 158,364 225,892 384,256
Over time e 5 i 91,873 18,151 110,024
Revenue and net income AREF 2B ERFRA
from external customers RUGEIBUERF
and reportable segment A
revenue and net income 250,237 244,043 494,280
Reportable segment profit T % 2 HEF
(adjusted EBITDA) (4R EBITDA) 27,3817 12,736 40,123
S BREEZRERA A

—E-—FEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% R & MY &
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE_—_FT—-_—F+_-_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WHERDBHRE (&)
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) o EBI®E (&)
(i) Segment information (continued) (i) 7HBER(E)

Nine months ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-_ZF+_A=+—HINEA

Department

stores and
shopping mall Supermarkets Total

BEAESR
BYHL BR™E CE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTL ARETT

Disaggregated by timing of RUWERIBEIE

revenue recognition
Point in time By 6 161,587 157,854 319,441
QOver time B8 B ] 62,386 15,194 77,580

Revenue and net income HIREEZWHER

from external customers FRARTHRE

and reportable segment AHBERFRA

revenue and net income 223,973 173,048 397,021
Reportable segment (loss)/profit iﬁ%’ﬁ%ﬁ (B#B)/

(adjusted EBITDA) ) (4 %EBITDA) (124,888) 1,107 (123,781)

/
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—T-_—F+-_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZHEHH  BAIAAREZ3)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WakoibHmeE (&)
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 2WweE (&)
(ii) Reconciliation of reportable segment (i) THREZEERN,
profit/(loss) (E1E) # 5k
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Bz HE
—E--F ZT-TF
t=A=t-R +ZA=+-H
LFE LIFN @A
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE T ARETTT

Reportable segment profit/(loss) AIRES R, (EBE) 40,123 (123,781)
Other income Hadg A 10,371 12,164
Depreciation expenses WERY (156,145) (116,028)
Impairment losses on goodwill and ~ BE K EREE
intangible assets HEEE (72,000) (365,855)
Net finance costs MBERFE (169,760) (115,798)
Unallocated head office and AABEH R
corporate administration expenses RETHRAX (11,451) (9,492)
Loss before taxation R Al B 1R (358,862) (718,790)
OTHER INCOME 5 HblgA
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BZ HE
—E-—& T -TF
+=BA=+-8B +=ZA=+—H
HEE ENEA
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE T ARETT

Interest income 2 WA 5,339 11,264

Valuation gain on financial assets measured A R E:tE A EE B ABR
at FVPL 2 BEEMERE 2,332 -
Dividend income i 8 4 A 2,700 900
10,371 12,164

RS EEEERERAT
—E-—FEH

L



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6 PBRBIAIEE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BREAIBEE MG (FTA) -
(crediting):
(a) Net finance costs (a) BIERFEE
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BZE BHE
—E-—F —E-TF
+=ZA=+—-H8 +=-A=+—8H
ILFE LESLME A
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

Interest expenses on bank and RITREMERZ
other borrowings FE X 237,545 173,961
Interest on lease liabilities (see Note 21(b)) FEBEZFI 8
(RHaE21(b)) 9,442 4,098
Bank charges and other finance costs RITBEAREMHBER 3,11 6,114
Total borrowing costs IR 250,098 184,173

Less: interest expense capitalised into W EBEAMEAWREDE
prepayments for acquisitions of properties T84 318 2 #| &%

(see Note 21(b)) (R HaE21(b)) (86,174) (70,557)
Net foreign exchange loss BE X B 15 F AR 5,836 2,182
169,760 115,798

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a BE - —4F+=-A=+—
rate of 7.12% per annum for the year ended 31 BIFEE BEKADIBREF R
December 2021 (nine months ended 31 December 7.12% (B2 —ZE=-_ZEF+_A1
2020: 7.97%) (see Note 17). =t+—HLEAEA:797%)&

A (RHFE17) °

/
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—T-_—F+-_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZHEHH  BAIAAREZ3)

6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 KEAIEE(Z)
(b) Staff costs (b) EIRA

Nine months

Year ended ended

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

BZE HE

—B-—-F —E-TF

+=A=+—-8B +-—A=+—H

ItEE LEAL{E A

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FT ARSFT

Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe TEAREMEF 101,771 73,679
Contributions to defined contribution M E BETURRET 2R

retirement plans 11,766 2,873

113,537 76,552

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes managed
by the local government authorities, whereby
these subsidiaries are required to contribute to
the schemes at 16% of the employees’ basic
salaries. Employees of these subsidiaries are entitled
to retirement benefits, calculated based on a
percentage of the average salaries level in the PRC,
from the above mentioned retirement schemes at
their normal retirement age. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the subsidiaries established in
the PRC have been granted certain exemption on
the contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans by the local government authority as a
result of the COVID-19 impact for the period from
February 2020 to December 2020.

AEERFREKILZHBARZ
EE2HEMFBNRBEERZTE
PR AREAF S B ZSE
MEBAREEKEEEAF &2
16% A% FaT 84 5K o iR R il
RIRETE ZEMBAREER
ERIEFRNFREAEZ b
EBRGTEIZERF BT EFHEK
TEDLEE ZRAKRERN -BZE
BE_Z - FF+_-_A=+—H
WEFE R BK 2 B A A
BERB_E_EF_AE_FT—
ZTH+ = AERICOVID-192 &
22 T JE 3 75 BT #4 B8 BE SR 5 LR
BRARFTEIMR R 2B THE -

RS EEEERERAT
—E-—FEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

6

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued)
(b) Staff costs: (continued)

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
for employees under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant salaries, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant salaries of HK$30,000.

Contributions to the retirement schemes vest
immediately, there is no forfeited contributions that
may be used by the Group to reduce the existing
level of contribution.

The Group has no further obligation for payment of
other retirement benefits beyond the above annual
contributions.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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(BRIESHIEH  THIUARKEZZ)

BRILAIEIR (&)

(b)

BIRAE: (&)

AEENMRBEESAHERTES
T ENEG AE B RBIED Z 5%
EETZ2REEBEE— (s
RECETE ([2FERETE]) -
siEest g A —EmRBIIITA
BB 7 TG E - BIERTE
¢:HE BERHEESHARE
BHEBHEEZ% (FAEBEH
& R A30,000/8 7T ) M5t 24
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A °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—T-_—F+-_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZHEHH  BAIAAREZ3)

6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 KEAIEE(Z)
(c) Other operating expenses () HKEMX
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BZE HE
—B-—-F —E-TF
+=A=+—-8B +-—A=+—H
ItEE LEAL{E A
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR T ARETT

Auditors’ remuneration 1% A £ A

~ statutory audit service —EERE R 4,200 4,200

— other services —H AR 700 -

Other professional service fee HitnEXREE 10,645 8,838

Provisions for obligation from Cash Coupon 78 & T #

Card (see Note 20(b)) (ZHK17F200)) - 194,547
Property management fee MEEES 9,114 3,843
Loss on disposal of property and equipment fE &% K& iE v BB 9,433 3,198
Others (see Note (i) HAl (B HAEG)) 44,519 28,075

78,611 242,701

Note: it &t -

()  Included in other operating expenses for the () BEZZEZ—F+ZA=1-—
year ended 31 December 2021 are provisions for HiEFEMAMLERZ P
compensation of RMB42,940,000 to tenants and BRABEAMNKEET S K
suppliers of concession sales in respect of the —REYROETER R
closures of 2 department stores and a shopping mall F+ A i M P K R EE 8
for renovation and upgrade (see Note 4(b)), and EZHERI N2 HERE
according to the result of court judgment, a reversal AR #42,940,0007T ( B M7
of payables for operating lease of RMB22,009,000 4(b)) - LA R AR #8 A BT #IR #Y
recognised in previous years (nine months ended 31 R BRI FERR
December 2020: RMB Nil). WEEHERNRIEBEBARE

22,009,000t (B EZ—ZE—F
F+—_A=+—HIEAM@EA:
AREZIT) -

—

RS EEEERERAT
—E-—FEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HZEBERAREH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HREBERAZBIER:
profit or loss represents:
Year ended Nine months
31 December ended
2021 31 December
2020
BZ BE
—E-—-F ZT-TF
+=B=+—-HB +—A=+—H”
LEE LIENE AR
RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT ARETT

Current taxation (see Note 27(a)): KB B (B HfaE27(a))
— withholding tax on distributed earnings  — % ik & 7| T8 07t 22,950 -
— provision for PRC Corporate Income Tax — — A B> % Fi 15 57 B 4,354 1,668
— (over)/under-provision in respect of prior —iBFEEREE
years (H2%) /TR (102) 17
27,202 1,685
Deferred taxation (see Note 27(b)): ELERIE (B R a27(b)) :
- origination and reversal of temporary —EREREZEARED
differences (4,621) (44,573)
— effect on deferred tax balances at 1 April —fiR&Ehs —F —TF )] A
2020 resulting from a change in tax rate.  —BRELEHRIBEHOTE
(see Notes (iv) and 27(b)) (B aE(v)%27(b)) - (10,723)
(4,621) (55,296)
22,581 (53,611)

/

4
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

HE T -——F+_-_F=
(BIZEEH BRIUARKZS)

T—HILFE

mEBRBERAMENR (&)

(b) BEAXHREFTHREBEAB

accounting loss at applicable tax rates: RZAHWME:
Year ended Nine months
31 December ended
2021 31 December
2020
BE Eﬂii
—E-—& —E-TF
+=A=+-B tZA=+—H
LFE LENE A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARET T
Loss before taxation BRTEAIE 1B (358,862) (718,790)
Expected tax on loss before tax, calculated &% Bl &5 48 ~ T8 Hi R 18 -
at the rates applicable in the tax REBHRGAAERZ
jurisdictions concerned HABEANE
(see Notes (i), (ii) and (iif)) (B HBIEG) ~ (ii) 5 (i) (87,964) (178,298)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAMBX 2 RBEE 15,223 40,133
Tax concessions (see Note (iv)) BMIBER (2K () - 19,977
Tax effect of unused tax losses not AERRGEREERZ
recognised MR E 72,171 31,553
Tax effect of temporary differences not AEREHER I MGETE
recognised 303 53,105
Tax effect on using tax losses not ﬁﬁﬁLEirﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁgﬂé
recognised in prior years BB E - (9,375)
Effect on deferred tax balances at 1 April i REEHE —T —T4F
2020 resulting from a change in tax rate 09 A — B &R I 53 T8 4 £
(see Notes (iv) and 27(b)) W2 (B M Gv)R27(b)) - (10,723)
Withholding tax on distributed earnings 7k Z A58 22,950 -
(Over)/under-provision in respect of prior B EERE (B5E) /T8
years (102) 17
Income tax Fris i 22,581 (53,611)
L STEEEERERA A

—E-—FEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HZEBBRXRAMEH (£)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)
Notes: B et -
() The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group () ARARAEEREBIMALZ

BEBRARBHBMREENEH =X
B165% (BEZE—_T_ZTF+_A

incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax rate of 16.5% (nine months ended 31 December
2020: 16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has =+—HIEABA:16.5%) - BE
been made, as the Company and the subsidiaries of the REGETECHASE  aRhEE
Group incorporated in Hong Kong did not have assessable By HMER - AR ARATRAE
profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended BREBFMK LB R REE
31 December 2021 (nine months ended 31 December —E-—F+-A=t—HILEFEE
2020: RMB Nil). WEBHNBBNISH 2 ERDUE
MEEZZT_ZEF+_RA=+—
HIEAEA : AREZ D) - itk
MEBFGEAIEL & E -

ARBRAEERTE (BEER)
VASINE 2R 5 M B S22 Pl 188 2 RIAR 1%
HEBMAEZMBER AR FER
BAGMEFI SN -

(i)  The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group (ii)
incorporated in countries other than the PRC (including
Hong Kong) are not subject to any income tax pursuant to
the rules and regulations of their respective countries of
incorporation.

BHE-_ZTE-_—F+=-A=+—8H
WEFE AREERF BEKLZHE
DREBMPBECEMSH  HE
R25% (BE-_ZT-_ZF+=A
=+—HBIEA@EA:25%) °

(iii)  The subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC are (iii)
subject to a PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 25% for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (nine months ended 31
December 2020: 25%).

R-E——F AEBETEF
BRI 2 M B A R ENS R 15 B Bt
Mo BREEZEAR T H AR
BRElE—H T o BB 2 AEEB
R UER T ——FE2_F=
EEBEFEEZZI5% 2 BEETHCE

(iv) Certain subsidiaries of the Group established in (iv)
the PRC obtained approvals from the respective
tax bureaux in 2012 that they are entitled to tax
benefits applicable to entities under the Second
Phase of the Western Region Development Plan of

//4—'

the PRC, and enjoy a preferential PRC Corporate
Income Tax rate of 15% for the calendar years from
2011 to 2020. In 2020, the State Administration
of Taxation issued the preferential PRC Corporate
Income Tax policies for entities under the Third
Phase of the Western Region Development Plan of
the PRC (the “Policies”), which is effective from 1
January 2021. These subsidiaries of the Group are
not entitled to tax benefits applicable to entities
under the Policies and the PRC Corporate Income
Tax rate expected to be 25% for the calendar years
from 2021.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—T-_—F+-_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZHEHH  BAIAAREZ3)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 EEHM

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section BB B R ARG FE383(NE R AT
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part (BERESHRER) ROIE 280K 5=
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about ZESFHMOT

Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E2--E1-B=t-ALEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
Directors' fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
#e BRR

Eshe AMENEN  BRRE BRAGIER it
RMB000  RMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMB00O
ARBTR  ARETR AREFT  ARBTT  ARKETZ

Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Huang Shunxu EUEpR - - - - -
Mr. Qi Yong (resigned on 7 June 2021) #ExE

(R-B--FRALARE) 1,448 - - ] 1,491
Mr. Qin Chuan e [bi: 2 1,494 - - 15 1,509
Ms. Wan Qing BELL 1,601 - - 67 1,668
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Chen Shuai BREN % & - - - - -
M. Li Yang X - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFEHTEE
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng Bl % s 249 - - - 249
Ms. Song Hong RLt 249 - - - 249
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai il 249 - - - 249

5,290 - - 125 5,415
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

8 EE¥HM (&)

Nine months ended 31 December 2020
HE-E-2£+-A=t+-ALNER

Salaries, Retirement
allowancesand ~ Discretionary scheme
Directors' fees  benefits in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e EER
EZHE HOENEN MERE RAGELN CEl
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AEEFr ARETL ARETT AREFR
Executive directors HEE
Mr. Huang Shunxu (appointed on BIR&LE
24 June 2020) (W=2-F5/ A-tHAEZT) - - = = -
Mr. Wu Yijian (resigned on 10 June 2020) ~ R—B%4&
(RZZ-BE/ATREM) 428 - - 4 3
Mr. Qi Yong (appointed on 24 June 2020)  #E%E
(M=2=35/ A-tHREZT) £l 591 - 19 932
Mr. Qin Chuan 2I%4 1,011 - - 12 1,023
Ms. Wan Qing (appointed on 24 June 2020) BEX L
(W=2-55/ R-tWAEZET) 276 244 - 9 529
Non-executive directors FHEE
Mr. Chen Shuai s - - - = =
Mr. Li Yang (appointed on 24 June 2020)  ZH%4&
(R=Z-ZEXA_tHAEZA) - - - - =
Independent non-executive directors ~ BLU#HTEZE
Dr. Han Qinchun (resigned on BRERT
18 September 2020) (RZZZBEAATN\RE) 2 - - - )
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng izl %4 168 - - - 168
Ms. Song Hong (appointed on 30 0ct 2020) RI XL
(RZB-ZETA-THEZH) 46 - - - 46
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai LEERE 181 - - - 181
251 835 - 4 3403
9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9 BEFAL

EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
three (nine months ended 31 December 2020: three) are
directors whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 8.

/
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
The emoluments in respect of the other two (nine

months ended 31 December 2020: two) individuals are as
follows:

Bt 75 R R Y &

BE—_T - —F+_A=+—HIFEE

(BIESHH  THIUARELS)
RE#HAL (E)
BHAGmA (BE-_2-TF+=

A=t—HINEA  mH) AL ZH
ST

Nine months

Year ended ended

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

BZ BHE

—EC-—-F —E-THF

+=A=+-B +t=ZA=+—H

LEE LIENE R

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT ARBFTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & E8E R EME Wi F 2,177 1,171
Retirement scheme contributions BIRETEH 47 17
2,224 1,188

The emoluments of the two (nine months ended 31
December 2020: two) individuals who are not directors
and who are amongst the five highest paid individuals of
the Group are within the following bands:

ME(BE-_T_FTF+_A=1—
BIENEA M%) WIHFESHBRA
SERBRSHFALTZENALZH
BT FIATEE

Nine months

Year ended ended

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

BZ HE

—EZ-F —TTF

+=ZA=+—-HB +=ZA=+—8H

LEE IENEA

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

181 5 A 2t 1E15IA 2

HKD Nil to HKD 1,000,000 =7 721,000,000 7T = 2

HKD1,000,001 to HKD 1,500,000 1,000,001 7L 21,500,000/ 7T 2 =
S BEEZRRERA

3
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 3E5 B 555

10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Tax effects relating to each component of other

BRIUAREZ3)

10 Ht2E W&
HEMEERESBOER2BE

comprehensive income 4
Year ended 31 December 2021 Nine months ended 31 December 2020
BE-2--F+-A=t-HLEE HEZ-_ZE+_A=+-HILNEA
Before tax Net-of-tax ~ Before tax Net-of-tax
amount Tax expense amount amount  Tax expense amount
BBEA nBsiE  REER il

28 BERX #REH 28 BERAX ke®
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMBO00  RMB'000
ARBFR ARBTR ARRTR ARETT ARETT ARETR

(Note 27(b)) (Note 27(b))
(Kit21(b)) (Kizt27(b))
Surplus on revaluation of land  EffBEE AL REF
and buildings held forown 2 B#% (BHfE12)
use (see Note 12) 106,081 (26,177) 79,904 42,670 (25,682) 16,988
Other financial assets net AteREEALE
movement in the fair RELHTH
value reserve 88,200 - 88,200 (14,700) (23,273) (37,973)
Exchange differences on BERZJEK
translation into R A
presentation currency (16,373) - (16,373) 15,026 - 15,026
Other comprehensive income ~ H 1 2 4z 177,908 (26,177) 151,731 42,996 (48,955) (5,959)

There was no reclassification adjustment relating to
components of other comprehensive income during the
period (nine months ended 31 December 2020: Nil).

11 BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based
on the loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company of RMB367,967,000 (nine months
ended 31 December 2020: RMB635,095,000) and
the weighted average number of 2,326,763,000
ordinary and convertible preference shares (nine
months ended 31 December 2020: 2,326,151,000
ordinary and convertible preference shares) in issue
during the period, calculated as follows:

/

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021

-

HATESREMEmKESD 2E
HoEAR(BE—_TE-_ZF+=-H
=t+—HIEAM@EA &) -

11 BREXRRBEESSE
(a) BREXREE

EREREBENDENRARRRK
RIE(EEE AR367,967,000
T(BHE-_Z_ZF+ A8
=t+t—HLEABEA: AR¥
635,095,00070) R R EAR B %
17 HO#E F 15 £02,326,763,000%
L@k R BmRELR (BHES
E-_ETF+-A=+—HILNA
A :2,326,151,0000% & & & &
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11 BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE—_ZFT—

(BIFFEEH BRIAAREZS)

Bt 75 R R Y &

—F+-A=+—HIFE

1M1 BEREXRBESFE (&)

(continued)
(a) Basic loss per share (continued) (a) BREXEE (&)
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BZ BHE
—EB--F “T-TF
+=ZB=+—-HBH +t-—A=+—H
IEFEE NRENZ
Issued ordinary shares at ®—AR/MA—A
1 January/Apri BT EBR 2,326,763,000  2,323,693,000
Effect of termination of share RIER D BB A El 2 &
award scheme (see Note 26(a)) ( A HiaE26(a) - 2,458,000
Weighted average number of ordinary WR+Z-A=+—HZ
shares at 31 December - 38 A% 04 15 2 2,326,763,000 2,326,151,000

(b)

The holder of the convertible preference shares
is entitled to receive the same rate of dividends/
distributions as the holders of ordinary shares.
Accordingly, for the purpose of the calculation of
basic loss per share, the convertible preference
shares issued have been included in the calculation
of the weighted average number of shares in issue.

Diluted loss per share

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and nine
months ended 31 December 2020, diluted loss per
share is calculated on the same basis as basic loss
per share.

(b)

AR BB A AR RIREE
BRFEBABRZLEXESR
B/ pkeEt et EERE
AEBEMS  FFECHTRD
BFHBEE AR BEITA R
BRh -

BREEER

BE-_S-_—4#+-_H=+—H
HEERHE—_ZE_ZF+_H
=t+—HIEAEA EEEEE
B0 B eI A A B E AR R E 2

o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 12 PERRE

Residential
Land and  properties held
buildings held for own use

forownuse  carried at cost Properties Furniture,
caried at fair ~ and leasehold leased fixtures and Construction in
value  improvements for own use equipment  Motor vehicles progress Total
REATIF 25
URAESIRZ fFEREENE
REERLHR kg B RE
BT NxkE BREENE L EHIA FEIR A
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

ARBTR ~ AREBTT  AEETn  ARBTT  ARETT  ARETRn  ARETR

Cost or valuation: HARfEE:
At 1 January 2021 R-E--%-f-H 2,844,000 325,343 115,213 90,744 1,223 233 3,376,756
Exchange adjustments ERAE - (14) - (489) - - (503)
Additions AE - - 197,514 3,145 428 4,495 205,582
Disposals RE = (12,218) (55,007) (12,476) (154) (234) (140,089)
Surplus on revaluation (see Note 10) ~ EfE &% (A HE10) 106,081 - - - - - 106,081
Less: elimination of accumulated W EBEE
depreciation (106,081) - - - - - (106,081)
At 31 December 2021 R=E--F+-A=1+-A 2,844,000 253,111 257,720 80,924 1,497 4,494 3,441,746
Representing: b
Cost KA - 253,111 257,720 80,924 1,497 4,494 597,746
Valuation - 31 December 2021 fE-=%=-
T-A=1-H 2,844,000 - - - - - 2,844,000
2,844,000 253,111 257,720 80,924 1,497 4,494 3,441,746
Less: accumulated depreciation and i : 25t i E R AERE
impairment losses
At 1 January 2021 RZZ--%-f-H - 249,034 44,880 83,655 736 - 378,305
Exchange adjustments EiHE = (14) = (489) = = (503)
Charge for the year KEEHE 106,081 12,950 2953 7,3% 186 - 156,145
Written back on disposals RERAD = (63,945) (44.490) (12,476) (142) - (121,053)
Elimination on revaluation EffREH (106,081) - - - = = (106,081)
At 31 December 2021 RZE_-%+-A=1-H - 198,025 29,922 78,086 780 - 306,813
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2021 RZE--%+-A=+-H 2,844,000 55,086 221,198 2838 717 4,494 3,134,933
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB B8 TAIUARKEZ7)
12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12 MERRE (F)
Residential
Land and  properties held
buildings held for own use
forownuse  carried at cost Properties Furniture,
carried at fair -~ and leasehold leased fixtures and Construction in
value  improvements for own use equipment  Motor vehicles progress Total
RIS 2 5
WRRESIRe (EEREEZNZ
HEERLIR R#E i %2
BF mEkE  BREEME R& EHIA fRIR GHl
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBFT ARBFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AEETT
Cost or valuation; ﬁﬂiiﬂﬁfé '
At 1 April 2020 RZZ-ZEMA-A 2,844,000 405,421 97,736 100,425 6,349 233 3,454,164
Exchange adjustments B3 8% = 41) - (1,468) - - (1,509)
Additions AE = 2,400 174171 1,174 1,254 - 22,305
Transfer in/(out) g1/ (i) 60,895 (60,895) = = = = =
Disposals RE = (21,542) - (9,387) (6,380) - (37,309)
Surplus on revaluation (see Note 10) ~ BB % ( BHEE10) 4,670 - - - - - 42,670
Less: elimination of accumulated W RERGE
depreciation (103,565) - - - - - (103,565)
At 31 December 2020 WZZZTFTZA=1-A 2,844,000 325,343 115213 90,744 1223 233 3,376,756
Representing: &
Cost A - 325,343 115213 90,744 1223 233 532,756
Valuation - 31 December 2020 AE-—F-%%F
TZA=t-H 2,844,000 = = = = - 2,844,000
2,844,000 325,343 115,213 90,744 1223 233 3,376,756
Less: accumulated depreciation and ¥ Rt HEREEEE
impairment losses
At 1 April 2020 RZEZZENA-A = 282,262 26,056 87,497 5176 - 400,991
Exchange adjustments B3 A% = (1) - (1,469) - - (1,509)
Charge for the period AL 74811 16,632 18,824 5,674 87 - 116,028
Transfer in/fout) &) /(i) 28754 (28,754) - = - - -
Written back on disposals REREE - (21,065) - (8,048) (4,527) - (33,640)
Elimination on revaluation EffEEH (103,565) = = = = = (103,565)
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-RE+ZA=1-H - 249,034 44,880 83,655 736 - 378,305
Net book value: BRERE:
At 31 December 2020 RZE-FE+-f=1-H 2,844,000 76,309 70,333 7,089 487 233 2,998,451

S BREEZRERA A
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and
buildings carried at fair value and
investment properties

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value
of the Group’s land and buildings and
investment properties measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—T-_—F+-_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZHEHH  BAIAAREZ3)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12 MERRZE(E)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and () RAARBEIRZIHEEFR
buildings carried at fair value and RENEZDNARETE (&)
investment properties (continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) AREER(E)

Fair value measurements
categorised into Level 3

DPRERF=R2ARETE

At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R=ZZB=Z-—F RN-T_FTF
+=A +=A
=t+—H =+—H
Recurring fair value REMDIAETE RMB’000 RMB’000
measurements AR%Frx ARKTFT
Land and buildings held for own use #{E& B it MiEF 2,844,000 2,844,000
Investment properties (see Note 13) & ( B H1:F13) 1,265,300 1,265,300
During the year ended 31 December 2021, BHEzE-_FT-_—F+-HA
there was no transfer between Level 1 and =t+—HLEFEA T E
Level 2, or transfer into or out of Level 3 F—REF_FHEHE
(nine months ended 31 December 2020: no B s A E =R
transfer). The Group’s policy is to recognise (BEZ_ZT-_ZTF+=A
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy =+—BiIEh@EAR: &=
as at the end of the reporting period in which B) AEBZHERR
they occur. TR WE KR
AREERSSHRE B

o

iR STEEEERERA

3
—E-FFR

L



//4—'

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and
buildings carried at fair value and
investment properties (continued)

(i)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

All of the Group's land and buildings carried
at fair value and investment properties were
revalued as at 31 December 2021 except
for the additions of properties leased of
RMB82,498,000 (see Note 13) which was
initially recognised as investment properties
in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 31 December 2021. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of
surveyor, Roma Appraisals Limited, who have
among their staff fellows of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in
the location and category of properties being
valued. The Group's Financial Controller has
discussion with the surveyors on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the
valuation is performed at each interim and
annual reporting date.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in

(BRIF=EHER

BRIUAREZ3)

12 MERRKRE (&)

(a) BAREIRZTHBREFR
REWMEZAAEE (&)

(i) AREERE)
XEBEMBERARLE
FH LI REFRIEE
MER_ZT_—F+=
A=+—BHEEMH
EAREREVEARE
82,498,0007T ( R KT7E13)
BRI ZEMER_T
——%+=-—A=+—8%
RE MR R P V1A T
REBEREME-HER—
HIBI AT S BB
FHEBARAR(BBHAE
MmEeryreg WAER
FEEVEMELRYE
A B EEER)#E
T REFHERFEHRS
AEfETEER A5 E
2 W TSR EE B BT (i B 5T
WIHEEERERGEES
%o

(i) E=RAREAEFER

Level 3 fair value measurements Z 1G58 7L R A B
Range
gk
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R-Z2--% R_Z_TF
Valuation Unobservable +=ZA=+-B +=ZA=+-H
techniques input RMB RMB
HER* FABRERAHE ARH AR#
Land and buildings held ~ Market comparison Average market unit
for own use approach sale rate (per sq.m) 12,000 ~ 51,000 12,000 ~ 51,000
REEBRLHREFT  mELEE FOmEEUER
(BY¥AXK)
Investment properties- Market comparison Average market unit
ownership interests in approach sale rate (per sq.m)
land and buildings 28,173 28,173
REMEF-TWREF 2 MHLEE FamEEUER
HREES (BEHK)
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Bt 75 R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—T-_—F+-_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZHEHH  BAIAAREZ3)

12 MERRKRE (&)

(a) BAAREIRZTHBREFR
REWMEZRAAETE (F)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and
buildings carried at fair value and
investment properties (continued)

(i) FE=RARETEFER

(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs used

in Level 3 fair value measurements Z1EEFERBABE
(continued) (%)

The fair value of land and buildings carried URFEZEAREYER
at fair value and investment properties- LT REFUARKEY

ownership interests in land and buildings
located in the PRC is determined using market
comparison approach by reference to recent
sales price of comparable properties on a
price per square meter basis in the relevant
market. Comparable properties of similar size,
characteristics and location are analysed and
selected for each property in order to arrive at
a fair comparison of their fair values. The fair
value measurement is positively correlated to
the average market unit sale rate.

Fair value adjustment of investment properties
is recognised in the line item “valuation gain/
loss on investment properties” on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Surplus/deficit on revaluation of properties
held for own use are recognised in other
comprehensive income in “property
revaluation reserve”.

All the gains/losses recognised in profit or loss
for the year arise from the properties held at
the end of the reporting period.

X-LTHWREFHBRE
Bmz AAREERTSL
BOEEE EE2EAH
LB EZBAT S ST
TIREREEFTE 2T
EE-ROALBREERE
MRZRAE DT RE
BRE R M AALD
ZALBYE-ZAAE
ArEXART IS B
EEARR -

REMEZ DR ERAEBR
HABRERZ[BEMEMR
Bz, B8 | AR -

HKIEERMEZEGR
BBMRN T EEGR
wlIAERSEMLE2EI
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12 MERFE (&)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and () RAAREIRZIHEEFR
buildings carried at fair value and RENEZDIRETE (B)
investment properties (continued)

(iii) Depreciated cost of land and buildings (iii) AXAREIERZFEEH
held for own use carried at fair value T REFITELR

At At

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

RZEZ—F R_ZT_FTF
+=A=+—8 +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBF T

Had the revalued land and AR RBEPNERZERE
buildings carried at fair value T3 AR F AR A 2 51
been carried at cost less e MBERETK.

accumulated depreciation and BREE R A
impairment losses, the carrying
amount would have been 1,549,878 1,594,094
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Bt 75 R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—T-_—F+-_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZHEHH  BAIAAREZ3)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12 YERFE (E)
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) FFRHEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use CREEERDFERBBEE
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: BRISHmWT :
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

R-ZBEZ—F R_ZT_FTF
+=A=+—H +—A=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
WsE AR¥Trx ARKFIT

Ownership interests in leasehold B R A EHEZ
land and buildings held for FEERAZHEE LR
own use, carried at fair value in B2 ¥ A kEkEDS -
PRC, with remaining lease term  [f G & THEA N F

between 10 and 50 years 102504 (i) 2,844,000 2,844,000 )
Residential properties held for own 247 & X A %1 BF ~
use carried at depreciated cost EEaEREEYE (ii) 13,317 13,417
Properties leased for own use,  RIFER KR Z
carried at depreciated cost ERHEE (iii) 227,798 70,333
241,115 83,750
Ownership interests in leasehold MREEREMEZEA
investment property, carried at  #ERER R ARLE
fair value, with remaining lease  %I8R - & T HEAN F
term between 10 and 50 years 10&504F (i) 1,265,300 1,265,300
4,350,415 4,193,050

—
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12 MERRE (E)
(b) Right-of-use assets (continued) (b) FREEE (&)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases AN EaER 2 HERAXIER
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: DWFWT
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Bz HE
—E-—F —E_EF

t=A=+t—-B +=A=+—H
123 IENfE A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use 1% #8738 & E £ 51 &l 5 9 (E A
assets by class of underlying asset: #EEEFESLH :

Ownership interests in leasehold R B AR 7 B 5 BR 2 #5E
land and buildings held for own BRzHE L RIEFT 2%

use carried at fair value in PRC S 106,081 74,811
Residential properties held for own &R EK AR 2 3 1EEQ A
use carried at depreciated cost FEWHF 437 326
Properties leased for own use, RITEXASERZBREE
carried at depreciated cost L/ 29,532 18,824
136,050 93,961
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBZHE (Mi6@))
(see Note 6(a)) 9,442 4,098

Expense relating to leases of low-  EAEEEEMEEBBEHNRX
value assets, excluding short-term  FEEEEEENESHHEE

leases of low-value assets 47 781
During the year ended 31 December 2021, additions HEz-—_T-_—%+_-A
to right-of-use assets were RMB197,514,000. This =t+—HLEFE-RE
amount primarily related to the capitalised lease CTRAEEERARK
payments payable under new tenancy agreements. 197,514,0007C ° % & ¥ &

EEREHEE R RN
ZERNCHERIBRBR -

/
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
(b) Right-of-use assets (continued)

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
Notes 21(c) and 25, respectively.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Ownership interests in leasehold land
and buildings held for own use and in
leasehold investment property

The Group holds several commercial buildings
for its department stores and shopping mall
operation business. The Group is the registered
owner of these property interests, including
the whole and part of undivided share in
the underlying land. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire these property
interests from their previous registered
owners, and there are no ongoing payments
to be made under the terms of contract for
assignment.

Residential properties held for own use
carried at depreciated cost

The Group holds several residential properties.
The Group is the registered owner of these
property interests, including the whole and
part of undivided share in the underlying land.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire these property interests from their
previous registered owners, and there are
no ongoing payments to be made under the
terms of contract for assignment.

Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its retail stores through tenancy
agreements. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 1 to 15 years. Lease payments
are usually increased every year to reflect
market rentals.

HE—_ZFT—

Bt 75 R R Y &

—F+-A=+—HIFE
(BIFFEEH BRIAAREZS)

12 MERRE(H)
(b) EREEE ()
BEZRSRHRERAES
&2 B 5 B 547 5 B WA I T

21(c) )25

() BHEERAZHEELHBRE
FREBREBYRZHEE
B

(i)

(iii)

AEBFEBERFRET
UREBERSRESE
B AEERZEMERE
BNELHEAA BREE
At eBREsRD
BP0 o AEE TR L XN
—FBRIE ABEME
B AN WL F ) X%
@m B ERBEEREQ QD
KRB B RIR -

RITERAIIRZIFER
H1EEY*
AEERAEETEEY
X AEERLEMER
sNEREAAN BEE
ALmEM RIS KD
IRy - AR EFE K A
—EP/RIE ABHATE
A A W iE % 1 R
@ BYEREEZES QD
KRB BT RIR -

ERHEEYE

AEEREBMEERHZER
SEREMYEERET
EEZEN -HE &K
PRPA-—E=+HF-HE
NEBETFRBM AR
RIS HEE

RS EEEERERAT
—E-—FEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE_—_FT—-_—F+_-_HA=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Bt FF 5 B #5590

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(c) Title ownership

As at the date of this report, the Group was
in the progress of applying for registration of
the ownership certificates for certain of its
properties. The aggregate carrying value of
such properties as at 31 December 2021 was
approximately RMB13,317,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB13,417,000). The directors are of the opinion
the Group is entitled to lawfully own and occupy
these properties.

13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BRIUAREZ3)

12 MERRKRE (&)

()

XHEFrER®
#Kﬁiaﬁ AEBEEAH
ETYERBEELHAREEE
ZEMER T -_TE+_A
= t+t—RAZBEEEANARK
13,317,000c (ZE=ZEF =
A=+—8: AR%13,417,000
TL)  BEERE AEBEHES
EERARGRAZEDE-

13 BEWE

Nine months

Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

BZE HE

—B-—-F _—T_ZF
+=—A=+—H8 +t=—A=+—H
IHEE IENEA
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR%FT

Valuation: fh{E:

At 1 January/April W—AR,/MA—H
Additions //J\\E

Fair value adjustments NAEHE

At 31 December R+ZA=+—8H

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 10 years, with an option to renew
the lease after that date at which time all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually increased every
1 to 3 years to reflect market rentals. Certain leases
include variable lease payment terms that are based on
the revenue of tenants.

/
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1,265,300 1,265,300
82,498 =
1,347,798 1,265,300
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

14

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in place at the end of the reporting

Bt 7% R 3k MY &
BE—_f-—F+=-A=+—HIFE
(BISBEHER TAUARKZZ)

13 RENXE (F)
ROIRE R - A S B AR IR T AT 9 4
ERONRIARE Y 2 KBRS

period will be receivable by the Group in future periods I :
as follows:
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R-ZB=Z—F R-ZT_ZTF
+=A=+—-B +t=A=t+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARKFIT
Within 1 year —F R 47,047 29,939
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFNA 133,883 38,560
After 5 years HF1% - 1,219
180,930 69,718
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 BEEE
Trademark
[
RMB'000
AREF T
Cost: R
At 1 April 2020, 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZE-ZEFMA—H —E-FF
TZA=t+-BRk=%=-%-A-R 424812
Additions 1 100,000
At 31 December 2021 R-—E-_—&+=-B=+—H 524,812
Less: accumulated impairment losses W RIHESE
At 1 April 2020 R-E-_EEMA—A -
Impairment losses AR 215,166
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZE-EF+-_A=+-HRk
—E-—%—H—H 215,166
Impairment losses MEEBE 35,000
At 31 December 2021 R-—E-_—&+-B=+—H 250,166
Carrying amount: FREE:
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—+=-fB=+—H 274,646
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-ZFE+=-F=1+—H 209,646
LS EEHEIZERERA T

L

—E-—FEH




Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3 Y =
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

ES

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The Group has acquired tradema
the trademark “Ginwa” through its

department store and supermarket operations in
prior years. On 6 January 2021, a resolution for the

acquisition of trademarks was passed by

at the special general meeting of the Company (the
“Acquisition”). As of 31 December 2021, the Acquisition
was completed and the Group enjoys the entire rights,

title and interest in and to the trademar

of any restriction, which result in the Group having the

right, for itself and/or to license to othe

use the trademarks for any other newly opened shopping

malls, department stores, supermarkets.
intangible assets are regarded by the Gr
indefinite useful life.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful

to the Group's cash-generating units identified according
to the department store and supermarket operations as

— = —

B —Ft_A=1T—HIUIFE
(BRIEZFIER BRIUAREZS)

4

PANSY

14 BEREE(
AEERAEEEERKEESES
RRBTELERESEE[&E] 2
& B o R —E—ANA B
BERADTRERBIIAE BB —E

4= )

=

rk-use-right of
acquisitions of

—_—

the shareholders WEmEZEzRER([WEEIE]) -
HE-_ZTZ-_—+-_A=+—8'%

BEECTK BASEEZAREFEL
BN FTARE N AR
Rb Hitt AEBEAERES H K
SRR E A = SRR R B
RL - BERSNERTISERZD
FoHEI AEBEELEERER

ks, free and clear

r third parties, to

Accordingly, the BERBHAERAER-
oup as having an
life are allocated EHRAFERFHcBEEEREN

TRE 2 B B RS MBARAT ISR
TREASBZEBHBESELE

follows: i :
Country of operation and At At
operating segments 31 December 31 December
EEMEBERREE D 2021 2020
R=TB=—8§F RKR-ZT_FTF
+=HA=+—-B +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT
Century Ginwa Company Ltd. Department stores and
("Ginwa Bell Tower") shopping mall, PRC 30,164 65,164
WL SERNDARAR ([£EER]) BERSLBEYT L P E
Golden Chance (Xian) Limited (“GCX") Department stores and
shopping mall, PRC 69,802 69,802
BERASLRBYHL P
Ideal Mix Limited Department stores and
shopping mall and
supermarkets, PRC 74,680 74,680
BEESNEYHOHE
HRmE
174,646 209,646

/
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

#

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

Bt 7% R 3k MY &
BE_FE_—FF+_A=1—HIFFE
(BRIESHEH TRIKAREKZS)

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 14 BREEE (&)
Intangible assets of RMB100,000,000 which arose from WBREEELANBRTEEARK
the Acquisition have not been allocated to the Group’s 100,000,0007T H & 2 Bt E AR EE K
cash-generating units. They have been carried out ReEFXBEU -RBREPR ELBY
impairment testing at the end of the reporting period FrEREEAELERG ARBEDN
by testing all of the cash-generating units together with BENEFEEETIZREZEER
goodwill and intangible assets include in the carrying BEETRENHR -
amount.
The Directors have assessed that there was no BT R =—F+=A
impairment on the intangible assets which arose from the =t+—R WEFEMEANERE
Acquisition at 31 December 2021. 2 7 R (E -
Details of impairment tests relating to for cash-generating EHAHSARERERRACEAFH
units containing goodwill and intangible assets with BEEAECREEERSEM 2 RERR
indefinite useful life are set out in Note 15. FIEE M TES o
15 GOODWILL 15 B&
RMB’000
ARKTFT
Cost: AN :
At 1 April 2020, 31 December 2020, R-ZE-_ZFWPA—B T -_ZF
1 January 2021and 31 December 2021 +=—A=+—-HB -—Z——F—H—H
A—ZE-_—F+-A=+—H 1,451,814
Less: accumulated impairment losses W REIREREE
At 1 April 2020 H-_E-TEMA—H 1,228,996
Impairment losses VERIEL SR 150,689
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZFEZZEF+_A=+—HBK
—E-—4%—H—H 1,379,685
Impairment losses BIEE R 37,000
At 31 December 2021 RZEBE-_—F+=-_H=+—H 1,416,685

Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020

BRHEE :

R-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H 35,129

RZEBE-_TEF+_A=+—H 72,129

RS EEEERERAT
—E-—FEH

—
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE_—_FT—-_—F+_-_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

15 GOODWILL (continued) 15 B8 (&)
Impairment tests for cash-generating units HEBEREHRAEAFHZ
containing goodwill and intangible assets with BREEZRSELEENZREE
indefinite useful life S
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating EEBBN TAWE 2 B EfEis KB
units identified according to the department store and BHBEGIEZEARE 22 HAER
supermarket operations acquired as follows: CEABNM:
Country of operation At At
and operating segments 31 December 31 December
EBERREE D 2021 2020

R=FB=-—% RZT-FTF
+=A=+—-RA +t—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETTT

Ginwa Bell Tower Department stores and

shopping mall, PRC = =
TIEEE BERSEBYDL TE
GCX Department stores and

shopping mall, PRC - =
BERESRBEDTL P

Ideal Mix Limited Department stores and
shopping mall and
supermarkets, PRC 35,129 72,129
BERSKEYHOEBRT
%
35,129 72,129

Notes: ffaE -

() During the year ended 31 December 2021, the financial () BEZZ-_—F+-A=+—HL
performance of the Group’s department store and FE AR E SRR
supermarket operations, as a consequence of the slowing BARBYEE LG ETEHEHEHR
down of economic growth in the PRC as well as a e AEBEERSNBRTS
consequence of the intense competition from surrounding %ﬂ‘%ﬁ’qﬂﬁi%i%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁ °
shopping malls and online retail sales, did not meet EREEEHEE EBERERE
management’s expectations. Management performed EREBRSEEEMETRERT
impairment assessments of the relevant cash-generating o
units to which goodwill and intangible assets have been
allocated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

Bt 75 R R Y &

BE—_ T -_—F+_A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

15 GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful life (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(continued)

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
were determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations use cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period. These cash flow projections adopted
the annualised rates of sales growth ranging from 0%
to 5% (nine months ended 31 December 2020: from
-10% to 2%), which are based on the Group’s historical
experience with these operations and adjusted for other
factors that are specific to each cash-generating unit
including the renovation and upgrade of the Ginwa Bell
Tower and GCX which will position these two department
stores in the high-end market where the Group will be
capable of reaching out to a wider and more premium
customer base after their grand re-openings. Management
determined that the Ginwa Bell Tower will be re-opened in
early 2023 and the GCX will be re-opened in the second
half of 2022. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using an estimated growth rate of 3% (nine
months ended 31 December 2020: 3%). The cash flows
are discounted using discount rate of 16% (nine months
ended 31 December 2020: 16%). The discount rates
used are pre-taxed and reflect specific risks relating to the
respective cash-generating units.

As a result of the above impairment test, impairment loss
on goodwill of RMB37,000,000 were recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the current
financial year which relates to the cash-generating unit of
Ideal Mix Limited acquired in May 2011, and impairment
loss on intangible assets of RMB35,000,000 were
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the current financial year which relates to the cash-
generating unit of Ginwa Bell Tower acquired in August
2008.

15

(BRIEBBHH  FRIUARKELS)

e (A

BAEERENRAEAFHZ

BEEECASELBNZRE

R (F)

WixE: (&)

i (&)
ReELBUOAKRESE LR
EREAESETHEE AR E T

FRAREEEEMEN R FHM
HKBEEAEENR S RETENA -
ZEHeREEANBREAEER
NZEEB 2L KRR FH
EBERAB0%ESY (BE T =
TFE+_-_A=+—HIEAEA:
10%E2% ) ETHE WS —
ARESELBENFEZHMEERS
B AIESTCEERNBH AR
RS EMEREERSRAZS
MHBEM REFTBRAREZE
AEEBREARMNEZSIHREA
EEERTSTEEERR T ==
FENEHRE GOXBER T ==
FTEFEHHAE - AFHHEED
BemeFAGHERE3I% (B2
—E-TFE+ - A=+—HItNE
A:3%)#ETHEE - BERERA
B E16% (BEZT_TF+=
A=+—HI1ENEA :16% )#FTRL
W o FTE AR R ARTIATAN R X
RMERBEEELEEVHEBZETE
LB °

(i) &R ERNH  mEREBEA
R #37,000,0007T 1A 78 B BR F [E B9
REBRRANER BEmEER
—ZET——F 5 AWEE/Ideal Mix
Limited® IR ¢ ELEENER  LE
W& EREEE A R%¥35,000,000
TERAMBEE ZRE B R E
BB ER_ZTEENENAKES
MeltEE RS EEBEM-

—

RS EEEERERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

15 GOODWILL (continued) 15 B8 (&)
Impairment tests for cash-generating units HEBEREHRAEAFHZ
containing goodwill and intangible assets with BEEECRSELXBEUZHE
indefinite useful life (continued) B (&)
Notes: (continued) MisE: (&)
(i)  (continued) (i) (%)
The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations F=EREeELEUNERER
for the above three cash-generating units are as follows: STEFERBERERBMRAT
At At
31 December 31 December
Key assumptions 2021 2020
R=2=—-% R-ZZT_ZTF
HERR +=ZA=t—-H +=ZA=+—H
Ginwa Bell Tower Annual sales growth rate for the first five-year period 0% - 5% -10% - 2%
SIEER BRFHRNFHEEERE
Annual sales growth rate after the five-year period 3% 3%
TR FHERREK
Discount rate 16% 16%
BRI
GCX Annual sales growth rate for the first five-year period 0% - 5% -10% - 2%
BRFHRNFHEEERE
Annual sales growth rate after the five-year period 3% 3%
hFEHRBNFHERRE
Discount rate 16% 16%
BRIR &
Ideal Mix Limited Annual sales growth rate for the first five-year period 0% -10% - 2%
BhFHRNFHEEERE
Annual sales growth rate after the five-year period 3% 3%
hEMRBNFHERRE
Discount rate 16% 16%
BRIR &
Any adverse change in the assumptions used in the ATERSEABMMNDKE SRR
calculation of recoverable amount of cash-generating BT {5 FA R ER O (] S ) 2 B i /s A
units would result in further impairment losses. E—TREEE-
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Bt 75 R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZHEHH  BAIAAREZ3)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 REMEBRE
The following list contains only the particulars of TREHVNFEFZEAREEHEEER B
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets EXBEZHBRRFE-

or liabilities of the Group.

Proportion of ownership interest

RRERELH
Place of Particulars of  The Group's
establishment registered and  effective  Held by the Held by
Name of companies and operations  paid up capital interest Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities Legal form
HAAT
HLR BufR  AEEz  BA0E KELS - ‘
AIAR EXibY #RREEH  BRER 2] 2] IEXH ERFR
Ginwa Bell Tower* 72518 The PRC RMB AR B 83.88% - 83.88% Operation of Limited liability
235,500,000 76 department store company
in the PRC BRELAT
Xi'an Century Ginwa Saigo Shopping  The PRC RMB A R 100% - 100% Operation of Limited liability
Mall Company Limited* 30,000,0007% department store company
Azt et RRENERAR in the PRC BRALRH
EREARARRS
Xi‘an Century Ginwa Shopping The PRC HK$65,000,000 100% - 100% Operation of Limited liability
Mall Company Limited* B department store company
AZtEETENERAR in the PRC BREfAR
EREAEAERS
Xianyang Century Ginwa Trade and ~ The PRC RMB A R B 100% = 100% Operation of Limited liability
‘Commerce Company Limited* 3,000,007 department stores company
ARt L e EHEARAA and supermarkets BEREfAR
in the PRC
ERRBERSAESR
BRI
Xi'an Yixin Property Management The PRC A1 RMB AR 100% - 100% Properties management Limited liability
Company Limited* 536,885,7507% in the PRC company
RZRENFERARAA EPENNEER BRELAT
Shaanxi Qianhui Properties Company  The PRC 1f RMB A R 1 100% - 100%  Operation of shopping Limited liability
Limited* 252,800,0007 mall and properties company
RETEEFARAR management EREfAR
in the PRC
EPTELEOTLR
nEER
Xi'an Honghui Property Management  The PRC i RMB AR 100% - 100%  Properties management Limited liability
Company Limited* 124,000,00070 in the PRC company
RZRENZERERAT ok 5 BREMRE
* The English translation of the names of these companies is * FENFTHENEL(EMR-RE 2
for reference only. The official names of these companies ENFIZIERXEHUAB X BE

are in Chinese.

—
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 3E5 B 555

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

The following table lists out the information relating
to Ginwa Bell Tower, the only subsidiary of the Group
which has material non-controlling interests (“NCI").
The summarised financial information presented below
represents the amounts before any inter-company

BRIUAREZ3)

16 REMBLR (&)

TREIAEEE—HEERIER
fm ([EEREE D ZMBARR
EEBBEBIER - TX2I 2875
BERBREL ARAAER R RREEE
ZERe

elimination.

Nine months

Year ended ended

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

BZE BHE

—E-—F —ETHF

+=A=+-R +=A=+-A

LEE LELE A

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥Fr AREF T

Revenue 17,211 37,596
Loss for the year/period (83,598) (186,625)
Loss for the year/period attributable to NCI (13,476) (30,084)
Non-current assets 1,541,197 1,437,511
Current assets 523,394 532,182
Non-current liabilities (444,000) (240,000)

Current liabilities

Net assets

Net assets attributable to NCI

//4—'
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(1,301,877) (1,415,581)

318,714 314,112

51,377 50,635
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Bt 75 R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—T-_—F+-_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZHEHH  BAIAAREZ3)

17 PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITIONS OF 17 WEBYEREFREE2TEN
PROPERTIES AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS EY QL]
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

R=FB=-—F RZ_ZTF
t=A=+—-HB +t=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFRE ARETT

Prepayments for acquisitions of W W 3 2 T 5RIE
properties (see Note (a)) (RHKtat(@@)) 1,982,153 1,555,682
Prepayments for acquisition of WHEE AR 2 AN IR
trademarks (see Note 14) (RK1aE14) - 100,000
1,982,153 1,655,682
(a) Prepayments for acquisitions of properties () WBYMEZHENKE
RMB’000
ARMTF T
At 1 April 2020 R-E-_TEMA—H 1,485,125
Interest expense capitalised EERNMbzFERAXZ 70,557
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 NR-_E_FEF+_F=+—HK 1,555,682
—E-_—%—HA—H
Additions (see Note 20(b)) NE (B HFTE200)) 340,297
Interest expense capitalised EERNMbZFERAX 86,174
At 31 December 2021 N-_E-_—F+_F=+—H 1,982,153

—
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BE—ZFT-——F+-_A=1+—HIFFEE

17 PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITIONS OF
PROPERTIES AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(continued)

//4—'

(a) Prepayments for acquisitions of properties

(continued)

The amounts represent partial payments made
by the Group for its intended acquisition of
commercial properties under development that
are situated in the PRC. On 4 December 2014, the
Group, through Ginwa Bell Tower, entered into
an acquisition agreement with Shanghai Huade
Investment Company Limited (“Huade Investment”),
pursuant to which Huade Investment agreed to
procure a project company to develop the above
properties in accordance with the requirements of
Ginwa Bell Tower, and Ginwa Bell Tower agreed
to purchase part of the above properties for an
aggregate consideration of RMB1,651,112,750.
The substantial construction of the commercial
properties commenced in October 2016. These
properties are intended to be used by the Group to
expand its retail operations.

18 EQUITY INVESTMENTS
(@) Equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-

recycling)

(BRIEZFIER BRIUAREZS)

17 WBMEREREEZAN
RHE (E)

(a)

WEMEzENRE (&)

5% 7} IR H8 7N & B e Uk B AL X AP
Bl 2 L EYEMEL 2 &6
B RZE—EWFE+=A
mE  AEEFEBEEEEH
EBEREEBR AR ([FEE
&I W s - Btk T
ERERERMEIER QAIRE
CIEEEERMAR FAmE M
SEERENERBARE
1,651,112,750 T 8 8B & 5 £t
VE -BEWENELTRER=
T RNE+AER ZEMEL
HASERRERTEELKS
@o

18 EaRE

(a)

EERBRAAEBEAEAHS
Bt AHMEEKE (RS

) ESES
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

R-ZB=-—F RZZ-TF
+=A=+—8 +t=ZA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFRT AREFT
Listed equity securities ERAES 255,900 167,700

These securities represent the 30,000,000 Ginwa
Enterprise (Group) Inc. (“Ginwa Enterprise”)
A-shares listed in the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB B8 TAIUARKEZ7)

18 EQUITY INVESTMENTS (continued) 18 ERRE (&)
(b) Financial assets measured at FVPL (b) RAAREBEFEEBEEHTAIE
BZEMEE
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

R-ZB-—F RZZZT_ZTF
+=A=+—H8 +—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Frx ARBFT

Unlisted investment fund at fair value IRAREFERZIEFTHREES 16,639 14,307
On 30 December 2020, the Group entered into R-E-_ZEF+_-_F=+H"
a subscription agreement pursuant to which the AEBEZRBEWZE B
Group has subscribed for the participating shares AEBEERFELTREES
in an unlisted investment fund (the “Fund”) for (TZE&)z28KnREE L
an aggregate amount of HK$17,000,000 which 17,000,000/ 7T - HHER AR
was equivalent to RMB14,307,000. The investment 14,307,0007C ° Z E 2 WX E B
objective of the Fund is to achieve steady and long- EAEBRERREEmERE
term returns through investment of commercial real BERERERKID -

estate projects in the PRC.

19 INVENTORIES 19 #&
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

R-B-—F RIZTZFTF
+=A=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT AREFIT

Merchandises 7 h 22,498 32,052
Low value consumables KE SRR 2,025 2,464
24,523 34,516

—

RS EEEERERAT
—E-—FEH

L



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

19 INVENTORIES (continued)

An analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense and included in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss is as follows:

E_E - —Ff+ - A=1+—HIFFE
(BRIESHIEH  THIUARKEZZ)

19 8 (&)

BRASFAXLIAGEBERZFE

SROMTWT :

At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R-ZB-—F RZZT_ZTHF
+=A=+—-8 +tZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARKFIT
Carrying amount of inventories sold B &7FEREE 215,501 161,264
20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 JE YRR Rk R H b BB UK
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R=ZB=-—F RIZ_TF
+=A=+—H +=-—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBF T
Trade receivables from third parties,  FEULEE = BR X - HKR B8 & E
net of loss allowance (see Note 20(a)) ( & [fz£20(a)) 26,227 23,167
Other receivables from third parties HibpEWE =75 718
(see Note 20(b)) ( B #faE200b)) 5,660 194,823
Financial assets measured HEEKAGTEZ
at amortised cost SREE 31,887 217,990
Value added tax recoverable ] 3R 1= 2 E 12,044 2,692
Deposits b gara 15,664 16,748
Prepayments TEAF FIE 30,072 21,805
89,667 259,235

Except for deposits of RMB1,782,000 (31 December
2020: RMB1,816,000), all of the trade and other
receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as
expenses within one year.

Kize AR1,782,0000T (ZE ==
F+—HA=+—H: AK¥1,816,000
70 ) SN+ BT FE UK BR SR K ELAth PR WL 5K TR
BN —FAWEBRER BT L -

/
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% R 3k MY &
BE—_f-—F+=-A=+—HIFE
(BISBEHER TAUARKZZ)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

20 FEUR AR AR H fth FE WK
(%)
(a) FRERDHT
At AR MR SR N Bt FE MR 2 e
Wik (2B R EE) R |
THIRIREZ A 2 Rk a0

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)
(a) Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other receivables are trade

receivables (net of loss allowance) with the
following ageing analysis (based on the invoice

date) as of the end of the reporting period: ¢
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R-ZBZ—F RZZTZZTF
t=A=t+t—8 +t=A=1—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBF T
Less than 1 month L —1E A 4,138 8,993

More than 1 month but — @A E

less than 3 months BLR=1EA 7,020 102
More than 3 months ={EAN 15,069 14,072
26,227 23,167

JE W 55 = 75 fR ok B ey B TS RS 1
BZERRFLERAEERE
% BYH O REBEREHSEE
ZHMFEAR mZzEHBELEERS

Trade receivables from third parties relate to credit
card centres owned by financial institutions and
tenants operating in the Group’s department stores,
shopping mall and supermarkets for whom there
were no recent history of default and have a good WAETHENCSBEEAEE
track record with the Group. Further details on the BRIFZFERR BEANEE
Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from EEBREEWEREELE 2
trade debtors are set out in Note 29(a). B R 2 — B RN
29(a) °

HttEWE=5RIE
RZZE-_—F+=—A=+—8"
EHRTERERKE=ZFENFR
EEARAR ([AEHREREAR
Al ZEKBZRBBAREOT (=
ETFF+_A=F+—H: AR
#185,922,0007T ) °

(b)

Other receivables from third parties (b)
Included in the balance are receivables of RMB
Nil at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
RMB185,922,000) due from a third party prepaid
card management company (the “Prepaid Card

Management Company”).

—
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3 Y =
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z —F —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(b) Other receivables from third parties

—Ft+-A=+—HIFE

(BRIEZFIER BRIUAREZS)

20 FEUR B R R L A P

(&
(b)

(continued)

Certain subsidiaries of the Company (the “Relevant
Subsidiaries”) have begun cooperation with the
Prepaid Card Management Company since 2009
for its provision of services in managing the issue
and usage of Cash Coupon Card (single-use prepaid
card) (the “Cash Coupon Card”) for the Group's
department stores, shopping mall and supermarkets
(the “Relevant Stores”). Pursuant to the agreement
entered into by the Relevant Subsidiaries and the
Prepaid Card Management Company (the “Original
Cooperation Agreement”), the Prepaid Card
Management Company issues Cash Coupon Card
for and provides related management services to
Relevant Stores. The Relevant Subsidiaries shall pay
the amount charged for the issue of Cash Coupon
Card to the Prepaid Card Management Company,
while the Prepaid Card Management Company shall
settle the amount consumers have consumed in
Relevant Stores using the Cash Coupon Card to the
Relevant Subsidiaries.

Based on the assessment of the circumstances and
prospect of such cooperation with the Prepaid Card
Management Company, the Relevant Subsidiaries
entered into a termination agreement with the
Prepaid Card Management Company on 31 October
2019 to terminate the Original Cooperation
Agreement and the cooperation with the Prepaid
Card Management Company in respect of the Cash
Coupon Card thereunder, pursuant to which no
new Cash Coupon Card will be issued and sold by
the Prepaid Card Management Company.

HitEWE=FE (&)

RRABETHERR (THEEEM
BRARIB-ZETNFHKE
BNRERRBETEE BE
RAEBENES BYH LR
HBATS ([HEFE]) AT
AERABBER(-—BEERERE
) (TAERDEH‘REER
% RIBAEH B AR RENR
EERRRIUNHE ([REE
Hal) BNREE QR SIEHE
PIE TR B R IR (AR R E 12
IR% - MM B AR MIEN RE
B R BT T R R R AT
FRIE - FARRE IR A J 1R 48 7 M
BRRR#EHEEERRYRE
MEMERENSER-

RESEBNMREEQRSER
SUMAT R RS - BRI E AR
R-ZF-NFE+A=+—HERA
NREBRRBRILK 7 &
IEREEZERER N RBNFR
EEARLABRONAE Rt
BNRERERRGTEITNHE
AR R
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R M &t
BE—F-—F+-A=+—HUFE
(BRIHFFEIEH  BRIKAREZ5])

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 FEWBRF K H i FE R
(continued) (&

(b) Other receivables from third parties (b) HthEWE=FE (&)

(continued)

As of the end of the reporting period, the Group
entered into an agreement with the Prepaid Card
Management Company and Huade Investment.
The final instalment of RMB414,000,000 for
the acquisition of commercial properties under
development not yet paid by the Group to
Huade Investment will be paid by Prepaid Card
Management Company to settle the creditor’s rights
of the Group in the corresponding receivables from
the Prepaid Card Management Company. Based on
the opinion of the Company’s lawyer, the Company
no longer has any obligation to Huade Investment
upon the signing of the agreement. Accordingly, the
amount due from the Prepaid Card Management
Company of RMB340,297,000 as of 31 December
2021 had been settled.

Pursuant to the applicable PRC laws and regulations
and the rules related to the Cash Coupon Card,
consumers can still use the issued Cash Coupon
Card for consumption in the Relevant Stores
after the termination of the Original Cooperation
Agreement, and the Prepaid Card Management
Company remains obliged to repay the consumption
amount of the abovementioned Cash Coupon Card
to the Relevant Subsidiaries. In order to continue
to abide by applicable laws and regulations and
maintain normal business operation, the Relevant
Stores continue to accept consumptions by Cash
Coupon Card during the daily operations.

As of 31 December 2021, the total amount
of the Cash Coupon Card issued but not yet
consumed is approximately RMB535,050,000.
After comprehensively considering the amount
of Cash Coupon Card that is expected to be
consumed in the future, as well as the economic
benefit inflows that the guarantee and the
above collection measures may bring, long-term
provisions of RMB288,593,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB288,593,000) had been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at 31
December 2021.

RIERR AEBELABENFR
B NR MIEBRER W& -
AEERKBERPEEME
MERASNEEREZ&E—
Bz IE A R #414,000,0007T #
HEMRERE QRS A5
AEBERRKEBENREEAR
Z IR 2 B - RIBEAR
AR ER  NRRIRER %
BEEBETEYEELEREMNE
HeAM BHE—T-_—F+=
A=+—8 EKEMRREEA
Al Z 538 A R 340,297,000
B#E -

RIBERFBARER LA
B HBEERREFEHZRL
BADAIAE R 2 B E R IR 2R
HEMEBEE mMBAMNREER
RSN BB EESREDA
BEEEANBRRERNER-
REEETERERERNRET
AEXBRL HAMENREE
REBREPEEEZFEERER
BB REEE -

B2 Z-—F+-_A=+—
H EZETERBEEBZEBR
#BE 4 A AR ¥S535,050,000
TLo AEERE ZERIEFT ARG
FTHEOEE 25 UAER
B W EFE R RE AR T
ERMEEFZRAL  RZF
——H+-BR=t+—BzZ&HA
B %5 iR 5 3R A FE T RR R HA
B A R #288,593,0007T (=&
—EFE+_A=1+—HB: AR¥
288,593,0007T ) °

RS EEEERERAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

21 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

HE—_ZFT—

—Ft+-A=+—HIFE
(BRIEZFIER BRIUAREZS)

21 RTEERTFRES
) RERRSEEALBE:

At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R-B=Z—F R _FTF
+=A=+—H +=-—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARBF T
Cash at bank and on hand in the 44 IR REIB FNRT
consolidated statement of EFENFHEE S
financial position 36,520 393,556
Less: restricted cash at bank B XRIRITIRE
(see Note (i) (BHaEd)) (6,277) (288,590)
Cash and cash equivalents in the eRenekrkcRieMRe
consolidated cash flow statement Z£{EIEH 30,243 104,966
Note: Bt -

(i)

Restricted cash at bank at 31 December 2021 mainly

represented bank deposits of RMB1,012,000 (31
December 2020: RMB282,897,000) pledged to
secure the Group's bank loans (see Note 24(c)).

The Group’s operations of department stores,
shopping mall and supermarkets in the PRC are
conducted in RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible
currency and the remittance of RMB out of
Mainland China is subject to the relevant rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.
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1525 5 B 4R 17 B 3 K 18
E’JﬁEﬁT XA R #1,012,000
ﬁ(—?—?ﬂ£+ )E] +*
H: ARK%282,897,0007T)
( RHI7E24(0)) ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—T-_—F+-_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZHEHH  BAIAAREZ3)

21 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued) 21 SBIT&ERFEERE (&)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) BMETHELEZEBZHER

financing activities

Payables for
Other interest Lease
Bank loans borrowings expenses liabilities Total
RITER HtfEE  ERAERX HERR CH

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

(Note 24) (Note 24) (Note 22) (Note 25)

(Hi#24) (Hin) (Hi#2) (Hit25)

At 1 January 2021 R=%=-FDBA-A 1,615,455 1,500,000 10,283 80,942 3,206,680
Changes from financing cash flows:  BERERELH:
Proceeds from new bank loans ~ FEESH{TE R HEE 830,000 - - - 830,000
Proceeds from new other borrowings  #7 £ (& EF/53E - 1,740977 - - 1,740977
Repayment of bank loans EERTER (1,296,072) - - - (1,296,072)
Repayment of other horowings ~~ EEHMEE - (832,727) - - (832,727)
Other finance costs paid EfERRERA - - (210,578) - (210,578)
Capital element of lease rentals paid 242 &K 5 - - - (67,610) (67,610)
Interest element of lease rentals paid 2 {84 2 FlEH5 - - = (9,442) (9,442)
Total changes from financing cash flows  B&H & i € £ (466,072) 908,250 (210,578) (77,052) 154,548
Exchange adjustments ERRz (5383) - 210 - (5.113)
Other changes: EfRE:
Interest expenses, bank chargesand ~ #| 85  RITFEBR AL

other finance costs (see Note 6(3) AR (£ it6(2) - - 154,482 9,442 163,024
Capitalsed borrowing costs ERLBERA

(see Note 6(a) (M) - - 86,174 - 86,174
Increase in supplier financing R A 58,812 58,812
Increase in lease liabiltes from entering % /] 7 i1/ 41 2 HE A E

into new leases during the year m - - - 210,570 270,570
Total other changes EpE9ER - 58,812 240,656 280,012 579,480
At 31 December 2021 RZE--F£+-f=+-H 1,144,000 2,467,062 40,631 283,902 3,935,595

HR S BRERERA 0

=
—E-—FEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE_—_FT—-_—F+_-_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

21 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued) 21 $R8{T&ERFHEHRE (&)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) BMETHELEZEBZHER
financing activities (continued) (%)
Other Payables for Lease
Bank loans borrowings  interest expenses liabilties Total
RITER HEE  ENHERAX HEAR At
RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
AEBFT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETx
(Note 24) (Note 24) (Note 22) (Note 25)

(Bizt24) (Hrz224) (Brit22) (Hr25)

At 1 April 2020 R-2-RFQA-A 2,558,452 148,951 62,954 85,109 2,855,466

Changes from financing cash flows: BEREHELH:

Proceeds from new bank loans HERTEDMETE 717,984 - - - 717,984
Proceeds from new other borrowings 732 £ f (& & B 073 = 1,640,000 = - 1,640,000
Repayment of bank loans EREAER (1,645,362) - - - (1,645,862)
Repayment of other borrowings ~ BEEMEE - (288,951) - - (288,951)
Other finance costs paid KB NBERA - - (232,148) - (232,148)
Capital element of lease rentals paid 2 842 ARHH - - = (21,644) (21,644)
Interest element of lease rentals paid 2[4 255 - - - (4,098) (4,098)
Total changes from financing cash flows & &35 £ )7 £ 8% (927,878 1,351,049 (232,148) (25,742) 165,281
Exchange adjustments ExAz (15,119) - (598) - (15717)
Other changes: Ep25:
Interest expenses, bank charges and 8B T FEEREM

other finance costs (see Note 6(@)  BERA (2 Hii6()) - - 109,518 4,098 113,616
Capitalised borrowing costs BALBERA

(see Note 6(a) (2 Ht60) - - 70,557 - 70,557
Increase in lease liabilities from  HRET ALz AERRE

entering into new leases during 211

the period - - - 17477 17477
Total other changes EhEaEs - - 180,075 21575 201,650
At 31 December 2020 RZBZEE+ZA=1-H 1,615,455 1,500,000 10,283 80,942 3,206,680

/
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-——#F+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB B8 TAIUARKEZ7)

21 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued) 21 $2{T&ERFHERE (&)

() Total cash outflow for leases () HEZRERHAE
Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow SFAGEReRER HESHE
statement for leases comprise the following: BIETY &I

Nine months

Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

BZE HE
—E=-—F —EETF

+t=A=t—-8 t=—A=+—H
IR @A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETTT

Within operating cash flows KEBSMEA 47 781

Within financing cash flows MEBRESMEA 77,052 25,742
77,099 26,523

These amounts relate to the following: ZESHEHEATNRIBESR:

Nine months

Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

BZE HE

—E-—F —E-FF
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
ILEE IEAEA
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFT

Lease rentals paid 2% 77,099 26,523

—
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(BRIF=EHER

BRIUAREZ3)

22 BB RRFR H 4th FE Y 5K

At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R=ZB=Z-—F RN_T_TF
t=A=t+—-8 +t=-A=1—"H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARKTFT
Trade payables arising from: EREREREANTSEESE
— Concession sales — A EHEEE 141,770 350,556
— Purchase of inventories —-BERFE 28,914 19,857
170,684 370,413
Amounts due to related parties FES B A T 5RIE
(see Note (i) (R HIEEI)) 81,024 207,230
Other payables and accrued expenses: E {3k M fEFTE A :
— Payables for staff related costs —ENZEIHBEER 20,448 28,626
— Payables for interest expenses and —ENFELZHEEEZRS
transaction costs on borrowings [N 40,631 10,283
- Deposits from concessionaries and — e EEP RS
customers 26,836 26,826
- Dividends payables —ERRE 3,661 3,661
— Amounts due to a third party — B —RE=F A
(see Note (ii)) ( & 15 i)) = 58,812
— Others —Hfb 70,648 91,686
162,224 219,894
Financial liabilities measured at REBHEKATEZEREE
amortised cost 413,932 797,537
Other taxes payable JE T B b B 18 2,564 14,585
416,496 812,122

All of the trade and other payables are expected to
be settled or recognised as revenue or net income or
in profit or loss within one year or are repayable on
demand.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Notes:

(i) The balances as at 31 December 2021 are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and are expected to be settled in
2022.

(i) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
have been settled in 2021.

Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables
with the following ageing analysis (based on the maturity
date) as of the end of the reporting period:

Bt 7% R 3k MY &
BE-—F-—F{+-—A=1+—HIFE
(BRIESHEH TRIKAREKZS)

22 FBEFERE
it 5t -

AR EMENRK (E)

) RZBZ—F+-A=+—BZ#
HAERH EEANRBHN —F

—FRNEN
(i) ZEREREER 252X =F
——FRNE
BRER 2 A7
SHATETBR R R LML R R 2 FE R
R EBRIZEH B 2 BREc H AT a8
T
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

RZBZ—F R_ZT_ZFTF
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—8H

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR T
Due within one month or on demand X —{& A A 2| B gt 1% 2 2 57 170,684 370,413
23 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23 sRIAE
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R-ZBEZ—F R_ZT_FTF
+=BA=+—H +t=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARMFT
Contract liabilities in relation to HEELRHETE AR
customer loyalty programme eRAE 6,678 5,735
Contract liabilities in relation to BABNEFEFRIER
prepayments from customers BRBE (EMZ0)
(see Note (i) 128,277 96,158
134,955 101,893
e S RFEERERAT

—E-—FEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

23 CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 23

The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount
of the transaction price allocated to the performance
obligations that are unsatisfied as of the end of the
reporting period. The Group expects the transaction price
allocated to the unsatisfied performance obligations will
be recognised as direct sales and gross revenue from
concession sales when the Group transfers goods or
services to the customer.

Note:

(i) Movements in contract liabilities in relation to
prepayments from customers

ERE&RE (&)

ANABENREPRDRERERE
TZRNEEZXSERE - F4H
B RS RS SR
AMERBITROEEOR B
RAEBEHE RS HEN B -

Wit

() FBAHEBRNEPREZANAEBED

At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

R-ZE-—F RZTZZTF
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARBFT

Balance at 1 January/April R—A/mA—B&#% 96,158 79,330
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result HRRE HH:T A S 4

of recognising revenue during the BEZE HNEREE

year/period that was included in the AHBERD

contract liabilities at the beginning of

the year/period (88,875) (55,518)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result P57 B A L T8 15 6 (B R 78 Uk

of receipts in advance from customers ZFFEZXEMEMZ ARARE

during the period in respect of prepaid

stored value cards 120,994 72,346
Balance at 31 December R+-—HA=+—B#&&% 128,277 96,158

The unsatisfied performance obligations resulting from
direct sales and gross revenue from concession sales
expected to be recognised as revenue within one year or
on demand.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—T-_—F+-_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZHEHH  BAIAAREZ3)

24 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24 BITRHEMEE
(a) The Group’s short-term bank loans and other () XEEzEHPRTEEMEE
borrowings are analysed as follows: ZHWMT :
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

R-ZB=-Z—-F R-ZT_ZTF
+=A=+—-B +t=A=t+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR ARETT

Bank loans: RITER
— secured by the Group’s bank —UAREE ZIRITFER
deposits and guaranteed {EI IR - 30 F AN &) 3%
by the Company or a subsidiary AEE—FHWBRA
of the Group R - 235,455
- secured by the Group’s land and ~ —LAZREE 7 + i &
buildings and guaranteed BFIEEMT W H
by the Company and Quijiang PN/ N8 DA = B2
Financial Holdings R 100,000 —
— guaranteed by Qujiang Financial — — B #)T € BUE IR
Holdings 30,000 30,000
130,000 265,455
Other borrowings: HEMEE:
— unsecured and unguaranteed —E R E R 1,411,486 -
— guaranteed by a subsidiary of the — B A% E—EHE A A ER
Group (see Note 32(a)) (R H#E32(a)) - 690,000
— guaranteed by Qujiang Financial — — (B #)T 5 B2 I =R
Holdings = 110,000
1,411,486 800,000
Add: current portion of long-term  ji: REASRITER R EMER
bank loans and other Z BVERER 1)
borrowings (see Note 24(b)) (B HiaE24(0b)) 610,000 701,000
2,151,486 1,766,455

—
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(BRIHFZEIER TAIUARKZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

24 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

24 ROKHEMEE (&)

(continued)
(b) The Group’s long-term bank loans and other (b) *EBZRHAKRITREAMEE
borrowings are analysed as follows: FHmn:
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R-B-—F R-F-FTF
+=A=+—HB +t=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%Fr ARKF T
Bank loans: |ITEN
— secured by the Group’s investment — JAZNE[E 7 1% & Y2 HE + b
property and land and buildings N8BT MARRMAREEE
and future income rights and o WHARNAF) KRB
guaranteed by the Company and SEEER
Mr. Wu Yijian 344,000 400,000
— guaranteed by a subsidiary of — BT rER—EHE
Quijiang Financial Holdings NRIPER 70,000 70,000
— secured by the Group’s bank —AREBZRITERE
deposits and/or land and T REFEER W H
buildings and guaranteed by the KRT R 5 A S B —
Company and/or a subsidiary of MBAR R, R —EE
the Group and/or Mr. Wu Yijian HEER 600,000 880,000
1,014,000 1,350,000
Other borrowings: HEE:
— unsecured and unguaranteed — I R 55,576 -
- secured by the Group’s land and ~ —AARNE B Z £ RIEFIER
buildings and guaranteed by 30 BB AT 2 BT AR &
Quijiang Financial Holdings and K& E B A mESR
subsidiaries of the Group 1,000,000 700,000
Less: current portion of long-term & : RHISRTER R EME R
bank loans and other 2 BER &R 17
borrowings (see Note 24(a)) (B HtiE24(a)) (610,000) (701,000)
1,459,576 1,349,000

/
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

24 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)

(b) The Group’s long-term bank loans and

(c)

other borrowings are analysed as follows:
(continued)

The Group’s long-term bank and other borrowings
are repayable as follows:

Bt 75 R R Y &

BE—_T - —F+_A=+—HIFEE

24 $R1T

(BIFFEEH BRIAAREZS)

RHEMEE (&)

(b) *EEzRARTRAMEER

DWW (&)

$§IZ§EH$ETT&E1M EEA
RN 5 BfRM{E R -

At At

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

R-IEBZ—F RZZT-TF

+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥TF T AR FT

Within 1 year —F R 610,000 701,000
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFR 844,000 465,000
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZERFAN 511,576 704,000
After 5 years FF#% 104,000 180,000
2,069,576 2,050,000

All of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans
and other borrowings are carried at amortised cost.
None of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans
and other borrowings is expected to be settled

within one year.

FrA SERNHAET BaRTTE AR S E
{8 B IR SR AN AR - B4 3F
BIEGH RRITER R EMEETR
RN —FABE-

The following assets and their respective (0 TIHEERHEHZAZEREER

carrying values as at the end of the reporting ARERARSHWERUER K
period are pledged to secure the Group’s SEZBRITREMBEEZE

bank and other borrowings: =R

At At

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

R-ZB-—F RZ-T_TF

+=A=+—-8 +=A=+—8

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARKTFT

Property and equipment M KR 2,844,000 2,743,000

Investment property BB 1,265,300 1,265,300

Cash at bank (see Note 21(a)(i) R (ARE21a)0)) 1,012 282,897

4,110,312 4,291,197

HESEHEERERAA

L

—E-—FEH




Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

24 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)

24 ROKHEMEE (&)

(d) Certain of the Group's bank and other borrowings (d) TEBETRITREMEERR
are subject to the fulfilment of covenants RHESHBEZERLHFZE
commonly found in lending arrangements with REFH - MAREEREZHE %
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach EEEBENERERER R
the covenants, such borrowings would become —E-—F4+—-"HA=+—H8 #
repayable on demand. At 31 December 2021, none BEREGARTREMEENE
of the covenants relating to the bank and other h °
borrowings had been breached.

25 LEASE LIABILITIES 25 HE&E

At 31 December 2021, the lease liabilities were repayable R-ZZE-—F+-_/A=+—H &

as follows: BEMNERBHT:

At At

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R-B=-—-F R-_ZT_FTF
+=A=+—8 +t=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARKF T

Within 1 year —FR 50,223 16,864

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFNA 68,770 12,057

After 2 years but within 5 years MEBERFRA 53,433 26,399

After 5 years FHF 1% 111,476 25,622

233,679 64,078
283,902 80,942

//4—'
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R M &t
BE—F-—F+-A=+—HUFE
(BRIHFFEIEH  BRIKAREZ5])

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 26 EREGHEHURO XG2S
TRANSACTIONS

(a) Share award scheme (a)

B4 R R =t &

On 17 October 2014 (the “Adoption Date”), the
directors of the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) as a mean of
rewarding and retaining employees of the Group
and certain eligible participants and to attract
suitable personnel for further development with the
Group. A trust has been set up for the purpose of
administering the Share Award Scheme.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the trust may
purchase shares in the Company from the Stock
Exchange with cash contributed by the Group, and
to hold such shares until they are vested.

The directors of the Company may, from time to
time, at its sole and absolute discretion, select any
employee of the Group and eligible participants
including suppliers, customers, shareholders,
advisers and other service providers (other than
those specifically excluded as stated in the Share
Award Scheme) for participation in the Share Award
Scheme and grant such number of awarded shares
to any selected employee of the Group and eligible
participants at nil consideration. The directors of
the Company are entitled to impose any conditions
(including a period of continued service within the
Group after the award) with respect to the vesting
of the awarded shares.

The Share Award Scheme came into effect on the
Adoption Date, and shall terminate on the earlier of
(i) the tenth anniversary date of the Adoption Date;
and (ii) such date of early termination as determined
by the directors of the Company.

On 18 May 2020, the directors of the Company
resolved to terminate the Share Award Scheme and
all shares under the Share Award Scheme have been
sold by the Group.

R-Z—mOFE+A++E8 (K
MEH]) NRAREFERARND
BB ET &8 (TR D EER T 81 ) 1F
REBEGEAEEE T RET
BERSEE W ANEEE—
FERRRSIGEAT - AAFIE
FXAZAERECAE IR AR 1 22 Bh At &1

RIERAD S2B) 5T &) - (S FE AT B
RFIAAR KB HREEEAR
NEED ERAZEREEE
HORB-

AAREEAUNETIEEERE
HMERE EEAEEEAERS
ReEER2EE BiEHER-
B BRE - B & E ARG 4
FER (A% 1D S2BhAT 815k 5! A REHE
Brz ALBRAN) 2 EAR (5 SR ET
g WATREL THRSEBK
MEE TASETNEEEES X
BERBEE ARARESHE
BLERED AR 10 & 55 I B DN 1] 114
(BREBBEFERBGSASE—
ERRFfE) ©

P fn SR E) AT B B B HI A A&
R WA ER AR B B AR SR
HEFEWBH: R(NBARRIES
BERAMZILNZERZERE
w2k

RZE_ZEFRA+N\B EAQ
AEBRBE LRGSR E
A B E 6 AR 1 S 31 818
T2 FA R -

RS EEEERERAT
—E-—FEH

—
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27

BE—ZFT-——F+-_A=1+—HIFFEE

(BRIEZFIER BRIUAREZS)

INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 27 MBMRRRAZFAB/HR
FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Movements in current taxation in the (a) HREMBRRARAZRAHIE
consolidated statement of financial position B
are as follows:
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BZE HE
—E--F —ZE_TF
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
IHEE IENEA
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥F ARETFIT
Balance of income tax payable at R —AF WA —H
1 January/April PTG B4 84 36,632 34,337
Withholding tax on 2k & A FEH
distributed earnings 22,950 =
Provision for income tax on BAREE S HE G RN
the estimated taxable profits i AR AL PTG T
for the year/period (see Note 7(a)) (B H{zE7(a)) 4,354 1,668
(Over)/under-provision in respect of BFFE (FB%E), T B
prior years (see Note 7(a)) (B Hfat7(a)) (102) 17
Income tax (paid)/refunded F/H0R(ER),/
during the year/period REBEFEH (27,663) 610
Balance of income tax payable at W+ —-A=+—HEN N2
31 December TS 4 5% 36,171 36,632

/
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—T-_—F+-_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZHEHH  BAIAAREZ3)

27 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 27 MBRRRAZFAER
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) (&
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERRELEBEEERESE:
Fair value
adjustments on
property and
equipment,
investment
Financial assets Expected credit  property and Interest
Accrued  at fair value osses on intangible capitalisation
expenses  through other financial assets assetsand on prepayment
and deferred  comprehensive  measured at related  for acquisition
income income amortised cost  depreciation  of properties Net
NER

BRAAERNE  RAHEAA RE RENE
BREEHHA Bz REVEEZ U LIES
Eifxk HbimEkidz  SREEz OAEWEBE BRREZ

BRUA tHEE RAREEE BEAE  ASEM FE
RMB000 AMB000 AMB 000 AMB000 AMB000 AMB000

ARBTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARRTT ARETn ARETx

Deferred tax arising from: RT5I%EEEZBERAE:
At 1 April 2020 RZZ-ZENA-A 2,336 23273 10,381 (577,094) (62,150) (603,254)

Effect on deferred tax balances reslting ~ Hi 2 E B ETHALHHFE

from a change in tax rate (see Note 7)) (2 H7(3) 517 - 4388 5818 - 10,723
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated 5t A/ (118) A BER

statement of profit or loss (see Note 7)) (£ #fit7(a)) 86 - (3732) 65,358 (17,639) 44573
Charged to reserves (see Note 10) RNk (20 - (23273) - (25,682) - (48,955)
At 31 December 2020 RZZ_EF+_A=1-H 2,939 - 11,037 (531,100) (79,789) (596,913)

Credited/(charged) to the consolidated 5t A/ (H18)GABRR

statement of profit or loss (see Note 7(3) (£ f373)) (1,536) - (903) 28,603 (21,543) 4,621
Charged to reserves (see Note 10) BNk (2 0) - - - (26,177) - (26,177)
At 31 December 2021 R-Z--E+-f=1-H 1,403 - 10,134 (528,674) (101,332) (618,469)

—

RS EEEERERAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE_—_FT—-_—F+_-_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

27 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF MBAR R R A Z T EHR

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) (,)

(c) Reconciliation of deferred tax assets and () REEUBERRAKRBRANEL
liabilities recognised in the consolidated HEEEREEYHE
statement of financial position

At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

R=FB-—-% R-T-FTF
+t=A=+—-RA +t—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETTT

Deferred tax assets recognised in the 4R A BIfS kR R IER

consolidated statement of financial & L7 I8 & &

position 11,537 13,976
Deferred tax liabilities recognised REGE MR RKRERZ

in the consolidated statement of EERIEEE

financial position (630,006) (610,889)
(618,469) (596,913)
(d) Deferred tax assets not recognised (d) KERZEZHEEE

In accordance with the accounting policy set BRIREMIFE2(s)FT 8 2 & 5T BUR
out in Note 2(s), the Group has not recognised REEWAEREBRAH
deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses %EEARK1,010,017,000
of RMB1,010,017,000 (nine months ended 31 T(BE-—_ZT-_ZF+=-H
December 2020: RMB641,113,000) as it is not = +t—HBLEAEA: AR
probable that future taxable profits against which 641,113,0007T) 2 ELEFLIA &
the losses can be utilised will be available in the ERAAEABRE AR
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The remaining REEET AR fE=EE &K
unused tax losses at 31 December 2021 will EART R AR AEE R
expire on or before the financial period ending 31 ——F+ZA=T—BHZ&H TR
December 2026. FARESEEEREE -~
F+—-—A=+—H8 -

Z A JE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% R 3k MY &
BE—_f-—F+=-A=+—HIFE
(BISBEHER TAUARKZZ)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
(e) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

27 BIBMR KA ZFTEH

(&
(e) RERZELBERM

At 31 December 2021, temporary differences RZE-_—F+=ZA=+—8"

relating to the undistributed profits of certain
subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
amounted to RMB853,703,000 (31 December
2020: RMB1,465,807,000). Deferred tax liabilities
of RMB42,685,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB73,290,000) have not been recognised in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the distribution
of these retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that profits from these
subsidiaries will not be distributed in the foreseeable
future.

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

AR EE BIE T R B S 2 [T 8
RAEIZ RO HN B2 EREE
£ A AN R#853,703,0007T (=
E_FF+_A=+—H8: AR
#1,465,807,0007T ) ° IE T FiIE
BEARE42,685,0007 (==&
—EFE+_A=1+—HB: AR¥
73,290,0007T ) i A 3t & 12 5% &
RE & F 2 2K i FEAT 2 BE T8 M
T AR - RE AR RIZEHZ
EHhENBRARZERERERKRE
ETEREZENB AR %R
AAJRERAITE R B R FIAD IR o

28 BEX - -fHBERRKRE

(a) Movements in components of equity () EZIHEH
The reconciliation between the opening and REBEGRE R & EB 0 2 )
closing balances of each component of the Group’s NHAR R 2 BRI SN AR &
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated mE K - R EFHNEHRAK
statement of changes in equity. Details of the NRAZ B EER D 2 ZBF1E
changes in the Company’s individual components of o
equity between the beginning and the end of the
reporting period are set out below:
Shares held
Share Share  under share Capital ~ Contributed Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium  award scheme reserve surplus reserve losses Total
RERG B
S REEE 8EEZRH R EON:LS EXGE ZithR GH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT  AREFT  ARETT RETT \RET1T ARETT AREFn  ARETT
(Note 28(c) ~ (Note 28(d)()) ~ (Note 28(a)(i))  (Note 28(d)iil)) ~ (Note 28(a)iv)) (Note 28(a)vi))
(Hitzs(c)  (Wazasio))  (Wiatas(a)) (Watzsalii)) (HaEasio)i)  (riz2siiii)
Balance at 1 April 2020 W-S-BEMA-R&H 199,369 1,136,595 2,922) 8,907 995,255 356,324 (269,207) 2,443
Changes in equity for the period: rHEREE:
Total comprehensive income for the period A2 E i - - - - (157,572) (666,033) (823,605)
Termination of share award scheme RIERIDREE (2 260)
(see Note 26(a)) - - 2922 (2,530) - - 392
Balance at 31 December 2020 and RZBZBE+ZB=1-HBR
1 January 2021 “E--F-B-REH 199,369 1,136,595 6,377 995,255 198,752 (935,240) 1,601,108
Changes in equity for the year: rEERESD:
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ A% 2 AN ELE - - - - (45,626) 574 (45,095)
Balance at 31 December 2021 RIB--F+-A=t-RLH 199,369 1,136,595 6,377 995,255 153,083 (934,666) 1,556,013
S BREEZRERA A
B —EEH

ﬁ
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(b) Dividends

(i)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company and holder of the convertible
preference shares attributable to the period.

The directors of the Company do not
recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (nine months
ended 31 December 2020: RMB Nil).

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company and holder of the convertible
preference shares attributable to the previous
financial year, approved during the period.

No final dividend in respect of the previous
financial year has been approved for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (nine months ended
31 December 2020: RMB Nil).
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BE—ZFT-——F+-_A=1+—HIFFEE
(BRIESHIEH  THIUARKEZZ)

28 EX-HERRE (&)

(b) KRE
(i)

2NN S LR T
B 5B ARG B3 A e A5 A

=}

IS

RAREZWNEZIKN
BE_Z2-_—F+=HA
=t+t—HIEEE2EAK
A=+—HIER@EAR: A
R¥ZIT) o

NN SR ¢ S
R B ARG E—MBRF
ERMBRE (REREL
/)

BE_Z2_FF+ - A
= t+—HIEFE TEH
fE | — B R R B IR
B(HzEzZZE-_Z=F+=
A=+—HIEA@A: A
REZIT) o



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(c) Share capital
(i) Issued share capital

Bt 7% R 3k MY &
BE—_f-—F+=-A=+—HIFE
(BISBEHER TAUARKZZ)

28 EX-HEBRRE (&)

() B=
(i) EZRITRA

Year ended Nine months ended
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
HE-®--f HF-5-%ET-R=1-H
tZR=+-BLEE LENERHE
Number of
shares Number of shares
k%A gt ¢
‘000 RMB000 000 RMB'000
Tk AEETT T ARETT
Authorised: i
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each BROBTLZ ERKR 15,000,000 135,168 15,000,000 135,168
Preference shares at HK$0.1 each BRONBTLBER 5,000,000 45,056 5,000,000 45,056
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: BETRHREER:
At 1 January/Apriland 31 December ~ ®—A/BA-BRTZA=t-H 1,149,695 103,602 1,149,695 103,602
Convertible preference shares, issued EETRARTERELR:
and fully paid:
At 1 January/April and 31 December ~ ®—F/MA-BRT-A=1-R 1,177,068 95,767 1,177,068 95,767
Total share capital Raag 2,326,763 199,369 2,326,763 199,369
S BREEZRERA A
—E-—FEH
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(BRIHFZEIER TAIUARKZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(i)

Issued share capital (continued)

Ordinary shares

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled
to receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares do not carry the
right to vote. The holder of the convertible
preference shares has the right, at any time
and at the sole option of such holder, to
convert the convertible preference shares in
whole, or in any part, into fully paid ordinary
shares in the Company. The conversion ratio
is 1 convertible preference share to 1.1
ordinary shares. Holder of the convertible
preference shares ranks pari passu with other
holders of the ordinary shares in respect of its
entitlement to dividend or other distribution of
the Company. In the event of any liquidation,
winding-up or dissolution of the Company,
holder of the convertible preference shares
shall receive an amount equal to HK$1.60 per
convertible preference share, plus all accrued
but unpaid dividends in preference to the
ordinary shareholders.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by Section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

Shares held under share award scheme

The amount represents the consideration paid
for shares held under the share award scheme.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii) Capital reserve

At 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,
capital reserve comprises the following:

—  the portion of the grant date fair value
of unexercised share options granted to
directors of the Company, and employees
and service providers of the Group that
has been recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in Note 2(r)(ii);

—  the difference between the nominal
value of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the share
capital and share premium of a subsidiary
acquired through an exchange of shares
pursuant to a group reorganisation took
place on 28 September 2000;

—  the difference between the carrying
amounts and the principal amounts of
the unsecured notes redeemed in 2011
and 2012; and

—  the difference between the consideration
paid on the acquisition of non-controlling
interests and the carrying amount of the
non-controlling interests.

(iv) Contributed surplus

(v)

The application of the contributed surplus
account is governed by Section 54 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve has been
set up and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted for land and
buildings held for own use in Note 2(g).
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
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(BRIEZFIER BRIUAREZS)

28 EX-HEBRBRE (&)

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(vi) Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of other financial
assets held at the end of the reporting period
and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Notes 2(f) and

2(k)(i).

(vii) Statutory reserves

In accordance with the articles of association
of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC, these subsidiaries were required
to set up certain statutory reserves, which
were non-distributable. The transfers of these
reserves are at discretion of the directors of the
respective subsidiaries. The statutory reserves
can only be utilised for predetermined means
upon approval by the relevant authority.

(viii)Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
operations into the presentation currency. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 2(v).

Capital management

The Group’'s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for equity shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(e) Capital management (continued)

()

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this
purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total debt
(which includes bank and other borrowings and
lease liabilities), plus unaccrued proposed dividends,
less cash at bank on hand. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity less unaccrued
proposed dividends.

In order to improve the Group’s capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

Capital management

The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio as at 31
December 2021 and 31 December 2020 are as
follows:

Bt 75 R R Y &
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At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R-ZB-—F RZZT_ZTF
+=BA=+—H +—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARBFT
Current liabilities: MENEE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 2,151,486 1,766,455
Lease liabilities HESE 50,223 16,864
Non-current liabilities: ERBEE:
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMEE 1,459,576 1,349,000
Lease liabilities HEBE 233,679 64,078
Total debt BT HREE 3,894,964 3,196,397
Less: cash at bank and on hand B IRTT R FEE S (36,520) (393,556)
Adjusted net debt RARFEER 3,858,444 2,802,841
Adjusted capital BARER 1,808,260 2,037,972
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio EFAB FEEEE R R 213% 138%
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28

29

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(f) Capital management (continued)

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

The Group is not exposed to significant currency risk as
most of the transactions are denominated in the same
currency as the functional currency of the operations
in which they relate. Exposure to credit, liquidity and
interest rate arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group is also exposed to equity price risk
arising from its equity investment in another entity.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place, and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash is deposited with financial institutions with
acceptable credit quality. Management does not
expect any of these financial institutions with fail to
meet their obligations

Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Group as set out in Note 31, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose
the Group or the Company to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these
financial guarantees at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in Note 31.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 Bi¥REKBEERAAE

VALUES (continued) (4
(a) Credit risk (continued) () EERR (&)
Credit risk arising from trade receivables HEtEZRAEEZEERRE

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
debtor rather than the industry in which the debtors
operate and therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual debtors. At the
end of the reporting period 18% (2020: 19%) and
43% (2020: 43%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s largest debtor and the five
largest debtors, respectively.

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all debtors requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the debtor’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the debtor
as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the debtor operates. Trade receivables
are generally due within 3 months from the date
of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from debtors.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
Trade receivables are mainly due from credit
card centres owned by state-owned financial
institutions in the PRC and tenants operating in
the Group’s department stores, shopping mall and
supermarkets, and accordingly, the management of
the Group considers the concentration and credit
risks to be low. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

BE—ZFT-——F+-_A=1+—HIFFEE

Credit risk arising from trade receivables

(continued)

(a)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

receivables:

(BRIEZFIER BRIUAREZS)

29?%@@%@&@&@

ERER (%)

R RS EREL 2 EHAR
()

TERFIAEEESE EEAR
RS B R AR A
oE

At 31 December 2021
R-B-_—-+-A=+—H

Gross
Expected loss carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
BFHEER HBEREE BiERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF T AR T
Current (not past due) BVHR (R ER) 0.5% 11,215 56
Less 3 months past due  EHINHERE =18 A 1.2% 15,251 183
Over 3 months past due i HAFE 8 =& A 100% - -
26,466 239

At 31 December 2020

Gross

Expected loss carrying
rate amount Loss allowance
TEH A= HBERTEE EERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKTF T ARKFT
Current (not past due) BVER (K@ ER) 0.5% 8,720 44
Less 3 months past due 760 HA SR 3R = 8 A 1.2% 14,666 175
Over 3 months past due ¥ Hi}A 8 =& A 100% = =
23,386 219

/

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 3 years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group's view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—T-_—F+-_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZHEHH  BAIAAREZ3)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 Bi¥REKBEERAAE

VALUES (continued) (%)
(a) Credit risk (continued) () =ERRKR (&)
Credit risk arising from trade receivables BB ZRAEEZEERRE
(continued) (%&)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect HEME SRAREEZEERR
of trade receivables during the period is as follows: N BRERER BB RERY
BT
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
8= S
—B-—F —TFF

t=A=+t—-8 +t=ZA=+—"H
LLEE IEAEASE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETTT

Balance at 1 January/April R—A/MA—B#&&#% 219 9,284

Amounts written-off during the FAEIAME 2 FE

year/period - (9,132)
Impairment losses recognised during 4F A,/ HA A &R 2 5 (E E 18

the year/period 20 67
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—HB&% 239 219
Credit risk arising from other receivables REE=FZHMEKNEE
from third parties EZEERE
The Group measures loss allowance for other AEBEZESEN T _@EAELSE
receivables at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs. EEB BT EEMERFIE
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated based ZEBRE ZEemEECE
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, HEEEBEIREASE BT
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors EEEBERRMA  WREER
and an assessment of both the current and forecast ABBEZERETHAE RY
general economic conditions at the reporting date. s B E R RTER 2 BB AR

SUETTRT (S ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 B EREERAAE
VALUES (continued) (&
(b) Liquidity risk (b)

Individual operating entities within the Group are

responsible for the short-term investments of their
cash surpluses, where the raising of financings is

RBE SRR

AEERNERIKEEREERS
ReRBAHRE MESSE
SRABAEEEIREREIELAE
NIRRT K - AEE 2 BR

/

centrally managed by the head office of the Group
to cover expected cash demands. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

At 31 December 2021, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB2,638,621,000. The Group has
undertaken and will continue to undertake various
measures in order to further improve its liquidity
position in the short and longer term. Further details
are set out in Note 2(b).

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest dates the Group
can be required to pay.

RERERERDESHLLHE
ETEERE BN AERE
SEERTERRSREALEE
ZoMEEARRERENES
NENEHEE 2 RBESH
sk o

N_E-—F+-_H=+—H"
REEZRBBEFEAARK
2,638,621,0007T ° A £ @ & &
o R % e 4 R BN 2 TR i DA 3 —
PREECHRERBHZRHE
AN o i — T BRI T
2(b) °

TRFEAEEZNTEEHE
BERHRERR2HTENEEE
o BRBRIRES HRMER
Reng (BREMS QN X
8o MBEF BN R ARER
BERRZIMRFAEZAEN
) A e AN 5= (B A] BE 1 22 SR B K
ZERFRMBEH-

As at 31 December 2021
BWZBZ-£+Zf=1-H

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

AHRBRRALTE
More than

More than 2 years but Carrying
Within 1 year 1 year but less less than More than amount at
orondemand  than 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
i
—£R BB-F BBmE t=A=+-H
FRER  EIREE  BIREE BBLE At ZIREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFR  ARETT  ARETT AREFT  ARETT  ARETR

Trade and other payables RRERATTE AR
measured at amortised cost R E BT 469,508 - - - 469,508 469,508
Lease liabilities RERE 70,515 85,441 85,950 137,157 379,063 283,902
Bank and other borrowings BAOREMEE 2,328,248 917,639 568,207 111,034 3,925,128 3,611,062
2,868,271 1,003,080 654,157 248,191 4,773,699 4,364,472
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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BE_T_—F+_A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB B8 TAIUARKEZ7)
29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR HHEREERARE
VALUES (continued) (4
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) "BELEAR (&)
As at 31 December 2020
R-Z-ZE+_A=+—H
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRNRERR ST
More than More than Carrying
Within 1 year 1 year but less 2 years but less More than amount at
orondemand  than2years  than 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
N
—£R/ BE—F BB +-A=1-H
dEEX  EIRME  EIREE BBRE A LR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFL  AREFT  ARETT AREFT  AREFTT  ARETR
Trade and other payables REHR A E 7 ERARR

measured at amortised cost R EMER K 797,537 - - = 797,537 797,537
Lease liabilities HEAE 21,890 13,473 31,707 39,649 106,719 80,942
Bank and other borrowings BAREMEE 1,918,622 558,078 793,862 202,419 3,472,981 3,115,455
2,738,049 571,551 825,569 242,068 4,377,237 3,993,934

Interest rate risk (0 RMEmEp
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from REEZFEREREERBFE

interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest

rate risk respectively.

Interest rate

(i)

profile

FE Yoz ] B ) R K 32 [E] E K R
T2 BEEARED BIAZIR

The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end of
the reporting period.

At 31 December 2021

i*um%ﬂrﬂﬁ KR F B

G o
A

(i) FERHR
TRAVNAEEFEEE
R EHIR 2 MR

At 31 December 2020

R-B--%+-A=+-B WZZT-TF+-A=1+—H

Effective Effective

interest rate interest rate

ERA=E B =
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
ARM T AREFT

Fixed rate borrowings: ETEHZREE:

Other borrowings HiftEes 7.2% 2,167,062 75% 1,500,000
Bank loans BITER 6.7% 544,000 6.8% 500,000
2,711,062 2,000,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE_—_FT—-_—F+_-_HA=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 BiEREERAAE
VALUES (continued) (&
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (b) FEBELRAR (&)

() FIEER (&)
At 31 December 2021 At 31 December 2020

(i) Interest rate profile (continued)

R-ZB--F+ZA=+-H R-Z-TF+-A=+-H
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BERAZE BB A &
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
ARMFTT AEEFT
Variable rate borrowings:  AIE R REE
Other borrowings HifEERSR 7.9% 300,000 -
Bank loans RITER 5.8% 600,000 6.2% 1,115,455
900,000 1,115,455
Total borrowings BEEE 3,611,062 3,115,455
Fixed rate borrowings EhRIES 1&«&15%%%@
as a percentage of )
total borrowings 75% 64%

(i) ST
RZEBE=Z—F+ = A

(i)

Sensitivity analysis
At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that a

/

general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group's profit after tax and retained profits by
approximately RMB9,000,000 (31 December
2020: RMB8,366,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate borrowings held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact of which on the Group’'s loss
after tax and retained profits is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense of
such a change in interest rates. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(d) Equity price risk

(e)

The Group is exposed to equity price changes
arising from other financial assets (see Note 18).

The Group's investments in other financial assets
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. The
performance of these equity securities is regularly
monitored.

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that an
increase/decrease of 10% in the relevant stock
price with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group’'s other
comprehensive income by RMB25,590,000 (31
December 2020: RMB16,770,000).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's other comprehensive income
that would arise assuming that the changes in the
stock price had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure this
financial instrument held by the Group which
exposes the Group to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period. It is also assumed that
none of the Group’s other financial assets would be
considered impaired as a result of the decrease in
the relevant stock price, and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Fair value measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

—Ft+-A=+—HIFE

(BRIEZFIER BRIUAREZS)

(48
(e)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured

at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the

measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

The Group has a team headed by the
finance manager performing valuations for
the financial assets measured at FVPL. The
team reports directly to the chief financial
officer and the audit committee. A valuation
report with analysis of changes in fair value
measurement is prepared by the team at each
interim and annual reporting date, and is
reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. Discussion of the valuation process
and results with the chief financial officer and
the audit committee is held twice a year, to
coincide with the reporting dates.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 Bi¥REKBEERAAE

VALUES (continued) (%&)
(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e) PAMEE(E&)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured (i) BARBIEZZREE
at fair value (continued) REEFE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NREER (&)

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2021 categorised into

Fair value R-B--£+-A=t-H
at 31 December ZARBHEANEA
2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZB=-F
t=A=1-H
M £-§ s-4 =4
RMB000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARRTR ARETR ARETR

Recurring fair value measurements £EM A A B B

Financial assets: SREE:
Fquity securities designated at FVOCI EEAEA L B EEH
(see Note 18 (3) FH AL ANG
(FagE) RS
(ZHizt186) 255,900 255,900 - -
Financial assets measured at FVPL A E B AEES
(see Note 18 (b)) TAERZEREAE
(BHi1806) 16,639 - - 16,639

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2020 categorised into

Fair value RZFZFF+ZAZT-A
at 31 December LAREHENER
2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZZZZF
+-A=+-H
ME £ E=R E=R
RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB 000

ARETT ARETT ARET T ARET T

Recurring fair value measurements &% ¥ 2 /i &

Financial assets: SHEE:
Equity securities designated at FVOCI B ARA% B EER
(see Note 18 (3)) SUARM R ANS
(RHEIE) z BRES
(ZHi18a)) 167,700 167,700 - -
Financial assets measured at FVPL AL S AEEH
(see Note 18 (b)) SAERZSRAE
(RHit180)) 14,307 - - 0/

RS EEEERERAT
—E-—FEH

L
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

/

(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e) RAEE(£E)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured () BARBIEZEMEE
at fair value (continued) REMF (&)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3
(nine months ended 31 December 2020: Nil).
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at
the end of the reporting period in which they
occur.

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

The fair value of financial assets measured at
FVPL is determined by the share of net assets
when a recent property valuation is available
according to the International Private Equity
and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines. A
10% increase/decrease in net assets would
result in a RMB1,664,000 increase/decrease in
the fair value of the financial assets and would
have increased/decreased the Group's profit by
RMB1,664,000.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured

Bt 7% R 3k MY &
BE-—F-—F{+-—A=1+—HIFE
(BRIESHEH TRIKAREKZS)

29 BIXEREERAAE
(#&)
(e) DAAEHE (&)
() BAREHBZHEE

at fair value (continued) &E & (&)
Information about Level 3 fair value R A EGTEEH
measurements (continued) ( ,?f)
The movements during the year in the balance FRAE=ZRAREFEZ
of the Level 3 fair value measurements are as ERREEIN S
follows:
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BZE HE
—E-—F —EFF
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
IEFE 1 LE A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARKFIT
Unlisted investment fund at fair 22 7t B3I 8E 2 IE F i *
value: &
Balance at 1 January/April R—A/MA—BZ%%E 14,307 -
Additions N - 14,307
Changes in fair value recognised 4/ HI AR 1828 FER
in profit or loss during the year/ 2 #2 (A% &) (ﬁ/fﬁES)
period (see Note 5) 2,332 -
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—B2%% 16,639 14,307

(ii) Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
are not materially different from their fair
values at 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020.

(i) LHFBAAEIERZZE
EEREEBZAALE
R—ZZT - —F+ = A

VA P S Sk 8 35 B 7R 51 B 2
EMTAZERAERZAR
REXEBRNEH -

—

RS EEEERERAT
—E-—FEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

30 COMMITMENTS

31

At 31 December 2021, the outstanding capital
commitments of the Group not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements were as follows:

(BRIEZFIER BRIUAREZS)

30 EIE

R-ZFZ_—F+ZA=+t—H A%
EREGEMBERETREEIRNE
AAELENT :

At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R=-B=—-F R_ZT_TF
t=A=t+—8 t=—A=1—"H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR®F T
Commitments in respect of purchase BEYENKREUAK
of property and equipment and BEME 2 A
investment property
— contracted for — 24 249,452 414,601
— authorised but not contracted for —EREERTD 200,000 -
449,452 414,601

At 31 December 2021, capital commitments in respect
of purchase of property and equipment and investment
properties are for leasehold improvements to be installed
in the Group’'s department store and supermarket
operations and for the renovation and upgrade of the 2
department stores and a shopping mall.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower in respect
of a payable for acquisition of a property by Ginwa
Investments in August 2005. Ginwa Investments has
defaulted repayment of the above payable. As at the end
of the reporting period, the directors of the Company
do not consider it is probable that a claim will be made
against the Group under the guarantee. The maximum
liability of the Group at the end of the reporting period
under the guarantee issued is the outstanding amount of
the liability of RMB9,500,000 plus accrued interest (nine
months ended 31 December 2020: RMB9,500,000).

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—T-_—F+-_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZHEHH  BAIAAREZ3)

32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 32 EXBHEAETRS
TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in BRZEMBRERAMIOFTIRE &
these financial statements, the Group entered into the ERIN REBTRETATERBEA
following material related party transactions. TR 5o
(a) Transactions with equity shareholders () BEXRAFTRRREEHEAL
and their affiliates, and a director of the UR—BEEETZRS
Company
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BZE HE

—B-—F —ET-FTF
+=A=+—-8 +t=ZA=+—H
HEE FAEA B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARETFT

Guarantees provided by Qujiang BT & Rhi% A% sk E K B A &)

Financial Holdings or its subsidiary R EARLAEEIRTT

for the Group’s bank and other REMEERME 7 ER

borrowings at the end of the

reporting period 1,200,000 910,000
Net (decrease)/increase in advances 2R B #)T & gL % 2 4 50F

received from Quijiang Financial (B A) /18 ( 2 HTaEa))

Holdings (see Note (i) (130,372) 207,201
Other borrowings from Quijiang T EmEREMEE

Financial Holdings (see Note 24(a))  ( & #f#t24(a)) 1,221,486 -
Entrusted loans from Qujiang ISR ELE R

Financial Holdings - 690,000
Repayment of entrusted loans to EEMHTERMIERETER

Quijiang Financial Holdings (690,000) -
Note: it &t
()  The advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing () ZBREERE RERIE

and have no fixed terms of repayment. Bl E @R -

—

HELEEEERERA
—g-—f%

L

3
#
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

()

Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
as disclosed in Note 8 and the highest paid
employees as disclosed in Note 9, is as follows:

(BRIEZFIER BRIUAREZS)

32 ERBEALRE (&)

(b) TEEBAEHM

TEEEABZHM (BEME
BTMBEC N TARRERZHK
BEWEMREDN TET&
SHHMEE ZHRB)MT

Nine months

Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BZE H=E
—E-—-F —ETF
+=A=+—8B +=—A=+—8H
IEEE 1 SUE A BRE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT ARKFT
Salaries, allowances and benefits e R REMEYET
in kind 9,951 7,509
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET 2|30 519 193
10,470 7,702

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
Note 6(b)).

Leasing arrangement

In November 2021, the Group entered into a
two-year lease in respect of certain leasehold
properties from a related party for the operation of
a shopping mall. The total amount of rent payable
by the Group under the lease is RMB95,724,000,
which was determined with reference to amounts
charged by the related party to third parties. At
the commencement date of the lease, the Group
recognised an investment property and a lease
liability of RMB82,498,000 (see Note 13).

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 32 EXBEALTRE (&)

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

(d LTRBBMEREERZ ZE
At
i sE32@)FT R 2B T @
BEATRSEK ETRAE14A
EMMATECHEER FHIFERE
RGoRM BRZER HIR—
R AR E R T A
AR EEEEFEA  ER
REF EMRAUNFB14AEZRE
FIE °

33 AEEEBBMRRR

Certain of the related party transactions disclosed in
Note 32(a) above constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However,
those transactions are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as
they are conducted on normal commercial terms or
better and not secured by the assets of the Group.

33 COMPANY LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R-ZBE-—F R-ZT_TF
+=A=+—H +—A=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt o AR¥ T ARBF T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries N NG s 1,777,318 1,831,453
Financial assets measured at FVPL & A A Ei 8 B H 4
FFABRZEREE 16,639 14,307
1,793,957 1,845,760
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H At i IR 29,469 30,181
Cash at bank and on hand WRITHEFELFHEES 108 6,285
29,577 36,466
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H b FE 1 3k 267,521 281,118
267,521 281,118
Net current liabilities REAEFEHE (237,944) (244,652)
NET ASSETS EEFH 1,556,013 1,601,108
e S RFEERERAT

—E-—FEH

L
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

33 COMPANY LEVEL STATEMENT OF 33 AEIBEBEMRREK (&)
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

RZB-Z—F R_ZE_ZTF
t=A=t+—-8 +t=A=1—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt aF AR T ARBF T

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR#iE 28
Share capital % 7 199,369 199,369
Reserves 1 1,356,644 1,401,739
TOTAL EQUITY AL 1,556,103 1,601,108
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of mEREo N _F - —F=H
directors on 31 March 2022. =+ —BEH#EREERE-
Huang Shunxu Qin Chuan
=4 Z=)l|
Chairman Director
FE )

/
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

Bt 75 R R Y &

BE—_T - —F+_A=+—HIFEE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

IMPACTS OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC

By the end of 31 December 2021, the ongoing COVID-19
pandemic and the outbreaks in some provinces in the
PRC has brought additional uncertainties in the Group’s
operating environment and has impacted the Group’s
operations and financial position.

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact of
the developments on the Group’s business and has
put in place contingency measures. In view of the
pandemic-driven economic downturn, the Group
assessed the situation and adhered to the principles of
reducing costs and enhancing operational efficiency.

As a result of the measures that were implemented to
control the spread of COVID-19, the shopping habits of
the general public have changed, resulting in the business
operation of the Group being significantly impacted
and it is expected that it will take time for the Group’s
business operation to fully recover, which may result in
additional impairment losses on goodwill and intangible
assets. The directors of the Company believe that the
consumption and economy in the PRC will gradually
recover as the pandemic calms down. The new normal in
consumption derived from COVID-19, on the other hand,
will change the operating principles and landscape of the
retail industry in the long run. To maintain the freshness
of the businesses, the Group will remain vigilant at all
times, stay close to market trends and timely adjust our
operating model. The Group will continue to closely
monitor the situation and implement contingency
measures, where necessary in a view to reduce the
impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z_FT-_—F+-_H=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUN REZ %))

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, and
a new standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2021 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the following
which may be relevant to the group.

35

EEMENRRBRE B = —
FH-A=+—HUEFELER
ZETRARRE Y BERE

BENEZEZWBEHRERAN FES
AR ABGERMEARNARBE_Z
T+ -A=t—BHIFELRE
fel R 7% 5 B 7% R BRAN OB BT B3
R AR ERIR BT B RS ER
FNTRRREA ] - ZFHERBET
FlRlgE AN SR EAEREE

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or
after

AT BH%

Z BRI
CEEIEES

1 January 2022
—E-_f—-A—H

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework
BEMB RS ENEIR (BFIAR) BAHSER

1 January 2022
—E-_f—-A—H

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use
BB ERF165; (BFIX) W% BERRE AEREINz

1 January 2022
—E-_f—-A—H

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
BR B ERIE37S (BFX)  BERK—BITEHKA

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
BARMBHREEN - \FE_Z_TFRYNFRIE

1 January 2022
—E-_f—-A—H

1 January 2023
—T_=%—-A—H

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

BREGIEREIR (BF]A) BREDERBREXFRE

1 January 2023
—F-=%-A—H

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of accounting policies

BEEEAE1EREBUHREERE2S e HRNKE

1 January 2023
—T-=%-A—H

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of accounting estimates

BE G EREST (BE]AR) BAZEH

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a 1 January 2023

single transaction

BEGEREI12 (BFX) BE-—XZGELZRERABRHCELNE —E-=%—-A—H
REBEETEZEERREXR
ERPEBEERNTE 25
RlE ANEBRARA DMER]
PRI e MG RRBNE

2/ 458
N 2o

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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